
 

Board Agenda, November 7, 2024 1 

  

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
Board of Education Members    
Lavinia Grace Phillips, President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Justine Chueh-Griffith, Student Member 
 

Thursday, November 7, 2024 
5:00 p.m. Closed Session  

6:00 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

AGENDA 
 

2024/25-6 
 

       Allotted Time 
5:00 p.m. 1.0       OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
 2.0      ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE  

           DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 
 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

b) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (OAH Case No. 2024070719, OAH Case No. 2024070465, and  
OAH Case No. 2024071050 ) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(Cancy McArn) 

 
            3.3       Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 
                        Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
 
            3.4       Education Code 35146- The Board will hear staff recommendation on the  
                        following student expulsions from 24-25: Expulsions #6, #7, #8, and #9  
                       of the 2024/2025 school year (David Van Natten) 
 

 



 

Board Agenda, November 7, 2024 2 

           
          3.5 Government Code 54957- Public Employee Appointment 
                        (a) Approve- Assistant Superintendent, Early Learning and Care 
 

 
6:00 p.m. 4.0        CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4.2       Broadcast Statement 

 
4.3       Stellar Student introduced by Board Member Chinua Rhodes 

 
6:05 p.m. 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
6:10 p.m. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 

6:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                               15 minutes 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) 
submitted in writing through the district’s website at https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; or 
(3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission deadline for written public comments shall be no 
later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to address the Board in-person, please fill out a 
yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are received, or 
grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no more than 15 
minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.  By law, the Board is allowed 
to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to district 
staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.    

 
6:30 p.m. 8.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 8.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA  
 SEIU 
 TCS 
 Teamsters  
 UPE 

 

Information 
SCTA – 15 minutes  

SEIU – 3 minutes 
TCS – 3 minutes 

Teamsters – 3 minutes 
UPE – 3 minutes  

 

6:57 p.m.   8.2  District Advisory Committees: 

 Student Advisory Council 

 Community Advisory Committee  

 District English Learner Advisory Committee 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory  
    Committee 

 Black/African American Advisory Board 

Information 
3 minutes each 



 

Board Agenda, November 7, 2024 3 

 Community Schools Advisory Committee 

 American Indian Education Program Parent Committee 

 

 
 

9.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
 

7:18 p.m.                 9.1         Recognition of Outgoing Board Members  
                            (Board President Lavinia Phillips) 

                   Information  
10 minute presentation 

                5 minute discussion 
 

7:33 p.m.                9.2         Approve Resolution No. 3460: Recognition of Veteran’s 
                             Day (Board Member Christina Pritchett) 

                             Action  
5 minute presentation 

                5 minute discussion 
 

7:43 p.m.                9.3         Approve Resolution No. 3461: Recognition of Native  
                             American Heritage Month (Manpreet Kaur &  
                            Christina Prairie-Chicken) 
 

                             Action  
5 minute presentation 

                5 minute discussion 
 

7:53 p.m.                9.4     Approve Resolution No. 3462:  Recognition of 1984 Sikh  
                            Genocide (Board Member Jasjit Singh) 

                             Action  
5 minute presentation 

                5 minute discussion 
 

8:03 p.m.                9.5         Student Support and Health Services Annual Report 
                             (Jacqueline Garner) 

                   Information  
10 minute presentation 

              10 minute discussion 
 

  
 10.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

8:23 p.m.   10.1        Student Member Report (Justine Chueh-Griffith) Information 
5 minutes 

 
8:28 p.m.   10.2      Superintendent’s Report (Lisa Allen) Information 

5 minutes 
 

8:33 p.m.              10.3     President’s Report (Lavinia Phillips) Information 
5 minutes 

 
8:38 p.m.              10.4       Information Sharing by Board Members Information 

10 minutes 
 
 

 

8:48 p.m. 11.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                         Action 
                                                                                                                                                               2 minutes 

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
  11.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
 

11.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of Other 
          Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and 
          Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion (Janea Marking) 



 

Board Agenda, November 7, 2024 4 

 
                                   11.1b Approve Contracts Report >$15,000 (Janea Marking) 
 

11.1c Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 
11.1d Approve Drainage Facility Maintenance Declaration with the County of 

Sacramento for Nicholas Elementary (Ben Wangberg) 
 
11.1e Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 
          Transfers Issued for the period of September 1-30, 2024 (Janea Marking) 

 
11.1f Approve Donations to the District for the Period of September 2024  
         (Janea Marking) 

 
11.1g Approve Resolution No. 3459 Resolution of Intention to Convey Public Utilities 

Easement to County of Sacramento at Nicholas Elementary School (Ben 
Wangberg) 

 
11.1h Approve Resolution No. 3456 Authorizing Piggyback Contract for Purchase of 

School Site Furniture Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20118  
            (Janea Marking) 
 
11.1i Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsions #6, #7, #8, and #9 of the 
          2024/2025 school year (David Van Natten) 
 
11.1j Approve Stormwater Treatment Device Access and Maintenance Agreement with 

the County of Sacramento for Nicholas Elementary (Ben Wangberg) 
 
 
8:50 p.m. 12.0      BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS               Receive Information  

 
             12.1 Business and Financial Information: Enrollment and Attendance Report- Month 1,    
                     Ending Friday, September 13, 2024 (Janea Marking) 
 

 
8:52 p.m. 13.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 

 
 November 21, 2024, 5:00 p.m. Closed Session, 6:00 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 December 19, 2024, 5:00 p.m. Closed Session, 6:00 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 
8:54 p.m. 14.0      ADJOURNMENT  

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 



 

Board Agenda, November 7, 2024 5 

accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education relating to an open session item will be available for public  
inspection at the Serna Center, at 5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, during normal business hours or on the District’s 
website at www.scusd.edu. 

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item#9.1 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
 
Subject:  Recognition of Outgoing Board Members 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Board Office 
 
 
Recommendation:  None 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Engagement 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes 

Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Superintendent 

Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Superintendent 



 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 9.2 

 
Meeting Date: November 7, 2024 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3460:  Recognition of Veteran’s Day 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division: Board of Education  
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3460 Recognition of Veterans Day 
 
Background/Rationale: In November 1919, President Wilson proclaimed November 11 
as the first commemoration of Armistice Day with the following words: "To us in 
America, the reflections of Armistice Day will be filled with solemn pride in the heroism 
of those who died in the country’s service and with gratitude for the victory, both 
because of the thing from which it has freed us and because of the opportunity it has 
given America to show her sympathy with peace and justice in the councils of the 
nations…" The important purpose of Veterans Day is a celebration to honor America's 
veterans for their patriotism, love of country, and willingness to serve and sacrifice for 
the common good. 
 
The veterans in the Sacramento City Unified School District serve as parents, 
educators, support staff, administrators and in other capacities.  The District recognizes 
Veterans Day and honors the men and women of our Armed Forces, past and present, 
who bravely and tirelessly defend and secure our freedom here and around the world.   
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3460 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 min 

Submitted by: Christina Pritchett, Board Member  

Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3460 

 
RECOGNITION OF VETERAN’S DAY 

 

WHEREAS, The United States of America was founded on the principles of liberty, 
opportunity, and justice for all; and 

WHEREAS, America has called on men and women in uniform to protect our national 
security to advance our national interests, and to preserve our rights and freedoms; and 

WHEREAS, on Veterans Day we recognize the men and women of our Armed Forces 
past and present, who have valiantly defended these values throughout our Nation’s history; and 

WHEREAS, serving as educators, support staff, administrators, parents, and in other 
important capacities, these patriots have made contributions to civilian life that serves as a 
testament to their dedication to the welfare of our country; and 

WHEREAS, on Veterans Day we also remember and pay tribute to the millions of 
patriots whose courage and sacrifice have defended and secured our freedom around the globe; 
and 

WHEREAS, we honor all men and women currently serving in the military for their 
sacrifices; 

NOW, THREREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Sacramento City Unified School 
District Board of Education recognized Veterans Day on the Eleventh day of November and calls 
for educators, students, parents, and community partners to honor it, and the special men and 
women who have served our country, with lessons, guest speakers, displays, lectures, and other 
activities throughout the district and community. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of 
Education on this 7th day of November, 2024, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: ____ 
NOES: ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____     

 
ATTESTED TO: 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Lavinia Phillips      Lisa Allen 
President of the Board of Education    Superintendent 

 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item# 9.3 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024  
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3461: Recognition of Native American Heritage 
                Month, November 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 

X Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Deputy Superintendent/Youth Development Support Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3461 –Resolution of National Native 
American Heritage Month 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  The month of November is designated as National Native 
American Heritage Month. This observance commemorates the history, heritage, and 
culture of Native American and Alaska Native people. It is during this month we 
acknowledge the vast achievements of America’s original indigenous people. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  Title VI, Title I and Expanded Learning Opportunities 
Program (ELOP) grant 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):   
Goal 3: Integrated Supports 
Goal 4: Culture and Climate – Dismantling Systems 
Goal 5: Engagement/Empowerment 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
Resolution No. 3461 
 
 



Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 minutes  
Submitted by:  Manpreet Kaur, Director Youth Development 

Support Services 
Christina Prairie Chicken, Youth Services Specialist 

Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Superintendent 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  3461 

 
RECOGNITION OF NATIONAL NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE MONTH, 

NOVEMBER 2024 
 

WHEREAS, National Native American Heritage Month is an opportunity to consider and 
recognize the contributions of Native Americans to the history of the United States; 

 
WHEREAS, the Sacramento City Unified School District resides on lands of the Miwok and 

Nisenan people; 
 

WHEREAS, Native Americans maintain vibrant cultures and traditions hold a deeply rooted 
sense of community, have made and continue to make distinct and important contributions to the United 
States and the rest of the world in many fields, including the fields of agriculture, medicine, music, 
language, and art; 
 

WHEREAS, California has the highest Native American population in the country, it is home to 
109 federally recognized tribes, with approximately 81 groups seeking recognition; 

      
WHEREAS, Over one-half of the state’s Native American population is composed of individuals 

(and now their descendants) who were relocated to large urban areas as part of the federal government’s 
termination policy; 

 
WHEREAS, Before the missionary, fur trapping, and gold rush era migrations, California’s 

Native American population was estimated at about 200,000, between 1840 and 1870, the population 
declined to 12,000 due to disease, forced removal, and death; 

 
WHEREAS, the Census Bureau estimated that, in 2020, there were more than 631,016 

individuals of Native American descent in California and more than 18,637 in the county of Sacramento; 
 

WHEREAS, 2023-2024 CDE Dataquest information indicates there are 25,424 Native American 
students in California and 220 in SCUSD, a recent review of Infinite Campus data indicates there are 427 
SCUSD American Indian students that are classified as two or more races; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School District, 
that the District is committed to improving the academic and social-emotional outcomes for Native 
American students and all students in the region;  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that SCUSD’s American Indian Education Program (AIEP) 
provides academic assistance, cultural programs, back to school events, summer programs, college 
mentoring, field trips and graduation recognitions for American Indian students enrolled in the program;  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that SCUSD-AIEP continues supporting students by providing 

services for self-identified American Indian students who are unable to enroll in AIEP due to lack of 
documentation; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that SCUSD-AIEP continues the American Indian Educator 
classroom visit project that allows teachers to request a classroom visit from a trained Native American 
educator; 



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that SCUSD-Youth Development continues having two staff 

members, Youth Services Specialist and Youth Services Program Associate, dedicated to meeting the 
needs of Native students in SCUSD with one position, Youth Services Program Associate, dedicated to 
assisting 9th-12th grade Native American students in meeting high school graduation requirements and 
planning for their post-secondary education; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that SCUSD-AIEP works in partnership with a Parent 
Advisory committee that meets once a month to address the needs of Native American students in our 
district; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that SCUSD-AIEP continues distributing resources to teachers 
and staff for Native American Heritage Month and share with students and families enrolled in AIEP; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Education recognizes the need of continued 
funding and leveraging Title VI and other grants such as Expanded Learning Opportunities Program and 
Title I is required for the success of the AIEP; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that SCUSD-AIEP continues consulting with local tribes to 
bring resources and accurate historical information to students, families and staff; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that SCUSD-AIEP continues advocating for accurate 
information, authentic representation, and appropriate imagery within the district curriculum, building 
names, mascots and historical facts/figures;  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of 
Education recognizes November 2024 as National Native American Heritage Month; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Education urges schools within the District to 
observe National Native American Heritage Month and Native American Heritage Day with appropriate 
programs and activities. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education 

on this 7th day of November 2024, by the following vote: 
 

AYES: ____ 
NOES: ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____     

 
 

ATTESTED TO: 
 

______________________________           ______________________________ 
Lavinia Grace Phillips                         Lisa Allen 
President of the Board of Education            Superintendent 



1 of 1 

 
 

 
 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
                  BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

 
Agenda Item# 9.4  

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3462:  Recognition of 1984 Sikh Genocide 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Board Office 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3462:  Recognition of Sikh Genocide 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Engagement. 
 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Resolution No. 3462 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  5 minutes 
Submitted by:  Board Member Jasjit Singh 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3462 

 
Recognition of 1984 Sikh Genocide 

 
WHEREAS, Sikh (Sikhism) is the fifth-largest religion in the world and today, there are 

more than 25 million Sikhs worldwide and more than 500,000 Sikh American, including over 
40,000 in the Sacramento region; and 
 

WHEREAS, Sikhs have called the Sacramento Valley home for over a century and have 
achieved excellence in all aspects of Sacramento life; and 
 

WHEREAS, Sacramento as a region is home to a large and thriving Sikh life with over 7 
Gurdwaras and other nonprofits serving the Sacramento Sikh community and beyond; and 
 

WHEREAS, Sikh originated in the Punjab region of South Asia, which is currently divided 
between India and Pakistan; and 

 
WHEREAS, Sikhs have been living in the United States for more than 120 years, and 

during the early 20th century, thousands of Sikh Americans worked on farms, in lumber mills 
and mines, and on the Western Pacific Railroad lines; and 

 
WHEREAS, Sikh Americans pursue diverse professions, and make rich contributions to 

the social, cultural, and economic vibrancy of the United States, including in trucking, small 
businesses, agriculture, nonprofits, education, information technology, the legal field, the hotel 
industry, medicine, and technology; and 

 
WHEREAS, Sikh Americans distinguished themselves by fostering respect among all 

people through faith and service; and 
 
WHEREAS, June 1984 marks the 40th anniversary of the Indian Government's and 

Army's assault on Darbar Sahib (also known as the Golden Temple) and dozens of other 
gurdwaras (Sikh houses of worship) throughout Punjab, committing war crimes and killing 
thousands; and 

 
WHEREAS, June 1984 catalyzed the “decade of disappearances,” where India’s security 

forces perpetrated widespread and systematic torture, enforced disappearances, and 
extrajudicial execution, among other human rights violations and forms of persecution, arising to 
crimes against humanity; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Genocide Convention of 1948 defines genocide as the intent to destroy, 

in whole or in part, a national, ethnical, racial or religious group; and 
 
WHEREAS, November 1984 marks the start of the Sikh genocide in India, where the 

government of India and the then-ruling political party unleashed a campaign of premeditated 
and organized violence to eliminate Sikhs from Delhi and other cities throughout India; and 



 
WHEREAS, This period was marked by systematic persecution of Sikhs, including 

killings, sexual and gender-based violence, torture, the desecration and destruction of gurdwaras 
and libraries, and the destruction of Sikh homes and businesses, all of which was enabled by 
censorship and media blackouts; and 

 
WHEREAS, The individuals who perpetrated this violence and discrimination—

particularly the chief architects—have largely been yet to face any accountability for their 
crimes; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Sikh community today continues to call for truth, justice, and 

accountability to redress these harms; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sikhs Americans and gurdwaras in the United States continue to be targeted 

by the Government of India through transnational repression (when foreign governments stalk, 
intimidate, assault or kill people in the United States); and 

 
WHEREAS, The oppression of religious freedom—and democratic backsliding more 

broadly—remains a grave concern in India today per the analysis of impartial groups like 
Freedom House, Amnesty International, the U.S. Commission on International Religious 
Freedom, and Genocide Watch; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED Sacramento City Unified School District Board of 
Education on this 7th day of November, 2024, do hereby recognize the Sikh genocide of 1984. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 7th day of November, 2024, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
 
_______________________________                                             _____________________________ 
Lisa Allen                                                                                           Lavinia Phillips 
Secretary of the Board of Education                                                  President of the Board of Education 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 9.5 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 7, 2024 
 
Subject:  Student Support & Health Services Annual Report 
 

X Information Item Only  
☐ Approval on Consent Agenda 
☐ Conference (for discussion only) 
☐ Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
☐ Conference/Action 
☐ Action 
☐ Public Hearing 
 

Division:  Student Support & Health Services Department 
 
 
Recommendation:  N/A 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  The 23-24 SSHS Annual Report is in an effort to: 1) tell the 
collective stories of our students and advocate for needed supports to be able to learn 
when they arrive in our classrooms; 2) identify needs and gaps in the interventions we 
provide for continuous improvement; and 3) maintain transparency and accountability of 
our resources and services to all stakeholders. The report speaks largely to the 
supports and interventions provided, rather than the number of students served.  
 
Financial Considerations: N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Goal 3 is about creating the same sense of being welcomed and safe 
for all students and families within the district.  All students and families will feel safe 
and connected in their school community as measured by the annual LCAP School 
Climate and Culture survey and behavior data as a result of engaging all staff in 
professional learning on Anti-Bias/Anti-Racist/ Trauma-Informed principles and 
practices. 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. SSHS 23-24 Annual Report  
 
 



 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes presentation  
Submitted by: Jacqueline Garner, Executive Director, Student 

Support and Health Services 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Superintendent 

 
 



 

  



Page 2 of 21 

Table of Contents 

A Note from the Executive Director .................................................................................................................................. 2 

Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

Overview ............................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

More Than a Student: The Work in Stories ....................................................................................................................... 7 

More Than a Student: The Work in Numbers ................................................................................................................. 10 

More Than a Student: The Work in Photos ......................................................................................................................11 

Looking Ahead ................................................................................................................................................................. 12 

Budget & Staffing ............................................................................................................................................................ 13 

 

  



Page 3 of 21 

A Note from the Executive Director 

Dear Students, Families, Staff, Board of Education, and Community, 

It is an honor to present the 2023-24 Student Support & Health Services (SSHS) Annual Report.  SSHS is made up of 
three divisions: Health Services, Foster Youth Services, and Student Support Services. Since our formation in 2017, 
our clear focus has been to create an environment where students and families can thrive both academically and 
emotionally. Today, our team’s commitment to enhancing the well-being and success of every student is stronger 
than ever.  

This year, we hit an incredible milestone: our SSHS staff reached 35,739 students—96% of the District’s learners. Our 
extensive programs and services from Individualized Health Care plans, Mental Health Crisis Response team, Foster 
Youth Services, and other critical programs demonstrate our commitment to addressing the whole child, whole 
community, and diverse needs of our students. Behind every statistic is a unique story, like those highlighted in this 
report. Each narrative reflects the challenges our students face and the comprehensive support we offer to help 
them overcome them. 

As we navigate the evolving landscape of student needs, the data presented in this report reflects our ongoing 
commitment to continuous improvement. The alarming trends in student mental health underscore the importance 
of our work. With mental health linkages and crisis assessments at record highs, it is clear that our students are 
grappling with profound challenges that necessitate our comprehensive support services. 

As we look ahead, we remain committed to our vision, even as we confront challenges such as the sun setting of 
COVID-19 relief funding. Our focus on important initiatives like the “Community Schools” model, Student Mental 
Wellness Council, and implementation of the California Healthy Kids Survey will continue. 

In closing, I extend my heartfelt gratitude to the SSHS staff for their amazing dedication, the families we serve for 
their resilience, & our district and community partners for their continued collaboration. Together, we’re not just 
supporting students- we are affirming their identities, creating inclusive spaces for them to grow and thrive, and 
ensuring they have the tools they need to succeed.  

As you read this report, my hope is that each of you see how you are an important piece of carrying out the mission 
to support the success of every student.  Let’s continue to work together in this imperative work!  

Sincerely 

 
Executive Director, 
Student Support & Health Services Department 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

  



Page 4 of 21 

Introduction 

ABOUT SSHS 

Sacramento City Unified School District’s Student Support & Health Services 
(SSHS) department was formed in 2014, when the former Integrated Support 
Services and Health Services departments were joined together to focus and 
foster the overall wellbeing of students and their families.  SSHS was made 
complete when the Foster Youth Services program joined the department in 2017, 
and, thanks to COVID-era federal funds, has grown to roughly 200 highly trained, 
expert employees whose integration into District and individual school 
communities has continued to infuse the evidence-based, whole-child perspective 
into our educational culture.    

SSHS is made up of three divisions: Health Services, Foster Youth Services, and 
Student Support Services.  Within these three divisions live mandated and evidence-based services and programs 
such as:  

● 504 Accommodations coordination, training, and oversight 
● Community Schools Grant & Implementation 
● COVID-19 Contact Tracing 
● Daily Direct Medical Care and Emergency Care Planning 
● Foster Youth Services 
● Health Insurance Enrollment 
● Home Hospital Instruction and Medical Independent Study 
● Homeless Education Services (McKinney Vento Act, AB 1608) 
● Immunization Clinics 
● LGBTQ+ Support Services 
● Mental Health Crisis Response Team 
● Pregnant & Parenting Students program 
● Student Support Centers  
● Suicide Prevention & Intervention (including AB 2246) 
● Tobacco Use Prevention & Education (TUPE) program 
● and more! 

SSHS knows that the young people we serve are more than students.  They are brave, brilliant, caring, creative, 
resilient, complex beings who come to our schools from equally beautiful, strong, unique families, homes, and 
communities.  In fact, some of these young people are living away from their family of origin for their own safety 
and wellbeing.  Some of them do not live in homes, rather they sleep at night in their families’ cars or in shelters.  
Some of these youth require daily, direct medical care, and others must have elaborate, intentional safety plans to 
treat their mental health needs.  Some of our young people arrive at school every day in fear just because they are 
BIPOC, or are new to our country, or identify with the LGBTQ+ community.  And some of our youth are trying to 
graduate while raising children of their own.  Every SCUSD learner is more than a student, and we are grateful for 
the chance to walk with and support them through their education, and along this part of their life path. 

ABOUT THIS REPORT 

Ten years ago SSHS began systematically analyzing and reflecting on data collected about services to students and 
producing this Annual Report in an effort to: 1) tell the collective stories of our students and advocate for needed 
supports to be able to learn when they arrive in our classrooms; 2) identify needs and gaps in the interventions we 
provide for continuous improvement; and 3) maintain transparency and accountability of our resources and services 
to all stakeholders.   



Page 5 of 21 

Compiling data for this report is time consuming, and, like our work, an ever-evolving process of continuous 
improvement.  Due to the complex task loads and the data collection tools available, staff in different divisions use 
different means for documentation.  Our report speaks largely to the supports and interventions provided, rather 
than the number of students served.  Through careful analysis of our multiple data collection, we do know that in 
2023-24, SSHS staff provided some level of service to 35,739 students (unduplicated count), meaning we reached 
96% of the District’s learners.   

Over time these annual reports have offered a look at many data points and offered hundreds of pages of narratives 
describing the complex and unique work of the Department.  This year, however, we wanted to underscore the 
aforementioned belief that every young person we serve here at SCUSD is more than a student, requiring more 
than just access to a classroom and a textbook to learn.  We have opted to share this year’s work through a handful 
of case studies - factual illustrations of the grit and resilience of our students coupled with the empathetic expertise 
and dedication of our team.  Identifying information about students in these case studies has been changed in an 
effort to protect these students’ right to privacy and confidentiality. 

  

https://www.scusd.edu/pod/sshs-reports


Page 6 of 21 

Overview 

Many of our students are not okay.  The United States’ Youth Mental Health Crisis1 has been widely documented, as 
have the COVID-19 Pandemic’s long term adverse effects on children’s education:2  

● The National Center for Education Statistics continues to report a significant decline in K–12 student mental 
health since the COVID-19 pandemic.3  

● In California, the number of students experiencing frequent sadness is increasing, while student-reported 
wellness is decreasing.4  

● While 72% of California students report feeling “good and happy,” only 67% of SCUSD students reported 
feeling a sense of belonging at their schools, and only 63% reported feeling safe.5 

While Federal, State, Local and SCUSD leaders work to understand the root causes of these problems and find their 
solutions, teachers continue to do their best to educate, and SSHS staff continue to work in partnership with 
students and their families at filling in the gaps that keep them from accessing their education.   

In 2023-24, SSHS again offered a record number of interventions and supports, especially in the areas of health, 
mental health, and basic needs: 

● Highest number of mental health linkages ever recorded (1,398); 

● Highest number of suicide risk assessments ever recorded (565); 

● A 53% increase in conflict resolutions and peer mediations (1,343); 

● Highest number of caregiver supports ever recorded (2,011); 

● Highest number of Tier 2 basic needs linkages (2,939) and Tier 1 basic needs distributions (27,443) ever 
recorded; and 

● Highest recorded number of 504 Accommodation Plans (1,327). 

All of this was accomplished with a relatively small number of staff, 46% of which is funded by COVID-19 Recovery 
Funds that sunset in June 2025.  We are proud that with these funds our Health Services division is finally staffed at 
ratios recommended by the American Academy of Pediatrics and the National Association of School Nurses.6 While 
those same funds also increased staffing in our Student Support Services and Foster Youth Services divisions, they 
both remain staffed at nearly half the National Association of School Social Workers’ recommended ratio of 
Support staff to students.7   

As we look to the future - and the fiscal cliff posed by the ending of COVID-19 Relief and One-time State Relief 
Funds - we are appropriately concerned about the capacity of our team and our District to meet the ever-increasing 
needs of our students.  

                                                      
1 United States Department of Health & Human Services. (2021).  Protecting youth mental health: The U.S. Surgeon General’s 

advisory. 
2 Pinto, S. (2023).  The pandemic’s effects on children’s education.   
3 United States Department of Education. (2022).  Mental health services in public schools. 
4 California Department of Education. (2024).  California school climate, health, and learning surveys. 
5 Sacramento City Unified School District.(2024). 2023-24 spring student school climate survey results. 
6 Durant, et al. (2011).  NASN position statement: caseload assignments. 
7 National Association of Social Workers. (2012).  NASW Standards for School Social Work.  

https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-youth-mental-health-advisory.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-youth-mental-health-advisory.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-youth-mental-health-advisory.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-youth-mental-health-advisory.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-youth-mental-health-advisory.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-youth-mental-health-advisory.pdf
https://www.richmondfed.org/publications/research/economic_brief/2023/eb_23-29
https://nces.ed.gov/fastfacts/display.asp?id=1130
https://nces.ed.gov/fastfacts/display.asp?id=1130
https://nces.ed.gov/fastfacts/display.asp?id=1130
https://calschls.org/reports-data/public-dashboards/4954886f-dbfa-469b-ad47-9452d4e2efda/
https://calschls.org/reports-data/public-dashboards/4954886f-dbfa-469b-ad47-9452d4e2efda/
https://calschls.org/reports-data/public-dashboards/4954886f-dbfa-469b-ad47-9452d4e2efda/
https://scusd.illuminateed.com/live/?page=PrebuiltReport_JasperBIReportController&debug=&jasper_prebuilt_id=908&reference_id=PR&state_id=5&guid=8a3aab66-b4bf-4999-a246-31d2208a4777&report_form_form_test=1&uri=%2Forganizations%2Fscusd%2FReports%2FDistrictCreated%2F2023-24SpringSchoolClimateSurveyResults&PARAM_active_sites=9999999&PARAM_academic_year=2024&PARAM_race_slash_ethnicity_value=0&PARAM_gender_value=0&PARAM_english_proficiency_value=0&PARAM_is_special_ed_value=0#report
https://scusd.illuminateed.com/live/?page=PrebuiltReport_JasperBIReportController&debug=&jasper_prebuilt_id=908&reference_id=PR&state_id=5&guid=8a3aab66-b4bf-4999-a246-31d2208a4777&report_form_form_test=1&uri=%2Forganizations%2Fscusd%2FReports%2FDistrictCreated%2F2023-24SpringSchoolClimateSurveyResults&PARAM_active_sites=9999999&PARAM_academic_year=2024&PARAM_race_slash_ethnicity_value=0&PARAM_gender_value=0&PARAM_english_proficiency_value=0&PARAM_is_special_ed_value=0#report
https://scusd.illuminateed.com/live/?page=PrebuiltReport_JasperBIReportController&debug=&jasper_prebuilt_id=908&reference_id=PR&state_id=5&guid=8a3aab66-b4bf-4999-a246-31d2208a4777&report_form_form_test=1&uri=%2Forganizations%2Fscusd%2FReports%2FDistrictCreated%2F2023-24SpringSchoolClimateSurveyResults&PARAM_active_sites=9999999&PARAM_academic_year=2024&PARAM_race_slash_ethnicity_value=0&PARAM_gender_value=0&PARAM_english_proficiency_value=0&PARAM_is_special_ed_value=0#report
https://scusd.illuminateed.com/live/?page=PrebuiltReport_JasperBIReportController&debug=&jasper_prebuilt_id=908&reference_id=PR&state_id=5&guid=8a3aab66-b4bf-4999-a246-31d2208a4777&report_form_form_test=1&uri=%2Forganizations%2Fscusd%2FReports%2FDistrictCreated%2F2023-24SpringSchoolClimateSurveyResults&PARAM_active_sites=9999999&PARAM_academic_year=2024&PARAM_race_slash_ethnicity_value=0&PARAM_gender_value=0&PARAM_english_proficiency_value=0&PARAM_is_special_ed_value=0#report
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/21291082/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/21291082/
https://www.socialworkers.org/Practice/NASW-Practice-Standards-Guidelines/NASW-Standards-for-School-Social-Work-Services#:~:text=School%20social%20work%20services%20should,ratio%20of%201%3A250%20students.


Page 7 of 21 

More Than a Student: The Work in Stories 

Bearing witness to our students’ challenges and triumphs is an honor.  Walking alongside them, their families and 
caregivers as they face and overcome barriers is a privilege.  Sharing their stories in an effort to help our larger 
community of educators and decision-makers understand all that it takes to show up at school ready to learn each 
day, is our duty.   

We hope that after experiencing these stories our readers will feel the same immense sense of humility and respect 
that we do for these students; and that they, too, will join us in prioritizing efforts to ensure the wellbeing of the 
whole child in SCUSD by the trained, dedicated experts who have been passionately serving them for decades. 

MORE THAN A STUDENT: BEATRIZ 

New to the United States after a traumatic escape from their country of origin in hopes of a better, safer life 
Beatriz’s family worked to overcome the mental 
toll of their journey and adjust to a new culture and 
language.  They worked to assimilate - Beatriz and 
her siblings enrolled in an SCUSD high school, 
while their parents labored very long hours in 
surrounding agricultural fields to try and support 
the family.   

Though they worked hard, the family was 
unhoused and struggled to get the children to 
school and be in the fields on time for work.  SSHS’ 
Homeless Education Services team assisted the 
family in finding housing and offered 
transportation support as well. 

These supports helped the family, but Beatriz still 
struggled.  The SSHS School Social Worker 
connected with Beatriz not just as a mental health 
professional and trusted adult, but as a cultural 
broker, speaking her primary language and 
offering respite.  While the School Social Worker, 
Student Support Center Coordinator, and School 
Nurse collaborated together to help the family navigate a challenging bureaucratic mental health care system, the 
signs of Beatriz’s struggle quickly escalated to self-harm and near-daily suicide attempts at school.   

The SSHS team went from providing support to engaging in daily monitoring of Beatriz’s safety, including checking 
her for sharp objects before using the restroom, following her when she went off campus in attempt to self-harm, 
and applying life-saving measures when she successfully evaded the school’s efforts to protect her from herself.   

In addition to coordinating with one another, local law enforcement and hospital systems, and Sacramento County 
Behavioral Health managers, the site-based SSHS team quickly connected with SSHS’ 504 Coordinator to develop 
an emergency plan that would provide for daily one-to-one supervision and mental health support, ensuring 
Beatriz’s ongoing safety and access to her education.   

As the 504 Plan was implemented and the severity of Beatriz’s mental illness continued to escalate, the SSHS team 
worked tirelessly to engage and collaborate with SCUSD’s Special Education Department in pursuit of further 
assessment and, ultimately, the determination of a more safe and appropriate educational placement for her. 

In 2023-24, SSHS Staff case managed 
2,661 students and provided or 
supported: 

 1,714 IEP Assessments 

 1,327 504 Plans 

 565 Suicide Risk Assessments 

 186 Homeless program referrals 

 337 Translation supports 

 2,589 Health care supports 
 146 Health insurance supports 



Page 8 of 21 

MORE THAN A STUDENT: ANTOINE 

In September 2023 Antoine came to an SCUSD elementary school as a young child amidst much change.  Having 
finished Kindergarten in a different school district, while transitioning from a longer-term foster family back home 
to his mother and five siblings, he was understandably unsettled on his first day at his new school.   In fact, Antoine 
cried so much in the classroom that eventually the 
Office Manager called upon the school’s Student 
Support Center (SSC) Coordinator for help.   

A seasoned SSHS staff member, the SSC 
Coordinator was ready and excited to support 
Antoine and his mom.   

Unfortunately, they had been through so many 
emotional challenges that week and that morning, 
the meeting was not much of a success.  Antoine’s 
mother left abruptly, frustrated and sure that her 
presence was doing more harm than good, and the 
SSC Coordinator struggled to keep Antoine safely 
inside the school campus as he tried to run into the 
street after mom.  Once Antoine realized that mom 
was gone, he turned his pain toward the SSC 
Coordinator who was there to help support him, 
biting her in the leg. 

Knowing his history and understanding the complex 
systems at work behind him, the SSC Coordinator 
reached out to SSHS’ Foster Youth Services (FYS) Coordinator for help and insight.  After hearing what had 
happened on the first day, the FYS Coordinator vowed to engage Antoine’s child law attorney, his child welfare 
worker, and his community-based treatment team for help.   

Unfortunately, that bite on his first day of school was not the last time Antoine’s painful emotions would put 
someone in danger; over the next three and a half months he would engage daily in acts of self-harm such as 
banging his head on the ground, and in harming others such as biting, pinching, hitting, kicking, spitting and 
urinating on the SSC Coordinator, School Social Worker, and any other adult or student who tried to get near him.  
The school was locked down daily for the safety of other students, and both the SSC Coordinator and Social Worker 
together provided direct supervision of Antoine to ensure his own safety.   

As the  FYS and SSC Coordinators worked together with the treatment team and learned of the student’s mental 
health diagnosis, one that was responsible for these behaviors, they and the site administrator collaborated with 
SSHS’ 504 Coordinator to implement an emergency 504 plan that would provide additional adult support with the 
student, while his legal team and SCUSD’s Special Education department worked to provide further assessment, 
ultimately resulting in a more appropriate educational placement in January 2024.   Following Antoine’s move to a 
new school, the FYS and SSC Coordinators continued to provide caregiver support to Antoine’s mother and her 
advocate, helping them understand the special education assessment and IEP processes, Antoine’s rights, and link 
them with trusted contacts at his new school. 

Today Antoine is successfully engaging in academic material, participating willingly in his treatment, and advocating 
for himself in ways that the SSHS team only hoped could be possible just nine months prior.  Having the experience, 
expertise and networks to help navigate Antoine’s exceptional circumstances helped advocate for and ensure his 
academic success today. 

In 2023-24, SSHS Staff provided 
or supported: 

 65 Child & Family Team 
meetings 

 1,308 Behavior interventions 

 5,207 Social/emotional 
supports 

 1,007 Crisis interventions 

 408 Safety referrals/linkages 



Page 9 of 21 

MORE THAN A STUDENT: LUCY 

Already struggling with courses and fearful she might not graduate on time, Lucy learned six months before the end 
of her senior year that she was pregnant.   

Both brave and terrified, Lucy leaned into her new 
role as a young mother.  Like new mothers of all 
ages, Lucy struggled with the reality of the 
demands of her newborn, and especially struggled 
to balance them with the responsibilities of being a 
student.   

When she met SSHS’ Pregnant & Parenting 
Students Program (PPSP) Coordinator, Lucy was 
considering putting graduation on hold.  The PPSP 
Coordinator quickly recognized Lucy’s overwhelm 
and validated her feelings, securing her role as a 
safe and supportive adult in Lucy’s corner.  The 
Coordinator also collaborated with Lucy’s School 
Counselor, School Nurse, and each of her teachers 
to rally them in support of this student and the very 
real possibility that she could both be a young mom 
and a high school graduate.   

Together the team put their arms around Lucy, who 
harnessed her own grit, determination and will to not only graduate, but serve as her class’ commencement 
speaker.   
  

In 2023-24, SSHS Staff provided 
or supported: 

 18 Pregnant & parenting 
students 

 2,011 Caregiver supports 

 1,032 Academic supports 

 459 Attendance 
interventions 

 2,939 Basic needs supports 

 840 Home visits 



Page 10 of 21 

More Than a Student: The Work in Numbers 

SSHS categorizes the supports we provide using the national, evidence-based Multi-Tiered Systems of Support 
(MTSS) framework.  Like its predecessor, Response to Intervention (RTI), MTSS “is an integrated, comprehensive 
framework that focuses on CCSS, core instruction, differentiated learning, student-centered learning, individualized 
student needs, and the alignment of systems necessary for all students’ academic, behavioral, and social success.8   

According to the California Teacher Association (CTA), “MTSS is a holistic approach for all students9.”  CTA offers 
that Tier 1 “universal” supports are for all students, Tier 2 “targeted” supports are for the 15% of students who need a 
bit more intervention to succeed, and that Tier 3 “intensive” supports are for the 5% of students who have not 
responded to Tier 1 or 2 intervention10. 

TIER 1 - UNIVERSAL SUPPORTS 

SSHS estimates that we provided nearly every student in SCUSD with at least one Tier 1 support in 2024-25.  Our 
Foster Youth & Student Support Services divisions combined to serve 35,079 students - 96% - alone.  We know that 
this is an underrepresentation of Tier 1 support District-wide, as it does not include the work done by Health 
Services.  Similarly in the pie chart below, “Health” supports are underrepresented, and given the evolution of Health 
Services’ data tracking, we anticipate an increase in the percentage of Health supports next year. 

SSHS Tier 1 Supports by Category, 2023-24 

 

 Sample Tier 1 Supports by Category 

ACADEMIC & ATTENDANCE 
● Attendance Events & Outreach 
● Foster Youth College Tours 
● Homeless Identification Outreach 

BASIC NEEDS & RESOURCES 
● Caregiver Engagement 
● Distribution of Food 
● Distribution of Uniforms, School Supplies 

HEALTH 
● Dental, Hearing & Vision Screenings 
● TB Clinic 
● Tobacco Use Prevention Classroom 

Presentations 
MENTAL HEALTH & WELLNESS 

● Consultation 
● Drop-in Support Groups 
● SEL/School Climate Activities 

We collect Tier 1 data using a “dosage” model, meaning that we keep track not only of the types of interventions 
provided, but how many times each student receives a “dosage” of that intervention.  For example, when a school 
social worker or school nurse provides a classroom intervention to thirty students in a class that counts as 30 
dosages.  If that intervention follows, say a twelve-week curriculum, then there would be 360 dosages.  Because only 
Tier 1 data is collected in this way, the numbers for Tier 1 intervention are exponentially higher than Tier 2 and 3 
supports.   

                                                      
8 California Department of Education.  (2024).  Definition of MTSS.  
9, 10 California Teachers Association.  (n.d.).  Multi-tiered system of supports. 

Academic & 
Attendance

23%

Basic Needs 
& Resources

15%

Health
12%

Mental Health 
& Wellness

50%

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/ri/mtsscomprti2.asp#:~:text=The%20California%20Department%20of%20Education's%20(CDE)%20definition%20of%20Multi%2D,Core%20State%20Standards%20(CCSS).
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/ri/mtsscomprti2.asp#:~:text=The%20California%20Department%20of%20Education's%20(CDE)%20definition%20of%20Multi%2D,Core%20State%20Standards%20(CCSS).
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/ri/mtsscomprti2.asp#:~:text=The%20California%20Department%20of%20Education's%20(CDE)%20definition%20of%20Multi%2D,Core%20State%20Standards%20(CCSS).
https://www.cta.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Multi-tiered-Booklet-IPD-PDF.pdf
https://www.cta.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Multi-tiered-Booklet-IPD-PDF.pdf


Page 11 of 21 

TIER 2 - TARGETED SUPPORTS 

With only eighty staff to serve 38,000 students, the Foster Youth and Student Support Services’ divisions supported 
4,951 students (an unduplicated count) with 26,749 Tier 2 interventions during the 2023-24 school year.  Our team 
of 42 school nurses in the Health Services division provided an additional 1,833 Tier 2 interventions. 

SSHS Tier 2 Supports by Category, 2023-24 

 

 Sample Tier 2 Supports by Category 

ACADEMIC & ATTENDANCE 
● Academic Support 
● Attendance Intervention 
● Re-entry Support Meeting 

BASIC NEEDS & RESOURCES 
● Basic Needs Linkage 
● Caregiver Support & Education 
● Legal Assistance Linkage 

HEALTH 
● Daily Direct Medical Care 
● Health Care Plans for Students with Chronic 

Conditions 
● Staff Training for Managing Health Emergencies 

MENTAL HEALTH & WELLNESS 
● Behavior Intervention 
● Mentoring 
● Social/Emotional Support 

CASE MANAGEMENT 
● Individualized assessment; case planning; 

intervention, resource & referral; and monitoring 
with a student, their family, teacher(s), and 
community partners. 

 
  

Academic & 
Attendance

11%

Basic Needs 
& Resources

22%

Health
16%

Mental Health 
& Wellness

42%

Case 
Management

9%



Page 12 of 21 

TIER 3 - INTENSIVE SUPPORTS 

Tier 3 interventions are reserved for those students and families for whom Tier 1 and Tier 2 support is not enough. 
Not only is the nature of these interventions intensive, they can also be incredibly time intensive as well.  In 2023-24, 
3,206 students participated in 6,371 Tier 3 interventions with Foster Youth & Student Support Services staff, while 
our Health Services staff provided an additional 7,200 Tier 3 supports. 

SSHS Tier 3 Supports by Category, 2023-24 

 
 

 Sample Tier 3 Supports by Category 

ACADEMIC & ATTENDANCE 
● AB 1806 Evaluation 
● Home Visit 
● SARB 

BASIC NEEDS & RESOURCES 
● Homeless Program linkage 

HEALTH 
● COVID-19 Contact Tracing 
● Home Hospital/Medical Independent Study 
● Section 504 Accommodation Plans 

MENTAL HEALTH & WELLNESS 
● Crisis Intervention 
● Mental Health linkage 
● Safety (Suicide Risk) Assessment 

PARTNERS IN THE WORK 

It takes a village to support the diverse, unique needs of 38,000 students.  We could not do this work without our 
countless community partners, or the incredible interns that we host and teach each year. 

 
  

Academic & 
Attendance

11%

Basic 
Needs & 

Resources
1%

Health
54%

Mental Health 
& Wellness

34%

hours of service to 
students 

interns 

disciplines 

academic 
institutions 

full time equivalent 
positions  

in-kind service equal 
to 



Page 13 of 21 

More Than a Student: The Work in Photos 

Stories and numbers are powerful communicators; so are photos!  Here are a few of our favorite photos of our work 
in action across the District in 2023-24. 

 



Page 14 of 21 

 



Page 15 of 21 

Looking Ahead 

In 2024-25 and beyond, SSHS will continue to center the wellbeing and achievement of students and families, by 
maintaining the high-quality, evidence-based, responsive supports we have come to be known for across the 
District.  We will also be working on these exciting projects and initiatives:   

● Continuing implementation of the Community Schools model and framework across the District; 

● Opening child care programs for SCUSD’s most vulnerable families through our partnership with Early 
Learning & Care; 

● Bringing the popular and impactful “Girl Inspired” conference back to SCUSD students;  

● Leveraging the California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) once again, ensuring SCUSD representation in this 
statewide data collection effort; 

● Continuing to hire and train School Nurses to increase capacity of providing diabetes direct care for 
students; 

● Launching the Student Mental Wellness Council, increasing youth voice in SCUSD mental health awareness 
and intervention efforts; and  

● Working with District leaders, community partners, and grant-making organizations to sustain the 44% of 
staff funded by exhausted one-time funds. 

  



Page 16 of 21 

Budget & Staffing 

STAFF 

Position # of Positions Total FTE 

Executive Director 1 1.0 

Foster Youth Services Division 

Coordinator II, Foster Youth 1 1.0 

Youth Services Specialist 1 1.0 

Foster Youth Program Associate 7 7.0 

Clerk III 1 1.0 

Division Total 10 10.0 

Health Services Division 

Coordinator II, Health Services 1 1.0 

Coordinator II, 504 & Educational Supports 1 1.0 

Lead School Nurse 2 1.8 

School Nurse 42 38.59 

Health Services Technician 3 3.0 

Health Services Clerk 4 3.625 

Health Aide 15 11.834 

Home Hospital Teacher 5 5.0 

Division Total 73 65.85 

Student Support Services Division 

Director I, Student Support 1 1.0 

Coordinator II, Student Support 1 1.0 

Coordinator I, Mental Health 3 3.0 

Coordinator I, Learning Support 2 2.0 

Program Coordinator, Homeless 1 1.0 

Specialist II, Mental Health/Learning Support 17 17.0 

School Social Worker 43 43.0 

Student & Family Support Specialist 1 1.0 

Youth & Family Mental Health Advocate 7 7.0 

FACE Program Technician 2 2.0 

Clerk II 1 1.0 

Division Total 79 79.0 

Department Total 162 154.85 

  



Page 17 of 21 

FOSTER YOUTH SERVICES DIVISION 

In 2023-24, SSHS’ Foster Youth Services division had a budget of $958,617, 19% of which was funded by COVID-19 
Recovery Funds that are no longer available. 

 

 

 

Central Title I
16%

Title IV
18%

Grants
38%

COVID-19 Learning 
Recover Funds

19%

Contracts
9%

2023-2024 Funding Sources: Foster Youth Services Division, Student Support 

& Health Services Department

Staff
77%

Operations
23%

2023-24 Expenditures: Foster Youth Services Division,

Student Support & Health Services Department



Page 18 of 21 

HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

In 2023-24, SSHS’ Health Services division had a budget of $12,438,302, 39% of which was funded by COVID-19 
Recovery funds that are no longer available.   

 

 

 

General Fund
6%

Central LCFF
20%

Home Hospital
6%

Medi-Cal
7%

School Site & Department Allocations
17%

COVID-19 
Recovery Funds

39%

Grants
5%

2023-24 Funding Sources: Health Services Division, 

Student Support & Health Services Department

Staff
77%

Operations & 504 
Accommodations

18%

Per Diem
5%

2023-24 Expenditures: Health Services Division,

Student Support & Health Services Department



Page 19 of 21 

STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES DIVISION 

In 2023-24, SSHS’ Student Support Services division had a budget of $13,179,512, 53% of which was funded by 
COVID-19 Recovery funds that are no longer available.  

 

 

 
  

Central LCFF
14%

Central Title I
1%

COVID-19 Recovery 
Funds
53%

Homeless COVID-19 
Recovery Funds

2%

General Fund
1%

Medi-Cal
4%

Site Contributions
16%

Title IV
4%

Grants
5%

2023-24 Funding Sources: Student Support Services Division, 

Student Support & Health Services Department

Operations
7%

Staffing
93%

2023-24 Expenditures: Student Support Services Division,

Student Support & Health Services Department



Page 20 of 21 

SCUSD BOARD AND STAFF 

Board of Education 

Lavinia Grace Phillips 
President 
Trustee Area 7 

Jasit Singh 
Vice President 
Trustee Area 2 

Chinua Rhodes 
2nd Vice President 
Trustee Area 5 

Tara Jeane 
Trustee Area 1 

Christina Pritchett 
Trustee Area 3 

Jamee Villa 
Trustee Area 4 

Taylor Kayatta 
Trustee Area 6 

Liliana Miller Segura 
Student Board Member 

 

Superintendent 

Lisa Allen 

Deputy Superintendent 

Mary Hardin Young 

Executive Director, Student Support & Health Services Department 

Jacqueline Garner, LCSW 

Staff, Student Support & Health Services Department 

Aarolind Hoskin Aaron Perry Abigail Serin 
Adriana Martinez Trujillo Alexa Ybarra Aliya Holmes 
Alma Lopez Alysia Nordberg Alyssa Beck 
Amaya Weiss Amber Henrichs Amie Harp 
Ana Roldan Angela Marley Angeline Andal 
Anna Tyulyu Anthony Hasler Araceli Lopez 
Ashley Powers Clark Ashmika Prasad August Ford 
Barbara Brooks Becky Mojica Becky Stroble 
Benjamin Paulsen Bra’Jona Rashada Brigette Logsdon 
Caroline Schrader Celia Del Toro Vargas Chanise Hendrix 
Christina Harris Christina Moua Clarence Wooten 
Courtney Poole Courtney Whitson Crystal Roberson 
Daniel Buffington Daniel Greco Danielle Martin 
Doreen Beyer Elisa Olmo Elise Mejia 
Elizabeth Sterba Emily Herr Erika Heinz 
Erin Ryan Erma Freeman Espie Millendez 
Eva Teresa Hipolito Evelyn Tisdell-Koroma Fumi Tamanaha 
Gabrielle Stewart Gina Bonita Haroon Sirat 
Heather Isakson Irene Bhan Irene Valle 
Iris Acosta Iyves Paraoan Jamie Bateman 
Jan Curry-Taylor Janet Cobos-Gutierrez Jasmyn Washington 
Jeff Marculescu Jenifer Stewart Jenna Gonsalves 
Jennifer Bacsafra Jessi Gray Jessica Gonzalez 
Jessica Kurtz Jessica Sran Jim Brown 
Jonathan Fatta Fedotov Josefa Ramos-Perez Josephine Jones-Pugh 
Julie Kauffman Juri Pena Kacy Kelley 
Karen Hernandez Barajas Kat Zolnikov Kathryn OConnell 
Kathleen Dazzi Keanu Williams Keby Reese 
Kelly Salina Khae Saeteurn Ky Gumns 
Lara Roach Laura Magaña Laura Muñoz 



Page 21 of 21 

Laurisa Elhai Lindsay Hester Lisa Musser 
Liya Semiankovich Liz Echeverria Logan Shideler 
Lora Jones Lynise Perez Mai Vang 
Manuela Murillo Maria Lopez Marisol Ruiz 
Mary Struhs Melisa Claridad Melissa Linck 
Memphis Clark Michelle Rezentes Michelle Vang-Newson 
Michelle Weaver Michelle Woodlyn Mindy Errecalde 
Mirna Perez Missy Panacek Mónica Castañeda Chávez 
Nailah Kokayi Natalí Perez Nho Le-Hinds 
Nicole Castles Nicole M. Montonye Noel Estacio 
Patricia Stradleigh Patricia Bernal Paula Ruud Kuhlman 
Pearla Cruz-Chavez Prescilla Medrano Rachel Webb 
Rebecca Wall Renae Wurschmidt-Owens Rory Christiansen 
Ruby Valeriano Sabrian Khan Sandy Gonzalez 
Sangita Vakis Sara Martinez Sara Morgan 
Sarah Decker Saralyn Bienvenue Shardon Perryman 
Sheridan O’Neal Stephanie Fox Sunaina Sondhi 
Susan Sivils Suzanne Auchterlonie Syeda Shiraz 
Tamara Harrison Tan Tung Teresa Cruz 
Teresa Newell-Busse Terri Stonier Thomas McCready 
Thu Yee Tina Borgman Tina Tran 
Tracy Hewell Starnes Vanessa Petty Verbenina Payton Taylor 
Victor Blanco Vidalyn Kem-Grey Yisel Santacruz 
 



 Page 1 of 1  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1a 

 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 

Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements 
Approval of Bid Awards 
Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
Change Notices 
Notices of Completion 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval of items submitted. 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
Financial Considerations:  See attached. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence    
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 
2. Recommended Bid Awards – Facilities Projects 
3. Change Notices – Facilities Projects 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Janea Marking, Chief Business Officer 

  Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contract Analyst 

Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Superintendent



 Page 1 of 4  

GRANTS, ENTITLEMENTS AND OTHER INCOME AGREEMENTS – REVENUE 

Contractor New Grant   Amount 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

SCOE Leadership Institute 
A24-00205 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$0 
No Match 

Period: 8/1/24 – 6/30/25   Description: Provide a high-quality, comprehensive program that will 
recommend participants for their Preliminary Administrative Credential to the California Commission on 
Teacher Credentialing (CTC) upon successful completion of the program. 
 
HOMELESS SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00206 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$79,060 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/24 – 6/30/25  Description: 2024-2025 Education for Homeless Children and Youth (EHCY) 
Grant. 

 

SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00203-REV 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$54,510 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/24 - 6/30/25  Description: Intent to Submit for the WorkAbility I Request for Applications Grant. 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

California State University, Fresno 
A24-00207 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$0 
No Match 

Period: 10/14/24 - 9/30/27  Description: MOU for CalState TEACH Program for University students who 
hold an intern credential to provide training and experience in teaching. 

 

CHARLES A. JONES DEPARTMENT 

U.S. Department of Education 
A24-00169 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$0 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/24 – 6/30/25  Description: Financial Aid to students in CA Jones’ CTE programs. 
 

CHARLES A. JONES DEPARTMENT 

SETA 
A24-00208 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$0 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/24 - 6/30/25  Description: SETA’s primary function is to evaluate and select candidates who 
will be eligible to take the HiSET® Exam. 
 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

SCOE 
A24-00209 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$500/yr 
No Match 



 Page 2 of 4  

Period: 7/1/24 - 6/30/25  Description: SCOE’s Teacher Intern Program, which is a Commission on 
Teacher Credentialing (CTC) approved two-year Mild to Moderate Support Needs, Multiple and Single 
Subject Mathematics and Science Teacher Intern Credentials Program (Program). 

 

SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00204a 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$373,275 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/24 - 6/30/25  Description: WorkAbility 2024-2025 Final Budget Grant.  Backup documentation 
was presented at the October 24, 2024 Board of Education Meeting. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

California State University, Fresno 
A24-00211 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$0 
No Match 

Period: 10/14/24 - 9/30/27  Description: MOU for CalState TEACH Program for the Student Teaching 
Program through which University students will gain experience in the public school setting. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

Dominican University of California 
A24-00212 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$0 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/24 - 6/30/26  Description: MOU providing coordinating services as part of the Student 
Teaching Program, serving multiple subject, single subject and education specialists, hereafter referred 
to as the “Student Teaching Program”. 

 

TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 

SCOE 
A24-00210 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$0 
No Match 

Period: 10/14/24 - 6/30/27  Description: MOU for Data Sharing and Support. 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
San Diego County Superintendent of 
Schools 
A24-00214 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$0 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/24 - 6/30/27  Description: MOU with the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing.  
Provide credential services for the review of applications for the Adult and Career Technical Education 
Designated Subjects Credentials. 

 

HEALTH PROFESSIONS HS AND PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL  

CSUS 
A24-00215 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$0 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/24 - 6/30/25  Description: MOU to provide civic engagement and experiential learning 
opportunities to enrolled undergraduates ("Fellows") through courses and practical experiences with 
CHPs in K-12 education. 
  

 



 Page 3 of 4  

FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES DEPARTMENT  

City of Sacramento  
A24-00216 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$310,261 
No Match 

Period: 11/7/24 - 5/31/28  Description: Grant to fund urban cooling and resiliency strategies through the 
Sacramento Neighborhood Resilience Pilot Project.  Project will plant trees, install irrigation systems, 
implement low-water landscaping upgrades, distribute air filters, implement trash pick-up events, and 
support disaster preparedness trainings in the designated Project focus areas.  

 

 
CHANGE NOTICES – FACILITIES PROJECTS 
The following change notice is submitted for approval. 

Project: California MS Campus Renewal - Furniture  
 
Recommendation: Campbell Keller was awarded furniture services at the February 1, 2024 Board 

of Education Meeting; Measure H Funds.  Project consists of classroom and 
specialty classroom furniture to be purchased. 

 
 Original Contract Amount: $632,057; Measure H Funds 
 
 Approve Change Order No. 1 $134,489 for additional classroom and 

specialty classroom furniture to be purchased.  
 
 New Contract Amount: $766,546; Measure H Funds 
 
 
Project: Parkway Shade Structure  
 
Recommendation: Patio Designers was awarded construction services at the May 2, 2024 Board 

of Education Meeting; Measure H Funds.  Project consists of construction of 
one (1) 30 ft. x 64 ft. PC shade structure; upgrades to existing toilet rooms and 
path of travel, as required; electrical scope to provide two (2) power 
receptacles at the shade structure.  

 
 Original Contract Amount: $463,000; Measure H Funds 
 
 Approve Change Order No. 1 <$25,000> for Owner’s Unused 

Allowance.  
 
 New Contract Amount: $438,000; Measure H Funds 
  



 Page 4 of 4  

 

Project: Metasys at 14 Sites  
 
Recommendation: Johnson Controls, Inc. was awarded construction services at the November 3, 

2022 Board of Education Meeting; In Person Instructional Grant Funds.  
Project consists of removing, installing and updating building automation 
system to improve efficiencies in ventilation systems at Alice Birney K-8, Ethel 
Baker ES, Ethel Phillips ES, Father Keith B. Kenny ES, New Joseph 
Bonnheim, Success Academy, Pacific ES, Parkway ES, Sutterville ES, 
Woodbine ES, Hiram Johnson HS, John F. Kennedy HS, Luther Burbank HS 
and Capital City. 

 
 Original Contract Amount: $4,129,531; In Person Instructional Grant 

Funds 
 
 Approve Change Order No. 1 $0.00 for Credits used to buy spare 

equipment parts; adjustment for miscount of HVAC units at Capital 
City.  

 
 New Contract Amount: $4,129,531; In Person Instructional Grant 

Funds 
 



 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Leadership Institute 

August 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025 
 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the Sacramento County Office of 
Education’s (SCOE) Leadership Institute and the Sacramento City Unified School District. 
The Sacramento County Office of Education will serve as the provider for a comprehensive, 
Preliminary Administrative Services Credential Program for the education community in the 
Sacramento Region. The Sacramento City Unified School District will partner with the SCOE 
Leadership Institute with the purpose of working closely together to shape the work of the 
program to meet district needs, as well as support participants at all levels. Together, the 
Leadership Institute and the Sacramento City Unified School District will address the growing 
leadership needs of the region.  
 
This memorandum is intended to define the roles and responsibilities of the Leadership Institute 
and the work with districts in the development of the partnership to assist with leadership 
development and skills of participants in the program. Once signed by both parties, this MOU is 
in effect. 
 
 
 
The SCOE Leadership Institute agrees to: 
 

• Provide a high-quality, comprehensive program that will recommend participants for 
their Preliminary Administrative Services Credential to the California Commission on 
Teacher Credentialing (CTC) upon successful completion of the program. 

 
• Notify Superintendent or designee of successful completion of participants in Preliminary 

Administrative Services Credential Program. 
 

 
The Sacramento City Unified School District agrees to: 
 

• Provide a site supervisor to each participant to guide and coach around program 
requirements (i.e., fieldwork, coursework, CalAPA). Participants are to secure a 
volunteer site supervisor and provide the name to the Leadership Institute. Participants 
will use the Profile School of their Site Supervisor for videotaping the cofacilitation of a 
Community of Practice (CalAPA Cycle 2) and the Coaching Cycle of a volunteer teacher 
(CalAPA Cycle 3). Click here to view job description, roles, and responsibilities for site 
supervisor. 

 
• Provide district staff members to serve on End-of-Year Presentation panels. 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 81AC93BB-957C-47BA-B1F7-8CB4E81672D3

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1panYSIx1eaw9ILQbx50rNIChmaoqRlxJ/view?usp=sharing


• Apply the total 342 hours of program credit (15 hours = 1 unit/ 342 hours = 23 units)
towards a candidate’s district professional development hours upon completion of the
program.

Other conditions SCOE Leadership Institute and the Sacramento City Unified School 
District agrees to: 

Non-Discrimination Clause: Any service provided by either party pursuant to this agreement 
shall be without discrimination based on the actual or perceived race, religious creed, color, 
national origin, nationality, ethnicity, ethnic group identification, ancestry, age, marital status, 
pregnancy, physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender, gender 
identity, gender expression, sex, or sexual orientation, in accordance with all applicable Federal 
and State laws and regulations.  

Indemnity:  The SCOE Leadership Institute, defend, and hold harmless the Sacramento City 
Unified School District, its officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all loss, 
cost, damage, expense (including attorney fees), claim, suit, demand, or liability of any kind or 
character to any persons or property arising from or relating to any negligence of the SCOE 
Leadership Institute, its officers, agents, or employees. 

The Sacramento City Unified School District shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
SCOE Leadership Institute, its officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all loss, 
cost, damage, expense (including attorney fees), claim, suit, demand, or liability of any kind or 
character to any persons or property arising from or relating to any negligence of its district, its 
officers, agents, or employees. 

The undersigned represent all collaborative partners of the Leadership Institute and commit to 
ensuring the successful implementation, monitoring, and assistance needed for completion of the 
program. 

For the SCOE Leadership Institute:   
Dr. L. Steven Winlock, Executive Director     
SCOE Leadership Institute 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
Janea Marking 
Chief Business and Operations Officer 

__________________________________ ______________________________ 
Signature and Date     Signature and Date 

Docusign Envelope ID: 81AC93BB-957C-47BA-B1F7-8CB4E81672D3

10/17/2024



California Department of Education
Fiscal Administrative Services Division 
AO-400 (REV. 09/2014) 

Grant Award Notification 
GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS

Sacramento City Unified 
5735 47th Ave.
Sacramento, CA 95824 

CDE GRANT NUMBER

FY PCA Vendor 
Number

Suffix 

24 14332 6743 00

Attention 
Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 

STANDARDIZED ACCOUNT
CODE STRUCTURE

COUNTY 

Program Office
Sacramento City Unified

Resource
Code 

Revenue 
Object Code

34

Telephone 
(916) 643-9000 5630 8290 INDEX 

Name of Grant Program 
Education for Homeless Children and Youth 0510

GRANT 
DETAILS

Original/Prior 
Amendments

Amendment 
Amount

Total
Amend. 

No.

Award 
Starting

Date 

Award 
Ending

Date

$79,059.60 $79,059.60 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 

CFDA 
Number

Federal Grant 
Number

Federal Grant Name Federal Agency 

84.196A S196A210005 Education for Homeless Children and Youth 
U.S. Department of 

Education 

I am pleased to inform you that you have been awarded the 2024-25 Education for Homeless Children and 
Youth (EHCY) Grant. 

This award is made contingent upon the availability of funds. If the Legislature takes action to reduce or defer 
the funding upon which this award is based, then this award will be amended accordingly. 

Please return the original, signed Grant Award Notification (AO-400) and Budget within 10 days of receipt to:

Jennifer Thao, Associate Governmental Program Analyst 
Grant Administration and Support Office 

California Department of Education 
1430 N Street, Suite 6208 

Sacramento, CA 95814-5901 

California Department of Education Contact
Jennifer Thao 

Job Title
Associate Governmental Program Analyst

E-mail Address
JThao@cde.ca.gov

Telephone 
916-319-0717

Signature of the State Superintendent of Public Instruction or Designee Date 
October 3, 2024 

CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT REQUIREMENTS
On behalf of the grantee named above, I accept this grant award. I have read the applicable certifications, 

assurances, terms, and conditions identified on the grant application (for grants with an application process) or 
in this document or both; and I agree to comply with all requirements as a condition of funding.

Printed Name of Authorized Agent Title 

E-mail Address Telephone 

Signature Date 

Janea Marking Chief Business & Operations Officer

janea-marking@scusd.edu (916) 643-9055



CDE Grant Number: 24–14332-6743-00
October 3, 2024 
Page 2 

Grant Award Notification (Continued)

1. The purpose of the EHCY grant is to facilitate the identification, enrollment, attendance, and success in school 
for children and youth experiencing homelessness. In addition, the grant will help ensure children and youth 
experiencing homelessness have equal access to the same free, appropriate public education as provided to 
all other children and youth. General Assurances and Certifications are requirements of grantees as a 
condition of receiving funds. Ensure that your county has a copy of the General Assurances available for 
compliance reviews, complaint investigations, or audits. The General Assurances are available on the 
California Department of Education (CDE) General Assurances web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/fm/generalassurances2024-25.asp. Carryover of EHCY funds is not allowed.

2. The grantee must comply with the requirements that pertain to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 
80 and Section 80.21. Cash disbursements of federal funds must be limited to the actual immediate cash 
requirements of the grantee. When reporting and remitting federal interest to the CDE, please send interest on 
federal cash balances that exceed $100 per year earned on payments to the CDE at the following address: 
California Department of Education, Attention: Cashier’s Office, P.O. Box 515006, Sacramento, CA 95851. 

Fiscal Reports and Payment Process 
3. Grantees are required to submit an annual budget and four expenditure reports (ER) each year. 

Reporting Period for 2024-25 CDE Due Date:
(ER 1) July 1, 2024, through September 30, 2024 October 31, 2024 
(ER 2) October 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024 January 31, 2025 
(ER 3) January 1, 2025, through March 31, 2025 April 30, 2025 
(ER 4) April 1, 2025, through June 30, 2025 July 31, 2025 

Late reports will require a Justification for Late Expenditure Report form to be completed and submitted with 
your Expenditure Report. Failure to submit the required reports will result in an invoice from the CDE for the 
entire amount of any grant funds advanced. Failure to expend the total grant award amount by June 30, 2025, 
may result in a billing due to overpayment of grant funds. 

4. Grantees will receive an initial payment of 50 percent of the grant award after having met all requirements and 
submitting the signed GAN (AO-400) and Budget. The second payment of 20 percent will be disbursed after 
receipt of the second quarterly expenditure report, ER2, if the grantee shows they have spent 50 percent or 
more of the initial payment. The third payment of 20 percent will be disbursed after receipt of the third quarterly 
expenditure report, ER3, if the grantee shows they have spent 50 percent of funds advanced thus far. The final 
payment of up to 10 percent will be disbursed after the grantee has submitted the close-out expenditure report, 
ER4, and required deliverables due July 31, 2025. 

5. If at least 50 percent of the initial payment has not been expended by December 31, 2024, the EHCY 
Expenditure Plan form must be submitted to JThao@cde.ca.gov no later than January 31, 2025. 

6. Budget changes that are more than 10 percent in each line item require advanced approval from the CDE. If 
the grantee wishes to change an approved Budget, a Budget Change Request (BCR) must be submitted. All 
BCRs must be submitted no later than May 15, 2025, to JThao@cde.ca.gov. 

7. EHCY grantees are required to participate in the annual coordinator’s meeting. 

Failure to comply with these conditions may result in suspension of payments under the grant award or 
termination of the grant award. If the CDE determines that the grantee violated the certification by failing to 
carry out these conditions, the grantee may be ineligible for any future grant awards.



California Department of Education 
August 2024 

Grant Administration and Support Office 
2024 Expenditure Report Signature Form 

Program Type: 

Local Educational Agency: 

California Department of Education (CDE) Fiscal Analyst: 

Please select if this is a revised Expenditure Report (ER); if not, leave blank. Select 
which ER this signature form covers: 

Revised 

ER 1 (July 1 – September 30, 2024) Due October 31, 2024 

ER 2 (October 1 – December 31, 2024) Due January 31, 2025

ER 3 (January 1 - March 31, 2025) Due April 30, 2025

ER 4 (April 1 - June 30, 2025) Due July 31, 2025

Budget Change Request (BCR): 

A BCR Form must be submitted if there is a 10 percent change to any one-line item. Are 
you planning to submit a BCR at this time?  

Yes No 



California Department of Education 
August 2024 

Please submit a signed copy of this Signature Form, along with a completed ER 
(Excel file) to your CDE fiscal analyst. 

By signing below, you acknowledge you have reviewed the information entered into this 
Signature Form and Expenditure Report. By signing below, you acknowledge the data 
contained in this report is true and accurate, to the best of your knowledge.  

Program Coordinator Name: 

Program Coordinator Email: 

Program Coordinator Signature: 

Date Signed: 

Program Fiscal Contact Name: 

Program Fiscal Contact Email: 

Program Fiscal Contact Signature: 

Date Signed: 



 
  

 

 

  

  
      

  
  

   

  

   

 

 

   

  

   

 

California Department of Education 
August 2024 

Grant Administration and Support Office 
2024 Budget Signature Form 

Program Type: 

Local Educational Agency: 

Please submit a signed copy of this Signature Form, along with a completed 
budget (Excel file) to your California Department of Education fiscal analyst: 

By signing below, you acknowledge you have reviewed the information entered into this 
Signature Form and budget. By signing below, you acknowledge the data contained in 
this budget is true and accurate, to the best of your knowledge. 

Program Coordinator Name: 

Program Coordinator Email: 

Program Coordinator Signature: 

Date Signed: 

Program Fiscal Contact Name: 

Program Fiscal Contact Email: 

Program Fiscal Contact Signature: 

Date Signed: 



  
 

 
 

 
  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   
        

   
     

   
     

  

      
   

   
 

 

  
        

  
  

  

 
     

      

California Department of Education 
Special Education Division 
2024 WorkAbility I RFA Grant 

Form A 
Intent to Submit an Application for the 

WorkAbility I Request For Applications Grant 

Required Information Response 
Local Educational Agency
Applicant Name 
Program Office 
Award Amount Requested 
Student Enrollment Count 
(placed) 
Student Enrollment Count 
(served) 
Service Location Number 
Authorized Agent 
(Name and Title) 
LEA Contact (Name and Title) 
LEA Contact Email 
LEA Contact Telephone 
LEA Mailing Address 
LEA City 
LEA Zip Code 

To be eligible to apply for the Workability I Request For Applications (WAI RFA) Grant, please return 
this Intent to Submit an Application for the WAI RFA Grant form to the California Department of 
Education (CDE) at the email address below. The CDE will only consider applications from 
organizations from which it has received Form A: Intent to Submit an Application for the WAI RFA 
Grant. The CDE must receive the form by email no later than 5 p.m. on October 16, 2024, with 
“2024 WAI RFA Grant Intent to Submit Application” as the subject line. Applicants will receive a 
confirmation email once the CDE receives this form. 

As stipulated in Education Code Section (EC) 56471(e), applicants must include each of the following 
requirements to be eligible to receive grant funds: 

1. Recruitment: Describe the process and criteria for the referral and marketing of the WAI
Program to students and families. The recruitment process should be noted in district policy
and procedure and include a range of strategies for participation and understanding by all
partners.

2. Assessment: Describe the assessments that evaluate the student’s interests, skills, and
abilities. This may include formal and informal assessments such as student interview,



  
 

 

        
        

        
  

   
 

  

    
  

     
   

 
  

  
 

 
  

   

         
          

     
        

       
       

  

   
       

       
      

   
    

     
       

       
     

    
      

      
     

    

  

2024 WorkAbility I RFA Grant 
Form A: Intent to Submit an Application 

teacher assessment, psychological report, career assessment, interest inventories, 
assessment of student learning style, authentic assessment and portfolios, situational 
assessments, diagnostic vocational testing, and use of joint eligibility procedures with 
other agencies. 

3. Counseling: Describe the counseling services that are available to students, including the
availability of individual and group counseling, self-advocacy training, and the integration of
career and vocational training to enhance postschool outcomes.

4. Pre-employment Skills Training: Describe how pre-employment skills training is
integrated into the curriculum and is provided in both the classroom and community.

5. Vocational Training: Describe how vocational training classes and opportunities with local
businesses are made available to students. Applicants shall also provide information about
how students can enroll in courses based on their interests and abilities, including
vocational classes such as Regional Occupational Programs (ROP), Career Technical
Education (CTE) courses and/or work experience, job shadowing, and/or on the job training
to meet vocational goals. Additionally, this section should also contain information on how
the student’s course of study is coordinated to include career/vocational classwork
supporting post-secondary goals for education/training and employment with related work
experience, and how evaluation and feedback is provided.

6. Student Wages for Try-out Employment: It is a grant requirement that grantees place
into employment at least 15 percent of the students for whom funding was received.
Describe the district policy to ensure students will be placed in temporary, grant-
funded, paid work experience opportunities to meet program goals. Applicants should
also include information about how the program will assess, monitor, and support
students through work experience and how student work evaluation and progress is
integrated into the transition planning process.

7. Placement in Unsubsidized Employment: Along with temporary, grant-funded
employment opportunities, WAI grantees must also provide students with opportunities
for employer-paid work experience. Describe how the program will coordinate efforts to
assist students in obtaining employment within their post-secondary employment goals,
including providing job leads, training on completing applications, resumes, and
interviews, participation in job fairs and employment panels.

8. Other Assistance with Transition to a Quality Adult Life: Describe how the program
will learn of and develop materials regarding local community services and support
agencies to assist students transition to a quality adult life. Include information about
interagency agreements and shared responsibilities with transition partners such as
the Employment Development Department (EDD), Department of Rehabilitation
(DOR), Regional Centers, Mental Health and Education Agencies, and other
community-based organizations (CBOs). Description may include activities involving
joint planning on-going communication, job placement, assessment, family
involvement, and student support services.



  
  

  

 

 
  

   
    

 

  
 

  

  
 

  
 

  

   
       

   

  

     

     

    
       

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

2024 WorkAbility I RFA Grant 
Form A: Intent to Submit an Application 

9. Utilization of an Interdisciplinary Advisory Committee to Enhance Project Goals:
Describe how the program will participate or establish an Advisory Team with key local
partners; how the program will incorporate input from the Advisory Team into their local WAI
program; and how the Advisory Team will promote program goals, youth issues, and
community partnerships.

Does your organization adhere to each of these statutory requirements? Please check the 
appropriate answer. 

Yes No 

Additional information can be found in the WAI RFA Grant Request for Applications, Section V. 
Eligibility Requirements. 

Has your organization previously done any business with the CDE? Please check the 
appropriate answer. 

Yes No 

If an applicant has not done previous business with the CDE, please complete and return the Payee 
Data Record—form STD-204, with the applications, available at the California Department of Genteral 
Services web page: http://www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/dgs/fmc/pdf/std204.pdf. 

Return this form to: 

Special Education Division, Programs and Partnerships email: Workability1@cde.ca.gov 

Subject line: 2024–25 WAI RFA Grant Intent to Submit Application 

Signature of Authorizing Official: By signing this document, I certify this organization is eligible to 
apply for Workability I RFA Grant funding, and the application will fulfill all statutory and regulatory 
requirements related to this funding. 

Print Name and Title of Authorized Agent: 

Signature of Authorized Agent: Date  Signed:   

mailto:Workability1@cde.ca.gov
http://www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/dgs/fmc/pdf/std204.pdf


Program Requirements for RFA 2024-2025 

Recruitment: 

Recruitment is an important part of the SCUSD WAI program. First, at the beginning of the year a letter 

is mailed to the parents of special education high school students. The letter provides a description of 

Workability, the transition services offered, and how students can participate in transition activities. In 

addition, the letter directs parents to the SCUSD WorkAbility Website, which provides further 

information and contact details (https://sites.google.com/scusd.edu/workability/home).Next, 

Workability staff are assigned to each high school where they invite parents, students and case 

managers to a Google Classroom tailored to their school program. In this Google Classroom, there are 

transition resources such as Work Experience applications/DOR applications, resume writing lessons, 

assessments and other activities. Furthermore, since it is SCUSD district policy to have a Transition Plan 

written into the IEP by the students’ 16th birthday, Workability staff make sure to share information 

about the students they work with and the transition skills students have learned and/or are lacking. 

This provides case managers with data to build a quality Individual Transition Plan for the student. The 

Sacramento City Unified School District assist further, with recruiting, by hiring Employment Coaches 

and Transition Assistants for the WAI program with “recruitment of students and families” clearly listed 

under the job duties, so it is part of the district policies and procedures. Finally, the SCUSD WAI program 

continues to use their Job Developer for community outreach and market the program to outside 

agencies and employers. The Job Developer achieves this through a range of activities such as, in person 

meetings, emails, phone calls and Zoom meetings. The WAI program recruit these employers and 

agencies by providing the Job Developer as a point of contact who is easily accessible to answer 

questions and/or concerns. The Job Developer continues to serves as a point of contact for 

parents/students in Work Experience. The goal is, for all stakeholders to have a clear understanding of 

the program, and participation in the SCUSD WAI program is a partnership promoting collaboration. 

Participation of employers can range from, providing their site as a training site for subsidized student 

employment, unpaid internship opportunities, job shadowing, and site tours. 

 

Assessment: 

The SCUSD WAI program uses a variety of different assessments. Some of these are hard copy 

consumable assessments and others are online. Some of the hard copy assessments include “Careers for 

Me Plus” (https://careerkids.com/products/careers-for-me-plus-interest-inventory-for-grades-6-9-pack-

of-25); “Careers for Me SN” (https://careerkids.com/collections/careers-for-me/products/careers-for-

me-sn-for-lower-functioning-special-needs-students-pack-of-25) and “Transition to Work Inventory” 

(https://www.clsr.ca/product/transition-to-work-inventory-3rd-edition-twi/). The websites above show 

what each assessment includes and how to administer it. Some of the most common online assessments 

the SCUSD WAI program uses are the Onet Interest Profiler (https://www.mynextmove.org/explore/ip) 

and budgeting assessments that can be found at California Career Zone 

(https://www.cacareerzone.org/). In the past, SCUSD WAI has used assessments in Virtual Job Shadow 

but due to funding, the program can no longer afford the subscription fee. The WAI program plans to 

meet with seniors individually and administer an informal transition interview to determine the 

students’ post-secondary goals, if they are making the progress on achieving those goals, and what the 

https://sites.google.com/scusd.edu/workability/home
https://careerkids.com/products/careers-for-me-plus-interest-inventory-for-grades-6-9-pack-of-25
https://careerkids.com/products/careers-for-me-plus-interest-inventory-for-grades-6-9-pack-of-25
https://careerkids.com/collections/careers-for-me/products/careers-for-me-sn-for-lower-functioning-special-needs-students-pack-of-25
https://careerkids.com/collections/careers-for-me/products/careers-for-me-sn-for-lower-functioning-special-needs-students-pack-of-25
https://www.clsr.ca/product/transition-to-work-inventory-3rd-edition-twi/
https://www.mynextmove.org/explore/ip
https://www.cacareerzone.org/


student needs, as far as documents and ID’s in order to be ready to transition out of high school. In 

previous years, this informal transition interview was given to all students who were over 15 years old, 

but the SCUSD WAI program has decided to use resources differently and only give this assessment to 

seniors. Another assessment SCUSD WAI provides, when requested, is the Brigance Transition Skills 

Inventory. This is a formal assessment used for students with more significant disabilities such as 

student with Intellectual Disabilities. The SCUSD WAI program continues to share information from 

these assessments with the case managers to assist in transition planning. The information is also 

shared with SCUSD WAI staff to determine which activities the student can benefit from most. Evidence 

of these assessments being shared can be found in emails to case managers, copies of consumable 

assessments and saved files in WAI staff Google drives. 

 

Counseling: 

The SCUSD WAI program assigns a staff member to each high school in the district. These WAI staff 

collaborate with students, families, case managers, school staff, and community stakeholders to provide 

a variety of supports such as: individual/group vocational/transition counseling, on campus work 

experience, off campus work experience, community based volunteering, post-secondary workshops, 

and guide students to programs that will progress their post-secondary goals. The SCUSD WAI program 

plans to use individual counseling for seniors and shift towards a workshop model to provide transition 

services to all other grades. One of the Workshops will focus on self-advocacy topics, which will include, 

how to talk to your employer about your disability, what people in the workplace should know about 

your disability, how to talk to your college professor about your disability, and how private should you 

be about your disability. With this shift, focused on workshops, the SCUSD WAI program will use 

resources more efficiently to provide transition skill to more students. Although the SCUSD WAI 

program is moving towards group counseling for 9th – 11th grades, there will be exceptions for students, 

parents or case managers who request Workability one on one assistance. Finally, the SCUSD WAI 

program is on the advisory counsel for the Career Technical Education (CTE) program. SCUSD WAI 

provides advice and strategies to the CTE on how to involve students with disabilities in their training 

programs and best practices for working with student with disabilities. Furthermore, the SCUSD WAI 

program also attends an annual counselors meeting for all high school counselors where WAI presents 

an overview about Workability and services that are available to student with disabilities.  

 

Pre-Employment Skills Training: 

SCUSD Workability provides pre-employment training for high school students with a disability. Pre-

employment training is delivered through a variety of methods such as, individually, small group 

workshops, classroom lessons, and guest speakers. The workshops offered this year pertaining to pre-

employment skills are: resume writing, interview skills/practice, and work ethics. SCUSD WAI also 

provides teachers with resources via Google Classroom and CaCareerZone.org to help with lessons on 

transition/pre-employment skills. The WAI staff on campus is available to help teachers who want to 

incorporate transition skills into their lessons. SCUSD WAI plans to expand the amount of pre-

employment workshops provided, to bolster these skills, along with networking with outside agencies 

such Americas Job Centers and College Technical Education. When a student participates in a WAI pre-



employment workshop, the information is shared with the case manager to be discussed at the 

student’s IEP with the parents. In addition, students are informed of job fairs and transition fairs by 

WorkAbility staff through the Google Classroom and flyers emailed to case managers. SCUSD WAI 

provides assistance applying to these programs that offer pre-employment services such as STEPS, DOR 

Student Services and volunteer opportunities. SCUSD WAI plans to search and gather more guest 

speakers who can provide pre-employment advice and guidance. The kind of speakers WAI is looking for 

are people with interesting careers, managers who hire employees, and people who have disabilities but 

are successful in the workplace. Unfortunately, due to funding, it is not likely that SCUSD WAI will be 

able to take students on field trips. However, if funding is available, SCUSD WAI would like to hold an in-

person transition fair at the district office, where local businesses, community organizations, employers, 

and vocational programs can be involved in providing pre-employment advice to students. Students 

from all the SCUSD high schools would come to this transition fair as a field trip on buses. The DOR 

Transition Partnership Program also provides pre-employment training to students. SCUSD WAI 

promotes this program and assists students to apply to it. 

 

Vocational Training: 

The Sacramento City Unified School District offers CTE vocational training classes such as auto 

mechanics and culinary. These programs provide students with valuable, real life education, focused on 

careers students can pursue. SCUSD WAI attends CTE advisory meetings to give suggestions and 

resources for students with disabilities and ways they can be included in CTE programs. In the summer, 

the CTE has their “Summer Career Launchpad” which includes special education students. SCUSD WAI 

provided CTE with a suggested outline and advice on how to organize such a program. SCUSD WAI plans 

to continue to collaborate and strengthen this partnership. SCUSD WAI also organizes a summer, fall and 

spring Work Experience Program where students are placed at a work site. These students work 60 

hours and are provided job training and real life work experience they can put on their resume. SCUSD 

tries to place students at job sites related to their post-secondary goals. At the end of the Work 

Experience Program, the students’ supervisors fill out an evaluation form about the students’ 

performance. This allows SCUSD WAI to find out what vocational skills the student are excelling at and 

what vocational skills they are lacking. This information is shared with case managers to help with 

transition planning and to parents at the IEP. If there are more students who are requesting work 

experience than SCUSD WAI has funding for, the Workability staff refers/helps students apply to other 

vocational training programs such as STEPS, the DOR TPP program, the DOR Student Services Program, 

and other community work experience programs. 

 

Student Wages for Try-out Employment: 

The Sacramento City Unified School district continues to have policies and procedures to ensure the 

safety of students placed in subsidized employment. Any student under WAI and TPP are insured under 

the SCUSD Workers Compensation Policy. These students are considered student employees of the 

Sacramento City Unified School District and are paid minimum wage. The work sites where students are 

placed are considered training sites. These sites sign a “Training Site Agreement” which outlines the 

expectations of both the Training Site and Work Experience student. A WAI staff monitors each Work 



Experience student and can be contacted by the student with questions or concerns. They advise the 

Work Experience students on how to handle situations at work and focus on prompting the students to 

take part in self-advocacy. This staff member also serves as the point of contact for the Training Site in 

case any issues arise. The staff offers advice and solutions to the Training Site about working with 

students with disabilities and, when needed, collaborate with the Training Site about a work plan (such 

as a routine/schedule of duties). As part of their duties, the WAI staff documents progress and any 

difficulties the student encounters. This information is shared with the case manager and is used to 

build the student’s Transition Plan. Information about the Training Site’s evaluation of the student’s 

performance is shared with the case manager as well, to aid in transition planning. The ultimate goal is 

to have Work Experience Students hired by the Training Site. Recently, the SCUSD WAI program had 

three students who were hired after their work experience program ended and five students who were 

offered a job but decided not to take it due to school obligations. The Training sites who hired students 

and offered were Walgreens, CVS, and afterschool childcare programs. 

 

Placement in Unsubsidized Employment: 

SCUSD WAI continues to have its main goal be, to have students find permanent, unsubsidized, 

Competitive Integrated Employment. SCUSD WAI and the DOR Transition Partnership Program continue 

to use their relationships with community employers to find out when they are hiring. These job leads 

are posted on a Google Classroom, job boards and communicated to students individually. Another way 

WAI and TPP continue to promote students obtaining unsubsidized employment is to provide services to 

help students independently job search. WAI and TPP continue to conduct workshops and individual 

sessions with students on completing master applications, writing resumes (general and targeted, 

depending on the needs of the students), and preparing for interviews (ie. Moc interviews, what to wear 

to an interview, and what to say at an interview). If a student has a specific job that they are focused on 

obtaining, WAI and TPP continue to provide assistance with more targeted services such as a resume 

specifically designed for that position, interview questions that are targeted for that job position and 

online research to make sure the student is knowledgeable about the products/services the employer 

provides. The SCUSD WAI program and the DOR Transition Partnership Program also promote job fairs 

and career fairs to students by emailing flyers to case managers and students, posting them on Google 

Classroom, and providing them to students during 1-1 meetings.  

 

Other Assistance with Quality Adult Lives: 

Every year, the SCUSD WAI program provides foundational skills and resources to students. These 

resources are designed to help students live productive, quality, adult lives after they graduate high 

school. In order to do this, the SCUSD WAI staff attends online and in person meetings/trainings to stay 

up to date on services/programs that can benefit the students. Some examples of 

Presentations/Trainings that the SCUSD WAI staff attend are: Junior College presentations in 

collaboration with the disability resource centers; Local Program Agency meetings that promote sharing 

information about resources (both local and federal) to help students with post-secondary transition; 

WAI region meetings where WAI colleges can collaborate and discuss effective ways to help students 

transition into the real world; Job Corps Community Relations Luncheons; Guest speakers from the 



California Resources Services for Independent Living and America’s Job Centers; and Alta Regional 

Center presentations. The information acquired at these meetings/trainings is dispersed to SCUSD WAI 

staff, case managers, parents, and students during IEPs/meetings/conversations and are used to create 

workshops/services, along with informational packets for students. Current services and guest speakers 

SCUSD WAI has hosted are financial literacy, age of majority information, ASVAB practice tests, DMV 

permit practice tests, food handlers certificate trainings, and FAFSA assistance. The WAI teams are 

always adding/updating these services annually. The services are provided in group workshops, 

individual sessions, and online platforms like Google Classroom. Along with providing theses essential 

services, SCUSD WAI also strives to link students with outside agencies who will support students in 

leading quality adult lives. Based on the student needs, SCUSD WAI will advise students and parents 

about organizations that will benefit them. Some benefits/resources these organizations provide are, 

transportation, interview clothes, adult work experience, vocational skills, tuition assistance, and other 

services that promote a quality adult life. Agencies SCUSD WAI regularly links students to, are (but not 

limited to), the DOR, Alta Regional Centers, One Stop Centers, City College DSPS, and Job Corps. 

 

Utilization on and Interdisciplinary Advisory Committee to Enhance Project Goals: 

The SCUSD WAI program understands the importance of progressing and improving the program each 

year. A critical part of the program’s improvement is listening to key, local, stakeholders’ critiques and 

praises, to determine which parts of the program should be adjusted, discarded, or kept. Some of the 

advisors that contribute towards the improvement of the SCUSD WAI program are, the SCUSD Fiscal 

Team, the Community College Disability Resource Centers, Department of Rehabilitation Student 

Services and Transition Partnership Program, Alta Regional Center, Safe Credit Union, ASSES After School 

Programs, CVS, Walgreens, SCUSD College and Career Program, College Technical Education Program, 

Other Region 4 WorkAbililty programs, and DOR Local Program Agencies. Based upon feedback from 

these organizations the WorkAbility program strived to meet goals for this year and set new goals for 

the 2024-2025 school year. Some of the goals the SCUSD WAI program achieved, recently, were: A 

uniform transition assessment was implemented for SCUSD case managers; DOR Student Services and 

DOR TPP worked out a system for which students would be served by which program and how the 

WorkAbility staff were utilized in this process; An onboarding packet was created and given to newly 

hired team members; All high schools were given a presentation by WAI staff about the services SCUSD 

WAI provides; WorkAbility Coordinator collaborated more effectively with the SCUSD fiscal team and 

found/fixed inaccuracies in the accounting system; All grant deadlines were met on time; More work 

experience placements were provided to students; guest speakers for financial literacy were obtained; 

and more trainings were provided for the WAI staff. Goals that SCUSD WAI are currently working on, 

based upon the feedback provided, is to: Create a more organized system to record documentation of 

services; Create more workshops on transition skills for students; Find more guest speakers to present 

to students; Adjust the staffing of the WAI team due to salaries and benefits; Collaborate with more 

principals/counselors to make workshops run smoothly; and Collaborate with Safe Credit Union for 

larger presentation on financial literacy. 

 



 

 
California State University’s CalStateTEACH Program 

Memorandum of Understanding and Agreement 
For the Employment of University Students Who Have an Intern Credential 

This agreement is between the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) and the 
California State University’s CalStateTEACH Program (“University”), who may be referred to 
collectively as the parties. This Agreement describes and confirms the expectations and 
responsibilities of the Parties regarding the Internship Program through which University students 
who hold an intern credential from the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (“Paid 
Interns”) will gain experience in the public school setting. This agreement does not apply to unpaid 
service learning placements that are part of a credentialing program. 

 
RECITALS 

 
CalStateTEACH operates a program for the education and training of candidates pursuing a 
California Preliminary Multiple Subject Teaching Credential with English Learner Authorization 
(ELA) and is accredited by the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) with 
approval to offer intern options in these programs. 

The District is authorized under Education Code 44320 et seq., to cooperate with institutions of 
higher education in providing training and experience to credential candidates who hold an intern 
credential ("Paid Intern"). 

 
One or more District employees who are credentialed, experienced faculty members at a District 
high school, middle school, or elementary school have agreed to be responsible for a class or 
classes assigned to a credential candidate and may be referred to below as mentor teachers. 

 
University employs one or more experienced credentialed teachers, administrators, or faculty who 
have agreed to provide direct classroom supervision and support to credential candidates and 
mentor teachers. Such individuals may be referred to below as university supervisors. 

 
TERM OF THE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement shall remain in effect for a term of 3 years beginning October 14, 2024 and ending 
September 30, 2027, unless terminated sooner. Either party may terminate this Agreement on 30 
days’ written notice to the other party; provided, however, that credential candidates shall be 
allowed to conclude any ongoing assignments. Performance under this Agreement shall be 
reviewed annually, and the parties may agree to annual extensions after expiration of the initial 
term. 

 
CTC REQUIREMENTS FOR SUPPORT AND SUPERVISION OF INTERN TEACHERS 

In 2013, the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) adopted policies that 
specify the number of hours of general support and supervision, as well as additional specific 
English learner support and supervision, which must be provided to Paid Interns. The 
regulations

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9



 

 
(California Education Code §44321; 5 Cal. Code Reg. § 80033) were approved and made part of 
law effective 2014. 

Under the approved regulations, the University and District must ensure: 
• A minimum of 144 hours per year (72 hours per semester) of support/mentoring 

and supervision must be provided to each Paid Intern including coaching, modeling, 
and demonstrating within the classroom, assistance with course planning and 
problem- solving regarding students, curriculum, and development of effective 
teaching methodologies. 

• A minimum of two hours of support/mentoring and supervision must be provided 
to an intern teacher every five instructional days. 

• The District must identify a mentor or other designated individual who meets 
the Commission’s specified criteria prior to a Paid Intern assuming daily 
teaching responsibilities. 

• An additional 45 hours per year (23 hours per semester} of support/mentoring and 
supervision specific to meeting the needs of English learners is required for a Paid 
Intern who enters the program without a valid English learner authorization listed on a 
previously issued Multiple Subject, Single Subject, or Education Specialist Teaching 
Credential or a valid English Learner Authorization or Cross-cultural, Language and 
Academic Development (CLAD) Certificate. The additional hours of support can be 
provided by the credential program and/or the district employed mentor. The 
individual(s)providing this support must hold a valid California Teaching Credential 
with a valid English Learner Authorization or Cross-cultural Language and Academic 
Development (CLAD) Certificate. 

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL ADMINISTRATOR RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. Prior to the Paid Intern’s first day as teacher of record, provide each Paid Intern with a 

certified, experienced district-employed mentor/liaison who will work collaboratively 
with the University Supervisor to support the Paid Intern in achieving competency in 
the Teaching Performance Expectations. District will provide documentation of 
appropriate credentialing of district-employed supervisor as needed. 

2. Identify a District-employed supervisor who serves as an evaluator for the Paid Intern. 
3. Model balanced and comprehensive reading/language arts instruction; effectively 

teach the state-adopted core curriculum; and model instruction based on the state-
adopted academic content standards: 

a. Phonics and structured reading development 
b. Incorporation of California Dyslexia Guidelines 
c. Incorporation of elements of California Comprehensive Plan  

4. Provide new teacher orientation, on-going support and other clinical/ professional 
experiences for Paid Interns teaching in the District's schools under the supervision of 
a district-employed mentor/liaison. 

5. Provide release time for participation in district group/regional group meetings and 
professional development activities including time to observe other exemplar 
teachers teaching in their classrooms. 

6. District will immediately notify University if the District has knowledge of or 
suspects any professional or ethical violations by a Paid Intern. University will 

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9



 

cooperate with District in any investigation concerning the reported violation. 
7. District will instruct intern in school policies regarding child abuse reporting, 

sexual harassment, and professional conduct. 
8. The District is aware of and informed about the hazards currently known to be associated 

with the novel coronavirus referred to as “COVID-19”. The District is familiar with and 
informed about the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) current guidelines 
regarding COVID-19 as well as applicable federal, state and local governmental directives 
regarding COVID-19. The District to the best of its knowledge and belief, is in compliance 
with those current CDC guidelines and applicable governmental directives. If the current 
CDC guidelines or applicable governmental directives are modified, changed, or updated, 
the District will take the steps to comply with the modified, changed, or updated guidelines 
or directives. If at any time the District becomes aware that it is not in compliance with CDC 
guidelines or an applicable governmental directive, it will notify the CalStateTEACH 
Regional Director.  

UNIVERSITY DUTIES 
1. University will work collaboratively with the District's HR department, school site 

administration, and staff in the assignment of the intern. 
2. University will guarantee that Paid Interns have met California Commission for Teacher 

Credentialing (CTC) requirements for an intern credential (Certificate of Clearance, 
basic skills competence, subject matter competence, negative tuberculosis test, U.S. 
Constitution) and University requirements (satisfactory completion of course work that 
meets the CTC pre-service requirement, a copy of the district offer of employment) 
prior to recommending the candidate for an intern credential. 

3. University will confer regularly with District and site administration and 
district-employed mentor/liaison through meetings, telephone calls, and/or e-
mail. 

4. University will immediately notify appropriate District and site administration if 
University administration has knowledge of or suspects any professional or ethical 
violations by a Paid Intern in the school. District will cooperate with the University 
in any investigation concerning the reported violation. 

5. University will guarantee that the Paid Intern and university supervisors have 
appropriate TB and fingerprinting clearance. 

6. University will instruct Paid Interns in state laws regarding child abuse reporting, 
sexual harassment, and professional conduct. 

7. University supervisors will conduct systematic and regular observations of Paid 
Interns’ performances in the District's classrooms. 

8. University supervisors will confer regularly with district-employed mentor/liaison 
and with the site administration through meetings, telephone calls, and/or e-mail. 

UNIVERSITY SUPERVISOR AND DISTRICT-EMPLOYED MENTOR/LIAISON 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Collaborate to ensure that the Paid Intern receives a minimum of two hours 
of support/mentoring and supervision every five instructional days. 

2. Collaborate to ensure that the Paid Intern receives specific support and supervision 
in addressing the needs of English Language Learners. 

3. Use the list of activities that satisfy CTC support and supervision requirements to assist 
the Paid Intern in identifying and participating in a broad range of experiences to 
support his/her growth as a teacher. 

4. Assist the Paid Intern in creating networks with faculty, staff, and administrators who 

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9



 

can provide additional support. 

PAID INTERN RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. Document required hours weekly. 
2. Have the required hours verified by both the University Supervisor and District-employed 

mentor/liaison to ensure that he/she is receiving the required support/mentoring and 
supervision. 

DISTRICT DISCRETION 
It is at the sole discretion of the District to hire a University candidate for a Paid Intern position 
and to terminate the assignment in accordance with District policies and procedures. The District 
will notify the University of any Review that could result in termination. The University will 
notify the CTC to withdraw the intern credential of a Paid Intern who is terminated by the 
District. 

LIABILITY INSURANCE 
The University shall take out and maintain a “claims-made” policy of general liability and 
professional liability insurance (including personal injury with limits not less than $1 million per 
loss and damage to property of others up to $5,000 per incident), with extended reporting period 
of three (3) years, covering Student Teachers, and naming District as an additional named insured 
under such insurance policy or policies. Further, University agrees to maintain professional and 
comprehensive general liability insurance, with no exclusion for molestation or abuse, at a 
minimum of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence and Twenty Million Dollars 
($20,000,000) in aggregate throughout the course of this Agreement. 

 
Further, University shall provide written notice that should any of the above described policies be 
canceled before the expiration thereof, notice will be delivered in accordance with the policy 
provisions.  
 
University shall provide certificates evidencing all coverage referred to in this Section within thirty 
(30) days of execution of this Agreement and thereafter, on an annual basis. If the coverage is on 
a claims-made basis, University hereby agrees that not less than thirty (30) days prior to the 
effective date of termination of University’s current insurance coverage or termination of this 
Agreement, University shall either purchase three (3) year tail coverage per claim or provide proof 
of continuous coverage in the above stated amounts for all claims arising out of incidents occurring 
prior to termination of University’s current coverage or prior to termination of this Agreement, as 
applicable, and provide District a certificate of insurance evidencing such coverage. 

The University is permissibly self-insured through the State of California for automobile liability. 
 

The District shall maintain automobile liability, general liability, workers' compensation and errors 
and omissions liability coverages for themselves and their respective employees. Errors or 
omissions liability coverage shall include coverage for negligence relating to alleged sexual 
misconduct and shall be on an occurrence basis. Automobile liability coverage must apply to 
owned, non-owned and hired automobiles. The required coverage may be provided by way of 
adequately documented individual or pooled self-insurance.

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9



 

 
The District shall be named as an additional insured or covered party on the liability coverages 
maintained by the University, and such coverages shall be primary to any coverages maintained 
by the District. Limits of liability for each type of liability coverage shall be at least $1 million per 
claim per occurrence/ $2 million aggregate. 

District shall maintain workers' compensation coverage applicable to its employees, including Paid 
Interns. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
University shall defend, indemnify and hold District and its officials, employees and agents, 
harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury 
or damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only in proportion to and to the 
extent such liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury or damages are caused by 
or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of University, its officials, agents, or 
employees. 

District shall defend, indemnify and hold University, its officials, employees and agents, harmless 
from and against any and all liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury or damage 
arising out of the performance of this Agreement but only in proportion to and to the extent such 
liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury or damages are caused by or result from 
the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of District, its officials, agents, or employees. 

 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

1. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to create a joint venture, 
partnership, principal-agent or employment relationship between the parties and neither 
party shall have the authority to bind the other party for any purpose. 

2. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be governed and 
construed by the laws of the State of California. Any lawsuit concerning or arising out of 
this Agreement shall be venued in the county in which the District is located. 

3. This Agreement supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings 
between the parties, both oral and written, with respect to its subject matter and constitutes 
the complete agreement and understanding between the parties, unless modified in a writing 
executed by both parties. 

4. In the event of a dispute between the parties arising from this Agreement, the parties agree 
to mediate the dispute before initiating litigation. The Parties agree that with regard to any 
dispute or claim related to this Agreement, prior to the initiation of a lawsuit or other legal 
action, they shall and must, in good faith, submit the claim or dispute to mediation with any 
mutually agreeable neutral. The costs of the neutral will be split equally between the Parties. 
The prevailing party shall be entitled to recovery from the losing party the prevailing party’s 
reasonable expenses (fees and costs) incurred in the lawsuit or legal action as allowed by 
law. 

5. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, that 
provision shall be amended to achieve as nearly as possible the same effect as the original 
provision, and the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

6. No delay or failure by either party to act in the event of a breach or default hereunder shall 

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9



be construed as a waiver of that or any succeeding breach or a waiver of the provision itself. 
7. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an

original as against any party whose signature appears and all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

Signed this date of . 

______________________________________________________________ 
Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer
Sacramento City Unified School District 

   ______________________________________________________________ 
Brian Cotham, Director of Procurement and Support Services 
California State University’s CalStateTEACH 

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9

10/18/2024

Brian Cotham (Oct 18, 2024 14:24 PDT)
Brian Cotham 10/18/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: 26906AFF-E201-4FEE-9F35-CDB16C9C354E



Docusign Envelope ID: 26906AFF-E201-4FEE-9F35-CDB16C9C354E



Docusign Envelope ID: 26906AFF-E201-4FEE-9F35-CDB16C9C354E



Docusign Envelope ID: 26906AFF-E201-4FEE-9F35-CDB16C9C354E



Docusign Envelope ID: 26906AFF-E201-4FEE-9F35-CDB16C9C354E



Docusign Envelope ID: 26906AFF-E201-4FEE-9F35-CDB16C9C354E



Lisa Allen Superintendent

Docusign Envelope ID: 26906AFF-E201-4FEE-9F35-CDB16C9C354E

10/15/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: 26906AFF-E201-4FEE-9F35-CDB16C9C354E



10/23/2024



2024-2025 HiSET® SERVICE AGREEMENT 

Attachment 1 

This agreement is designed to establish a plan of action that encompasses employment, training and/or specialized service activities necessary for 
ensuring a customer’s entry into and/or maintenance of unsubsidized employment. Vendors/Training Providers submitting invoice(s) to SETA’s 
Fiscal Department must include a signed copy of this Training Center Agreement. Invoices submitted without a Training Center Agreement will 
not be paid. 

NOTE: The information included in this plan represents a general plan of services and is not an entitlement to such services or a 
contract between the participant and the SETA program. 

CUSTOMER NAME: ETS #: / SS#: 
(Please Print Legibly) 

CUSTOMER E-MAIL: 
CUSTOMER PHONE: 

COACH NAME: 
(Please Print Legibly) 

COACH PHONE: COACH FAX: 
REFERRING AJCC CENTER: 

FUNDING CATEGORY: 

SERVICE CATEGORY: 

WIOA/ Adult/Activity: HiSET® Test 

WIOA/ Dislocated Worker/Activity:  HiSET® Test 

WIOA/ Youth/Activity:  HiSET® Test 

SERVICE INFORMATION 
WIOA Enrollment/Registration Case/State Import #:  

SERVICE PROVIDER:  CHARLES A JONES CAREER & EDUCATION CENTER 

ADDRESS: CITY/STATE/ZIP:  5451 LEMON HILL AVENUE SACRAMENTO, CA 95824 

 PHONE: 916-395-5802 EXT. 701059  FAX:  916-433-2635 

CONTACT PERSON:  Eileen Prince 

PLANNED SERVICE: HiSET Testing 

SUBJECT/COURSE:  Complete HiSET Test Battery 

EXPENSES and FUNDING SUMMARY DETAIL 

Category Funding Type Amount 

Full Hiset Testing Battery 

Customer Signature:  Date: 

Coach Signature:   Date: 

Site Supervisor Signature: Date: 

Vendor Signature/Title:  Date:  

UPDATED 10-14-2024 



Attachment 2



Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center | 5451 Lemon Hill Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824 | 916.395.5800

C A J  H i S E T ® T e s t i n g
FEES ARE NOT REFUNDABLE

Test: Complete 5-Subtest Battery (BEST VALUE - available to 1st-time examinees ONLY) . . . . . . . . . . .$150.00
Subtest – SINGLE - (includes $20 State Fee and two retest attempts) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .$60.00
Subtest – RESET (includes two retest attempts within a 12-month period) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .$40.00

SCHEDULING, CHANGING, OR CANCELLING TESTING APPOINTMENTS MUST 
BE DONE IN PERSON, AT LEAST 1 BUSINESS DAY PRIOR TO TESTING DATE. A 

GOVERNMENT ISSUED PHOTO ID & HiSET® HOMEPAGE ARE REQUIRED.

TESTING SCHEDULE

Registration and Scheduling
• To register for the HiSET® exam test takers must first create an user account at hiset.org

to establish a "HiSET ID number". Once HiSET ID number is established, a confirmation
email will be sent to testers. Testers must login to their HiSET® profiles. The “MY
ACCOUNT” should display their first and last name, address, city, state, zip code and
HiSET ID number. Print this page and bring it along with a current, government issued
photo identification, and the payment for the test to the school office. Office hours are
Monday - Thursday 8:30am-3:30pm. The school office is Closed on Friday.

• Complete a test registration card and all other forms necessary for HiSET® test
registration. (Meeting dates and test schedules available in the main office and on the
website.)

• Sign up early for each test. One or more days in advance of test session is required.
Examinees CANNOT sign up to test on the day of the test.

• Arrive to testing room 15 minutes early. (Late arrivals or failure to attend will result in you not 
being able to test on that day, and require you to reschedule).

• Must be 18 years or older to test.

NOTE: Examinees may take only the scheduled test during each testing session.

DAYS TEST TIME

Tuesday Math 8:45 AM

Wednesday Science 8:45 AM

Thursday Writing 8:45 AM

Friday Reading 8:45 AM

Friday Social Studies 10:15 AM

July 1-July 12, 2024 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Summer Break
September 2, 2024  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Labor Day
November 11, 2024 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Veterans Day
November 25-29, 2024 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Thanksgiving Break
December 23, 2024 - January 3, 2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Winter Break
January 20, 2025  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Martin Luther King Jr. Day
February 10, 2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Lincoln Day
February 17, 2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Presidents' Day
April 14 - April 18, 2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Spring Break
May 26, 2025 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Memorial Day

No testing on the following dates:
(please visit our website for full schedule)













Memorandum of Understanding 
Sacramento County Office of Education 

and Sacramento City Unified School 
District Employing Agency Agreement 

The Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) is the Local Education Agency for  
SCOE’s Teacher Intern Program, which is a Commission on Teacher Credentialing  
(CTC) approved two-year Mild to Moderate Support Needs, Multiple and Single Subject 
Mathematics and Science Teacher Intern Credentials Program (Program).   

Sacramento City Unified School District is the employing agency of an intern teacher 
participating in the Program  (Employing Agency).   

SCOE and Employing Agency formed a partnership to provide and coordinate services in  
support of intern teachers. The purpose of the MOU is to set forth the operative  
conditions which will govern this partnership.   

I. Parties
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the Sacramento County Office
of Education (SCOE) and Employing Agency.

II. Term
The effective dates of this MOU are July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025. Either party may
terminate this agreement by submitting written notice to the other party no later than 60
days prior to the start of a school year.

III. Responsibilities of the Parties
A. Both parties agree to the following responsibilities:

1. Jointly counsel the intern teacher and develop a Professional Development
Plan to complete the requirements to earn a credential in the intern

teacher’s content or specialty area(s); both parties and the intern teacher
shall concur on the plan

a. Professional Development Plan.
The employing district has developed and implemented a
Professional Development Plan for interns in consultation with  
SCOE. The plan shall include all of the following:   

i. Provisions for an annual evaluation of the intern by the
Employing Agency.

ii. Provide a description of the courses to be completed by the
intern, if any, and a plan for the completion of preservice or
other clinical training, if any, including student teaching .

iii. Additional instruction during the first semester of service,
for interns teaching in kindergarten or grades 1 to 6

1   
inclusive, in child development and teaching methods, and  
special education programs for pupils with mild and   



moderate disabilities.   
iv. Instruction, during the first year of service, for interns   

teaching children in bilingual classes in the culture and   
methods of teaching bilingual children, and instruction in   
the etiology and methods of teaching children with mild   
and moderate disabilities.  

2. The combination of employer-provided support/mentoring and SCOE  
supervision provided to the intern should include weekly course planning,  
coaching within the classroom, problem-solving regarding students,  
curriculum, and teaching as needed in order to meet the Teaching  
Performance Expectations and teach effectively.   

a. A minimum of 144 hours of support/mentoring and supervision  
will be provided each year during the two-year Intern Program.  b. 

A minimum of two hours of support/mentoring and supervision  
will be provided to an intern every five instructional days.   

c. An additional 45 hours of yearly support/mentoring and  
supervision specific to meeting the needs of English learners (EL)  
shall be provided to an intern teacher.   

d. Interns in the Mild to Moderate Support Needs credential program  
will have at least 200 hours of supervised early field work in  
general education and special education settings.  

e. Examples of support/mentoring and supervision could include, but  
are not limited to:  

i. Site staff or co-planning meetings  
ii. Curriculum, data assessment review  

iii. Professional development   
iv. EL lesson modification   
v. IEP support training   

vi. Classroom observations with mentor   
vii. Mentor consulting   

f. For intern teachers who assume daily teaching responsibilities after 
the beginning of the school year, the parties will provide:  i. General 

mentoring/support equal to sixteen hours times the  number of months 
remaining in the school year.   

ii. EL support equal to five hours times the number of months  
remaining in the school year.  

3. Review and verify the number of support/mentoring and supervision hours  
conducted as reported by the intern teacher.  

4. Jointly make credentialing recommendation to CTC, recognizing that  
employment decisions (such as continuing employment and tenure  
decisions) are separate from credentialing decisions.   

5. Notify the other party as soon as possible if an intern teacher placement  
may be terminated or modified.  

6. Develop appropriate modifications, accommodations, and intern support  
to comply with COVID19 public health orders and applicable county  health 

department and California Department of Public Health and  COVID-19 
guidelines. This may require video instruction and mentoring. 7. Ensure 

District certificated employees are not displaced by SCOE Interns.  



B. SCOE agrees to the following responsibilities:  
1. Be responsible for ensuring that the Teacher Intern Program fulfills the  

applicable standards of program quality and effectiveness adopted by the  
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) and California Department  
of Education (CDE)  

2. Provide intern teachers with 120 hours of Preservice training prior to the  
teacher intern obtaining an intern teaching credential and entering the  

classroom as the teacher-of-record with the Employing Agency.   
3. Establish effective and on-going communication with Employing Agency  

and SCOE Intern Personnel as appropriate to ensure a successful teaching  
experience for the intern.  

4. Ensure that the intern teacher is receiving required support/mentoring and  
supervision as part of the 144 General Ed/45 EL hours of yearly support  
by:  

a. Identifying an intern coach with a clear or life teaching credential  
and at least three years of teaching experience to provide:  

i. Direct support/mentoring and coaching to intern teachers,   
including monthly coaching for a minimum of 6 coaching   
observations in the intern teacher’s classroom per semester,   
with additional ongoing support, mentoring and   
consultation outside of the intern teacher’s classroom.   

b. Working with Employing Agency mentor(s) to establish a  
collaborative working relationship with the intern teacher,   
Employing Agency mentor, and SCOE intern coach.  

c. Providing a tracking system to track the total number of   
support/mentoring and supervision hours provided by both parties  
to the intern teacher.  

d. Providing the Intern with procedures to document and monitor the  
CTC required hours of mentoring and support received from the  
Employing Agency and SCOE.  

e. Verifying the number of mentor and support hours provided by  
SCOE’s intern coach and reported by the intern teacher.  

5. Ensure that Mild to Moderate Support Needs intern teachers will have at  
least 200 hours of supervised early field work in general education and  
special education settings.  

6. Communicate with CTC including:  
a. Notify CTC if an intern teacher’s placement is terminated or  

changed with the Employing Agency  
b. Complete all requirements and reporting to CTC for the Intern  

Credential. 
c. Complete all requirements and reporting to CTC for the   

Preliminary Credential.  
7. Should an intern teacher not fulfill the completion requirements of the  

SCOE intern credential program including attendance, grades and/or  
timely payment of tuition, the program may drop the candidate. SCOE  
will remain in close contact with Employing Agency regarding intern  
status.  

 
 



C. Employing Agency agrees to the following responsibilities:   
1. Select placement sites (schools) that demonstrate commitment to  

collaborative evidence-based practices and continuous program  
improvement, have partnerships with appropriate other educational, social,  
and community entities that support teaching and learning, place students  
with disabilities in the Least Restrictive Environment (LRE), provide  robust 
programs and support for English learners, reflect to the extent  possible 
socioeconomic and cultural diversity, and permit video capture  for candidate 
reflection and California Teacher Performance Assessment  (TPA) 
completion and the Literacy Performance Assessment (LPA). We  ask our 
districts to have a recording policy in place to accommodate TPA  video 
assessment.   

2. Ensure every placement site has a fully qualified site administrator.  
3. Screen and conduct all necessary background checks on intern teachers.   
4. Complete the CTC document entitled “Governing Board Statement for   

District Intern Credential” and give copy to SCOE prior to employing the  
intern teacher.  

5. Employ the intern teacher in positions in which the intern teacher will: 
a. Be employed as the “Teacher of Record” in a Multiple Subject,   

Education Specialist, Mild to Moderate Support Needs, Single  
Subject Math, or Science classroom.  

b. Be employed a minimum of .5 FTE capacity in a typical face-to 
face setting with the same group of students.   

6. Prior to an intern teacher assuming daily teaching responsibilities, identify  
a mentor for the intern teacher that possesses a valid, corresponding life 
or  clear teaching credential, and a minimum of three years of successful  
teaching experience. The mentor will be from the same site and have a  
corresponding credential. The mentor must complete the 10-hour Site  
Mentor Training through the Course Networking training website and 
SCOE’s orientation. The  mentor will not receive the stipend if the 
training is not complete.   

a. The mentor will stay current with changing program requirements,  
including program alignment to the Literacy Standards and TPEs, 
and will attend a SCOE 2 hour orientation training to learn about 
mentorship expectations and the performance assessment 
requirements for interns, including the Literacy Performance 
assessment which includes a focus on foundational literacy skills 
and the additional cross cutting themes in literacy 

b. If possible, the mentor will possess an EL authorization and can act  
as the EL mentor to provide supervision and support in meeting the  
intern requirements to receive 45 hours of annual EL support (see  
Paragraph 5).  

c. The Site Mentor may not be the Intern’s primary evaluator.   
 

7. If there is not a mentor available with an EL Authorization, provide an EL  
mentor for intern teachers who enter the program to complete their 45  
hours of EL supervision, as outlined in III.A.2.c.   

a. The EL mentor will be available to assist the intern with planning  
lessons that are appropriately designed and differentiated for  



English learners, for assessing language needs and progress, and  
for support of language accessible instruction through in-classroom  
modeling, as needed.   

8. Ensure that:   
a. A minimum of 144 hours of annual support/mentoring and  

supervision is provided to intern teacher in conjunction with  
SCOE supervisors/coaches, per CTC guidelines:   

i. The combination of employer-provided support/mentoring  
and SCOE supervision provided to the intern should be a   

minimum of two hours every five instructional days. All   
interns should receive support in weekly course planning,   
coaching within the classroom, problem-solving regarding   
students, curriculum, and teaching as needed in order to   
meet the Teaching Performance Expectations and teach   
effectively.  

ii. An additional 45 hours of annual EL support/mentoring and  
supervision is provided by the EL mentor if required by the  
intern teacher in conjunction with SCOE supervisors and   
coaches per CTC guidelines.   

iii. Ensure that Mild to Moderate Support Needs intern   
teachers will have at least 200 hours of supervised early   
field work in general education and special education   
settings.  

9. Ensure that all site administrators with mentor(s) and/or Intern teacher(s)  
on staff have been informed about the SCOE Teacher Intern program  
processes and materials, and stay current with changing program  
requirements, including program alignment to the Literacy Standards and  
TPEs.  

10. Intern teachers hired within the Participating district must be at sites that  
allow the Intern teacher to provide effective literacy instruction for all  
students. Specifically, the intern teacher shall be at sites that allow for  
instructing students in the literacy areas of meaning making, language  
development, and effective expression.   

11. Intern teachers hired within the Participating district must be at sites that  
ensure Intern Teachers can practice and implement screening and  
diagnostic techniques that inform teaching and assessment and early  
intervention techniques.   

12. Intern teachers hired within the Participating district must be at sites that   
provide opportunities to practice a strong literature, language, and   
comprehension component with a balance of oral and written language.   

13. Intern teachers hired within the Participating district must be in settings 
that allow interns to practice utilizing the California Dyslexia guidelines, 
including screening students for dyslexia and providing support to those 
who were flagged. 

14. Provide protected time for mentor(s)/intern to work within the school day;  
and clearly define expectations for type/frequency of support.  

15. Provide opportunities for intern teachers to participate in Professional  
Development trainings such as grade level collaboration, staff meetings,  
workshops, and other trainings that promote professional growth for the  



intern. These trainings may also count towards the 144 General Ed-45 EL  
hours of support/mentoring and supervision provided by Employing   
Agency and SCOE.   

16. Provide SCOE with any required documentation needed for reporting to  
CTC or to fulfill the Teacher Intern Program requirements.  

17. Recognize the credits earned by the intern teacher in the Program to the  
same extent as credits earned in a college or university for purpose of  
employment salary and/or other benefits.  

18. Notify SCOE as soon as possible if Employing Agency elects not to  
employ the intern teacher during year two of the program (i.e., “non re 
elects”).  

19. Recognize that an intern credential ceases to be valid when SCOE’s  
program terminates an intern teacher for failing to make satisfactory  
progress. Employing Agency will take appropriate action regarding the  
intern-teacher’s position as a teacher of record.  

. Ensure District certificated employees are not displaced by SCOE Interns.  

VI. Responsibilities - Fiscal  
1. SCOE, in its capacity as the Teacher Intern Program’s LEA, agrees to the  

following:  
a. Overall fiscal responsibility for the administration of the Teacher  

Intern Program.  
b. Develop and maintain a balanced budget that allocates amounts   

sufficient to meet the costs of implementing program responsibilities  
as described in the Teacher Intern Program Plan.   

c. Expend income according to regularly established policies and   
procedures within the SCOE expenditure guidelines.  

d. Provide Employing Agency $500/year to mentor teacher(s) who   
complete the Site Mentor Training for each SCOE intern.   

2. Employing Agency agrees to the following:  
a. Contract with teacher intern for certificated placement on appropriate  

certificated salary schedule.  
b. Provide Teacher Intern with all requirements as related to contract  

employment, including all benefits related to employment and   
insurance coverage.  

c. Pay each mentor teacher $500/year per intern. The mentor will not  
receive the stipend if the Site Mentor Training is not complete.   

 VII. Ownership of Materials 
 
1. Any and all products developed by the Teacher Intern Program are the exclusive  

property of SCOE. Employing Agency, its employees, staff, and subcontractors  
shall not have the right to disseminate, market, or otherwise use the products  
without the expressed written permission of SCOE. SCOE shall have the  
authority to adapt and adopt materials developed by Teacher Intern Program for  
dissemination purposes.  



VIII. Indemnification:
1. Employing Agency agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless SCOE

(including its directors, agents, officers, volunteers, and employees) from any
claim, action, or proceeding arising from any actual or alleged acts or
omissions of Employing Agency (its director, agents, officers, volunteers, or
employees) in performing its duties and obligations described in this
agreement or imposed by law.

2. SCOE agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Employing Agency
(including its directors, agents, officers and employees) from any claim,  action, 
or proceeding arising from any actual or alleged acts or omissions of  SCOE (its 
director, agents, officers, volunteers, or employees) in performing  its duties and 

obligations described in this agreement or imposed by law.  
3. The principals of comparative fault shall govern this agreement. This

provision shall survive the termination of this agreement.

IX. Confidentiality
Each party shall be responsible for maintaining the confidentiality of employee and
student data to the extent required by law. If either party fails to comply with this
requirement it shall hold the non-offending party harmless and indemnify that party for
the breach of confidentiality.

X. Independent Agents:
This MOU is by and between two independent agents and is not intended to and shall not
be construed to create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint
venture and/or association. The employees and agents of each party shall not be entitled
to the employment benefits of the other by virtue of this agreement. Each party shall
remain responsible for worker’s compensation and other employment laws for their
respective employees.

XI. Nondiscrimination Clause:
Any service provided by either party pursuant to this agreement shall be without
discrimination based on the actual or perceived race, religious creed, color, national
origin, nationality, immigration status, ethnicity, ethnic group identification, ancestry,
age, marital status, pregnancy, physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic
information, military and veteran status, gender, gender identity, gender expression, sex,
sexual orientation, or any other legally protected class in accordance with all applicable
Federal and State laws and regulations.

XII. Notice:

Any notices required to be given by the MOU or by law shall be in writing. They shall be  
served either personally, by mail, or email.   

Any notice to Employing Agency may be given at the following address;  
Sacramento City Unified School District   
5735 47th Avenue
Sacramento CA  95824  
Attn: _Hillary Harrell
Email: _hillary-harrell@scusd.edu  



Any notice to SCOE shall be sent to the following address:  
Sacramento County Office of Education   
P.O. Box 269003   
Sacramento, CA 95826-9003   
Attn: Ben Odell, Director, Teacher Intern Program  
Email: bodell@scoe.net  

XIII. Insurance
All parties shall maintain in full force Commercial General Liability Insurance with
limits of no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence/$3,000,000 aggregate (including
sexual abuse/molestation coverage) and automobile insurance coverage of $1,000,000
per occurrence. Such insurance requirements may be satisfied with coverage through a
joint powers authority. Evidence of insurance coverage shall be furnished upon request
by a party to this agreement.

XIV. Entire Contract:
This contract contains the Parties’ entire written agreement. Any representations or
promises not specifically detailed in this document will not be valid or binding on the
Parties to this contract. Any modification to the terms of this contract must be made in
writing and signed by all Parties to this contract.

XV. Execution of Agreement:
This agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument. Photographic copies of such signed counterparts may be used in lieu of the
originals for any purpose.

XVI. Signatures:
By affixing its signature to this Contract, each Party warrants and represents that each has
the authority to enter into this contract and to perform all obligations under the contract,
and further that the signatory of this contract is authorized to legally bind the Party.

By:___________________________               By:________________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Official

Sacramento County Office of Education

Janea Marking
Signature of Authorized Official               
Employing Agency

Title: Executive Director, School of Education Title: _Chief Business & Operations Officer 

Date: ________________________                  Date: _____________________________ 



Printed 10/10/2024

WAI Grant

Contact

Brett Fontenot, Vocational Specialist/WorkAbility Coordinator

Email brettfontenot@yahoo.com

Phone (916)643-2131

Summer

Phone

(916)247-2796

Fax (916)399-2019

LEA Type District

CDE Use Only

2024-25 Final Budget

Sacramento City USD (094-04)

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that all applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed; that to the best of

my knowledge, the information contained in this budget is correct and complete; and that the assurances

submitted previously are accepted as the basic conditions in the operation of this program for local

participation.

Signature of Authorized Agent

Janea Marking, Chief Business Official

Name and Title of Authorized Agent

Date

Amount for 2024-25 Grant Reporting Period

Total Budget

(from 2024-25 Grant Award Letter)
$373,275.00 07/01/2020 – 06/30/2025

CDE Use Only

Reviewed and Recommended for Approval By Special Education Division Consultant Date

Line Account Classification Budget Amounts

1 1000 Certificated Salaries $74,135.00

2 2000 Classified Salaries $121,404.00

3 3000 Employee Benefits $155,854.00

4 4000 Books and Supplies $2,566.00

5 5000 Services and Other Operating Expenses $3,276.00

6   Total Direct Costs (Subtotal) $357,235.00

7   Indirect Cost (4.49 %)   $16,040.00

8   Total Budget $373,275.00

Docusign Envelope ID: 2D6EC00A-0AB3-411C-8838-9BDC28F963AC

10/16/2024



Project Description:

The SCUSD WorkAbility Program provides employment based transition services to a diverse student population

in the Sacramento area. We employee full time staff at each of the 5 comprehensive high schools and one staff

to serve the 7charter/alternative high schools. We also provide community integrated pre-employment training

to all of the transition-age students through workshops and individual sessions. We serve 9 middle schools with

career assessments and exploration activities, including virtual training in basic job skills. The SCUSD

WorkAbility 1 program also collaborates with the DORTPP Program and the DOR Student Services Program to

provide the most benefit to the transition age student in high school.

Number of High School Students funded to serve for 2024-25: 791

Number of High School Students to place in paid employment positions for 2024-25: 118

Number of Middle School Students funded to serve for 2024-25: 204

Middle School funds for 2024-25 (already included in Budget Total): $70,380.00

Line Account Classification Budget Amounts  

1 1000 Certificated Salaries $74,135.00

$53,538.00 (HS) Brett Fontenot , WorkAbility

Coordinator/Vocational Specialist

0.458 FTE @ $116,870.00/yr

FTE

  Organize and coordinate WAI activities for high school students, such as: what to

expect transitioning out of high school, high schoolers fundamental skill

development, high school career exploration, assessments, high schoolers career

planning, parent involvement and staff development.  

 

Serve as the WorkAbility Coordinator and meet grant deadlines, collaborate with

the SCUSD fiscal team to update the grant as needed.

$4,455.00 (HS) Leslie Hernandez , Administrator of Teaching and

Learning

0.030 FTE @ $149,222.00/yr

FTE

  Supervise the WorkAbility high school program. Provide direction to the program

and advise on any issues that arise.

$11,687.00 (MS) Brett Fontenot , WorkAbility

Coordinator/Vocational Specialist

0.100 FTE @ $116,870.00/yr

FTE

  Organize and coordinate WAI activities for middle school students, such as: what

to expect transitioning from middle school to high school, planning for middle

school students to explore high school opportunities, work with middle school

case managers on transition activities and opportunities doing job shadows and

finding presenters for careers.

$4,455.00 (MS) Leslie Hernandez , Administrator of Teaching and

Learning

0.030 FTE @ $149,222.00/yr

FTE

  Supervise the WorkAbility program. Provide direction to the program and advise

on any issues that arise.

2 2000 Classified Salaries $121,404.00

$22,232.00 (HS) Ge Vang , Transition Assistant 0.640 FTE @ $34,738.00/yr FTE

  Assist the Vocational Specialist with middle school transition activities for

students with disabilities. Assist in providing vocational and transition support

services to high school students through age 22 with special needs; participate

in the organization and contribute to the daily operations of the WorkAbility 1

program at the school sites; coordinate all district community-based WorkAbility

1 activities; collaborate with TPP staff; complete the Workability 1 Data

$20,182.00 (HS) Lalena Rivas , Transition Assistant 0.640 FTE @ $31,534.00/yr FTE

Docusign Envelope ID: 2D6EC00A-0AB3-411C-8838-9BDC28F963AC



  Assist the Vocational Specialist with middle school transition activities for

students with disabilities. Assist in providing vocational and transition support

services to high school students through age 22 with special needs; participate

in the organization and contribute to the daily operations of the WorkAbility 1

program at the school sites; coordinate all district community-based WorkAbility

1 activities; collaborate with TPP staff; complete the Workability 1 Data

$15,025.00 (HS) Transition Assistant Vacancy Transition Assistant

Vacancy , Transition Assistant

0.418 FTE @ $35,989.00/yr

FTE

  Assist the Vocational Specialist with middle school transition activities for

students with disabilities. Assist in providing vocational and transition support

services to high school students through age 22 with special needs; participate

in the organization and contribute to the daily operations of the WorkAbility 1

program at the school sites; coordinate all district community-based WorkAbility

1 activities; collaborate with TPP staff; complete the Workability 1 Data

$8,997.00 (MS) Transition Assistant Vacancy Transition Assistant

Vacancy , Transition Assistant

0.250 FTE @ $35,989.00/yr

FTE

  Assist in providing vocational and transition services to middle school students

with special needs; implement district and community based WorkAbility 1

middle school activities such as career assessments and projects; complete

middle school WorkAbility 1 data.

$8,684.00 (MS) Ge Vang , Transition Assistant 0.250 FTE @ $34,738.00/yr FTE

  Assist in providing vocational and transition services to middle school students

with special needs; implement district and community based WorkAbility 1

middle school activities such as career assessments and projects; complete

middle school WorkAbility 1 data.

$7,884.00 (MS) Lalena Rivas , Transition Assistant 0.250 FTE @ $31,534.00/yr FTE

  Assist in providing vocational and transition services to middle school students

with special needs; implement district and community based WorkAbility 1

middle school activities such as career assessments and projects; complete

middle school WorkAbility 1 data.

$38,400.00 (HS) Student Wages:   40 students   X   60.00 hours   X   16.00 per hour

3 3000 Employee Benefits $155,854.00

$27,399.00 (HS) Brett Fontenot , WorkAbility Coordinator/Vocational

Specialist

Certificated

Salary:

$53,538.00

$35,668.00 (HS) Ge Vang , Transition Assistant

Classified

Salary: $22,232.00

$34,842.00 (HS) Lalena Rivas , Transition Assistant

Classified

Salary: $20,182.00

$18,997.00 (HS) Transition Assistant Vacancy Transition Assistant Vacancy ,

Transition Assistant

Classified

Salary:

$15,025.00

$6,850.00 (MS) Brett Fontenot , WorkAbility Coordinator/Vocational Specialist

Certificated

Salary: $11,687.00

$4,749.00 (MS) Transition Assistant Vacancy Transition Assistant Vacancy ,

Transition Assistant

Classified

Salary:

$8,997.00

$8,917.00 (MS) Ge Vang , Transition Assistant

Classified

Salary: $8,684.00

$8,711.00 (MS) Lalena Rivas , Transition Assistant

Classified

Salary: $7,884.00

$3,094.00 (HS) Leslie Hernandez , Administrator of Teaching and Learning

Certificated

Salary: $4,455.00

$3,094.00 (MS) Leslie Hernandez , Administrator of Teaching and Learning

Certificated

Salary: $4,455.00

Docusign Envelope ID: 2D6EC00A-0AB3-411C-8838-9BDC28F963AC



$3,533.00 (HS) 40 Students Worker's Compensation, Medicare, Unemployment, Social Security

4 4000 Books and Supplies $ 2566.00

$2,000.00 (HS) General office supplies to run the WorkAbility program

$566.00 (HS) Ink for WorkAbility printers

5 5000 Services and Other

Operating Expenses

$ 3276.00

$1,840.00 (HS) Travel expenses to attend required region meetings and trainings.

$1,436.00 (HS) Mileage for WorkAbility staff to drive to school to provide transition skills

workshops and WorkAbility meetings

7   Indirect Cost: 4.49000 % $16,040.00

Cost of grant administration and other program activities

Total Budget $373,275.00

Docusign Envelope ID: 2D6EC00A-0AB3-411C-8838-9BDC28F963AC



California Department of Education
AO-400 (REV. 08/2024) 

Grant Award Notification 
GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS
Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
PO Box 246870 
Sacramento, CA 95824-6870 

CDE GRANT NUMBER

FY PCA
Service 

Location
Suffix

24 23011 67439 A1

Attention WorkAbility I, Site 094 INDEX County Code 

Email Mbello@cde.ca.gov 0663 34

Telephone 916-643-9000 STANDARDIZED ACCOUNT CODE STRUCTURE

Grantee Unique Entity ID (UEI) Resource Code Revenue Object Code 

Program Office 6520 8590 

Name of Grant Program 2024–25 WorkAbility I Program 

GRANT
DETAILS

Original/Prior 
Amendments 

Amendment 
Amount 

Total 
Amend. 

No. 
Award Starting 

Date 
Award Ending 

Date 

$373,275 $373,275 7/01/2024 6/30/2025

ALN Federal Award ID 
Number

Federal Grant Name Federal Agency 

I am pleased to inform you that you have been funded for the Workability I Program.

This award is made contingent upon the availability of funds. If the Legislature takes an action to reduce or defer the 
funding upon which this award is based, then this award will be amended accordingly. 

By e-signing this document, your organization is voluntarily agreeing to conduct business with the California 
Department of Education (CDE) electronically. If you do not wish to do so, please immediately contact the Analyst 
listed below to discuss other signing options. 

Please email the signed Grant Award Notification (AO-400) to: 

WorkAbility I at Workability1@cde.ca.gov

California Department of Education Contact
Michelle Bello 

Job Title 
Education Programs Consultant

E-mail Address
Mbello@cde.ca.gov

Telephone
916-982-2251

Authorized by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction or Designee Date
September 27, 2024 

CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT REQUIREMENTS 
On behalf of the grantee named above, I accept this grant award. I have read the applicable certifications, assurances, terms, 

and conditions identified on the grant application (for grants with an application process) or in this document or both; and I agree 
to comply with all requirements as a condition of funding. On behalf of the grantee named above, I certify that the organization 
intends that this and future transactions be completed by electronic means, and any electronic signature is intended to be as 

binding as a physical signature.
Printed Name of Authorized Agent Title 

E-mail Address Telephone

Signature Date

Janea Marking Chief Business & Operations Officer

janea-marking@scusd.edu (916) 643-9055



CDE Grant Number: 24-23011-67439-A1
September 27, 2024 
Page 2 

Conditions of the Grant Award 

1. General Assurances are hereby incorporated by reference. The California Department of Education (CDE) 
has agreed to accept the assurances your agency currently provides in the Consolidated Application. The 
CDE will verify if your agency has submitted required certifications and assurances on the CDE Request 
for Applications web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/fm/generalassurances2024-25.asp prior to initial 
grant award payment. 

2. This Workability I (WAI) grant shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and in compliance with laws and regulations from the CDE, the 
Employment Development Department (EDD), and the state and federal Departments of Labor. 

3. The grantee must sign and complete the Certification of Acceptance of Grant Requirements section of the 
Grant Award Notification (AO-400), which certifies the grantee accepts and agrees to the conditions of the 
grant. The grantee must return the signed hard copy AO-400 to the CDE. All approved grant funds must be 
expended within the designated award period. 

4. Grant funds must be used to implement the WAI Program as indicated in the approved project plan and 
consistent with California Education Code (EC) 56471 Section (e), “Workability project applications shall 
include, but are not limited to, the following elements: (1) recruitment, (2) assessment, (3) counseling, (4) 
preemployment skills training, (5) vocational training, (6) student wages for try-out employment, (7) 
placement in unsubsidized employment, (8) other assistance with transition to a quality adult life, and (9) 
utilization of an interdisciplinary advisory committee to enhance project goals.” 

5. The following program evaluation and renewal information will be compiled and submitted by the WAI 
grantee to the CDE by the required due dates: (a) student data, (b) program funds [staffing and program 
cost], (c) Annual Program Report, (d) Grant Funding Application, and (e) Annual Program Requirements 
Report. 

6. WAI grantees must complete and submit all required WAI forms by the due date into the WAI database, to 
the CDE, or both. If the grantee does not meet timely submission of forms for the fiscal year, the grantee will 
be placed on conditional status. 

7. WAI grantees must serve all students for which funding was received. 

8. WAI grantees must place into employment at least 15 percent of the students for which funding was 
received. 

9. The WAI grantees must achieve a score of “Basic/Developing” on the Annual Program Requirements 
Report submission: a numerical score of no less than nine for High Schools and no less than seven for 
Middle Schools. If the grantee does not score the minimal requirements, the grantee will be placed on 
conditional status. 

10. Grantees must have representation by their WAI Program staff at two regional meetings and one required 
state meeting per year. 

11. If a WAI grantee receives WAI Advisory Committee and standing committee funds per EC 56471(b), then 
attendance by Advisory and Committee members is required at up to four committee meetings per year. If 
the WAI Advisory Committee member will not attend, a designee needs to attend in their place. All WAI 
Advisory meetings are subject to Bagley Keene and are hosted by the CDE in person or virtually. Meetings 
are subject to state safety protocols and can be conducted virtually. 

12. The WAI grantee must maintain expenditure reports with supporting evidence and be prepared to submit 
them to the CDE upon request. The CDE has the authority to conduct program and fiscal reviews or audits. 



CDE Grant Number: 24-23011-67439-A1
September 27, 2024 
Page 3 

13. The WAI Grantee must submit to the CDE an Interim Expenditure Report no later than February 27, 
2025, for reporting actual expenditures from July 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024. If reported interim 
expenditures are less than the initial payment, then the scheduled interim payment will be reduced 
proportionately. 

14. The WAI Grantee must submit to the CDE a Final Expenditure Report no later than August 10, 2025. 
Upon receipt of the Final Expenditure Report, up to 100 percent of the grant total will be reimbursed. 
Failure to submit the Final Expenditure Report prior to next year’s state grant award issuance will affect the 
timely release of next year’s payment and will result in conditions imposed on the grant. 

15. Funds will be used for excess costs of normal expenditures when applied to staff, materials, and services 
that are not typically provided to students receiving special education services and that are necessary for 
their participation in this program. 

16. The WAI grantee will provide information to WAI students with intellectual and developmental disabilities 
(ID/DD) ages 16 and above regarding Employment First, opportunities for employment, and supports to 
achieve Competitive Integrated Employment. 

17. Every employed WAI student under the age of 18 shall have an approved work permit on file at the 
employment site, and a copy shall be filed with the WAI grantee. 

18. Work-based learning opportunities must be provided in compliance with the Work Experience Education 
(WEE) and Regional Occupational Center and Programs (ROC/P). 

19. The WAI program does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national or ethnic origin, gender, or 
disability in the administration of its program and complies with all laws and regulations of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and other appropriate legislation. 

20. The WAI Grantee shall be accountable as defined by student, program, and fiscal outcomes. 

21. Students who participate in the WAI work experience program will be paid at least minimum wage. There is 
an exception for learners who may be paid not less than 85 percent of the minimum wage rounded to the 
nearest nickel during their first 160 hours of employment in occupations in which they have no previous 
similar or related experience. 

22. Minimum wage will not exceed the prevailing minimum wage of the city in which the student is employed. 

23. All WAI students will be placed into employment settings that are in the least restrictive environment and that 
facilitate movement towards postschool integrated employment. 

24. The WAI grantee will enter and participate in a Local Partnership Agreement (LPA) with core partners (local 
educational agencies, Department of Rehabilitation Districts, and Regional Centers) and be prepared to 
submit to the CDE documentation of the LPA upon request. 

25. The WAI Grantee will provide to the CDE an On-Campus Business Plan for proposed on-campus student 
businesses that provide students enrolled in the WAI program with on-campus placement opportunities. 

26. Under the authority of the CDE, if the grantee is identified as noncompliant in any of the aforementioned 
areas, conditions will be imposed on the grant. The State Superintendent of Public Instruction may authorize 
the CDE to withhold partial or total funding. Those grantees with violations will receive notification of 
conditions on their grant and will be instructed to develop a plan of action to remedy the noncompliance. No 
payments will be released to agencies with conditions on their grant until the CDE receives written 
notification from the agency agreeing to the conditions of the grant. 



CDE Grant Number: 24-23011-67439-A1
September 27, 2024 
Page 4 

If you have any fiscal questions regarding this grant, please contact the CDE WAI Team by email at 
Workability1@cde.ca.gov.

If you would like to inquire about the status of a payment, please contact the Administrative Services Unit at 
SEDGrants@cde.ca.gov and copy the WAI Team at Workabilty1@cde.ca.gov. 

cc: Business Fiscal Officer: Expenditure Report



 

 

California State University’s CalStateTEACH Program 
Memorandum of Understanding and Agreement to 

Provide Student Teacher Placements to University Students 

This agreement is between the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) and the 
California State University’s CalStateTEACH Program (“University”), who may be referred to 
collectively as the parties. This Agreement describes and confirms the expectations and 
responsibilities of the Parties regarding the Student Teaching Program through which University 
students enrolled in a credentialing program (“Student Teachers”) will gain experience in the 
public school setting. 

 
TERM OF THE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement shall remain in effect for a term of 3 years beginning October 14, 2024 and ending 
September 30,2027 , unless terminated sooner. Either party may terminate this Agreement on 30 
days’ written notice to the other party; provided, however, that credential candidates shall be 
allowed to conclude any ongoing assignments. Performance under this Agreement shall be 
reviewed annually, and the parties may agree to annual extensions after expiration of the initial 
term. 

 
DISTRICT AND SCHOOL ADMINISTRATOR RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. The District will provide the Student Teachers with supervised clinical experience. The 
District’s Designated Supervisor(s) will hold an appropriate degree, credential, or license 
in the specified field, if any is required for that field, and at least five years’ experience in 
that field. The Supervisor will provide the Student Teacher with at least two hours of face-
to-face supervision per week for the duration of the student teacher placement. 
Supervision may be shared among more than one qualified District staff member. 

2. The District will designate a member of its staff to participate with the University’s 
designee in planning, implementing, and coordinating the Student Teaching 
Program. 

3. The District will maintain complete records and reports on each Student Teacher’s 
performance and provide an evaluation to the University on forms the University shall 
provide. 

4. The District may, in its sole discretion, refuse to accept as a participant in the Student 
Teaching Program any University student assigned to participate, and, upon request of 
the District, University shall withdraw the assignment of any University student 
participant. 

5. After the District accepts the assignment of a Student Teacher, the District may terminate 
the student teaching placement for “good cause.” “Good cause” may include, but is not 
limited to failure to perform satisfactorily, refusal to follow District administrative 
policies, procedures, rules and regulations, or violation of any federal or state law. The 
District will immediately notify the University in writing if it terminates an assignment. 
The District reserves the right to ban anyone from District facilities when the District finds, 
in its sole discretion, that the presence of the person poses a threat or disrupts operations. 
University is responsible for informing its student participants of the provisions of this 
Section. District will immediately notify University, if District knows or suspects any 
professional or ethical or legal violations. University will cooperate with District in any 
investigation concerning the reported violation. 

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9



 

 

6. District shall, on any day when a Student Teacher is receiving training at its facilities, 
arrange for the Student Teacher to receive any necessary emergency health care or first 
aid for accidents occurring in its facilities. Except as provided in this paragraph, District 
shall have no obligation to furnish medical care, surgical care, or other health care to any 
Student Teacher. 

7. The District is aware of and informed about the hazards currently known to be associated 
with the novel coronavirus referred to as “COVID-19”. The District is familiar with and 
informed about the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) current guidelines 
regarding COVID-19 as well as applicable federal, state, and local governmental 
directives regarding COVID-19. The District to the best of its knowledge and belief, is 
in compliance with those current CDC guidelines and applicable governmental 
directives. If the current CDC guidelines or applicable governmental directives are 
modified, changed or updated, the District will take the steps to comply with the 
modified, changed, or updated guidelines or directives. If at any time the District 
becomes aware that it is not in compliance with CDC guidelines or an applicable 
governmental directive, it will notify Dr. Nan Barker (Regional Director). 

 
 

UNIVERSITY RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. University will work collaboratively with the District’s HR department, school site 

administration, and staff in the assignment of the Student Teacher. 
2. University will confer regularly with District and site administration and district-

employed mentor/liaison through meetings, telephone calls, and/or e-mail. 
3. University will immediately notify appropriate District and site administration if University 

administration has knowledge of or suspects any professional or ethical violations by a 
Student Teacher in the school. University and District agree they will cooperate in any 
investigation concerning the reported violation. 

4. University will guarantee that Student Teachers and university supervisors have 
appropriate tuberculosis and fingerprinting clearance, including subsequent arrest 
notification service. 

5. University will instruct Student Teachers in state laws regarding child abuse reporting, 
sexual harassment, and professional conduct. 

6. University supervisors will conduct systematic and regular observations of Student 
Teachers’ performances in the District’s classrooms. 

7. University will be responsible for ensuring that Student Teachers have appropriate 
insurance coverage. 

MENTOR TEACHER RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. Hold an appropriate California credential (Multiple Subject) 
2. Have completed three years of successful teaching experience. 
3. Have the English Language Authorization, expertise, and experience working with 

English learners. 
4. Model balanced and comprehensive reading/language arts instruction; effectively teach 

the state-adopted core curriculum; and model instruction based on the state-adopted 
academic content standards. 

a. Phonics and structured reading development 
b. Incorporation of California Dyslexia Guidelines 

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9



 

 

c. Incorporation of elements of California Comprehensive Plan  
5. Participate in mentor teacher training. 
6. Allow Field Experience Participants opportunities to work with classroom students. 

 
STUDENT TEACHER RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Provide the District with the following documentation: 
a. a copy of the letter from the University assigning the student to the District. 
b. a background check fingerprint clearance report. 
c. a negative tuberculosis test result, and 

2. Comply with all applicable terms and provisions of this Agreement while serving as 
a Student Teacher. 

3. Comply with the District’s policies and procedures, and applicable state and federal laws and 
regulations while serving as a Student Teacher. 

4. Provide services to District pupils only under the direct supervision of District staff. 
5. Maintain the confidentiality of pupil information. No Student Teacher will have access to 

or have the right to receive any District pupil records, except to the extent necessary in the 
regular course of assisting in providing services to pupils as part of the student teacher 
program. The discussion, transmission, or narration in any form by Student Teachers of 
any individually identifiable pupil information, educational, medical, or otherwise, which 
is obtained in the course of the student teacher program is forbidden except as a necessary 
part of the practical student teacher experience. Otherwise, Student Teachers shall use de-
identified information only (and not personally identifiable pupil information) in any 
discussions about the student teacher experience with University, its employees, agents or 
others. 

  

STATUS OF DISTRICT AND UNIVERSITY STUDENTS 
The parties expressly understand and agree that all University students serving as Student Teachers 
in District schools pursuant to this Agreement are doing so for educational purposes only, and 
Student Teachers are not considered employees of the District for any purpose, including, but not 
limited to, compensation for services, welfare and pension benefits, or workers’ compensation 
insurance. It is the responsibility of the University to provide notice to its student participants of 
the provisions of this Section. The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination or 
expiration of this Agreement. 

LIABILITY INSURANCE 
The University shall take out and maintain a “claims-made” policy of general liability and 
professional liability insurance (including personal injury with limits not less than $1 million per 
loss and damage to property of others up to $5,000 per incident), with extended reporting period 
of three (3) years, covering Student Teachers, and naming District as an additional named insured 
under such insurance policy or policies. Further, University agrees to maintain professional and 
comprehensive general liability insurance, with no exclusion for molestation or abuse, at a 
minimum of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence and Twenty-Five Million Dollars 
($25,000,000) in aggregate throughout the course of this Agreement. 

 
University shall provide certificates evidencing all coverage referred to in this Section within thirty 

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9



 

 

(30) days of execution of this Agreement and thereafter, on an annual basis. If the coverage is on 
a claims-made basis, University hereby agrees that not less than thirty (30) days prior to the 
effective date of termination of University’s current insurance coverage or termination of this 
Agreement, University shall either purchase three (3) year tail coverage per claim or provide proof 
of continuous coverage in the above stated amounts for all claims arising out of incidents occurring 
prior to termination of University’s current coverage or prior to termination of this Agreement, as 
applicable, and provide District a certificate of insurance evidencing such coverage. 
 
The University is permissibly self-insured through the State of California for automobile liability. 

 
The District shall be named as an additional insured or covered party on the liability coverages 
maintained by the University set forth above, and such coverages shall be primary to any coverages 
maintained by the District. Limits of liability for each type of liability coverage shall be at least $1 
million per claim per occurrence/ $2 million aggregate. 

 
NO WORKERS’ COMPENSATION LIABILITY 

The Parties agree that the District is not to assume, nor shall it assume by this Agreement any 
liability under the California Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Safety Act for, by or on behalf 
of any Student Teacher or University employees while they are on the premises of the District or 
while performing any duty whatsoever under the terms of the Agreement or while going to or from 
any of the student teacher placement sites. University shall provide written notice to each Student 
Teacher regarding the lack of coverage of Workers’ Compensation insurance by the District. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 

University shall defend, indemnify and hold District and its officials, employees and agents, 
harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury 
or damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only in proportion to and to the 
extent such liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury or damages are caused by 
or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of University, its officials, agents, or 
employees. 

 
District shall defend, indemnify and hold University, its officials, employees and agents, harmless 
from and against any and all liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury or damage 
arising out of the performance of this Agreement but only in proportion to and to the extent such 
liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury or damages are caused by or result from 
the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of District, its officials, agents, or employees. 

 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

1. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to create a joint venture, 
partnership, principal-agent or employment relationship between the parties and neither 
party shall have the authority to bind the other party for any purpose. 

2. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be governed and 
construed by the laws of the State of California. Any lawsuit concerning or arising out of 
this Agreement shall be venued in the county in which the District is located. 

3. This Agreement supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings 
between the parties, both oral and written, with respect to its subject matter and constitutes 
the complete agreement and understanding between the parties, unless modified in a 

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9



writing executed by both parties. 
4. In the event of a dispute between the parties arising from this Agreement, the parties agree

to mediate the dispute before initiating litigation. The Parties agree that with regard to any
dispute or claim related to this Agreement, prior to the initiation of a lawsuit or other legal
action, they shall and must, in good faith, submit the claim or dispute to mediation with
any mutually agreeable neutral. The costs of the neutral will be split equally between the
Parties. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recovery from the losing party the
prevailing party’s reasonable expenses (fees and costs) incurred in the lawsuit or legal
action as allowed by law.

5. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, that
provision shall be amended to achieve as nearly as possible the same effect as the original
provision, and the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

6. No delay or failure by either party to act in the event of a breach or default hereunder shall
be construed as a waiver of that or any succeeding breach or a waiver of the provision itself.

7. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an
original as against any party whose signature appears and all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

Signed this date of . 

     
______________________________________________________________ 
Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer
Sacramento City Unified School District 

  ________________________________________________________________ 
Brian Cotham, Director of Procurement and Support Services 
California State University’s CalStateTEACH 

Docusign Envelope ID: EBAE838F-11A0-4C0B-9C95-A56CCEEF8BB9

10/18/2024

Brian Cotham (Oct 18, 2024 14:24 PDT)
Brian Cotham 10/18/2024



Dominican University of California          1 

 
Department of Education  

Student Teaching Memorandum of Understanding 
July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2026 

 

 

I.  General 

In consideration of the mutual promises herein, Sacramento City Unified School District 
(“District”), located in Sacramento, California, and Dominican University of California 
(“University”), located in San Rafael, California, agree to partner in Dominican University of 
California’s Teacher Training Curricula. 

Whereas, University desires to place students enrolled in teacher training curricula (collectively, 
“Students”), in appropriate locations whereby Students may gain practical teaching, an 
experience as an important element of Students’ education and training by the University 
School of Education; and 

Whereas, pursuant to the provisions of Section 1095 of the Education code, the governing 
board of any district is authorized to enter into agreements with any university or college 
accredited by the State Board of Education as a teacher education institution, to provide 
teaching experience through student teaching to students enrolled in teacher training curricula 
of such institutions.  

II.  Purpose  

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a formal working relationship between the 
parties to this Agreement and to set forth the operative conditions, which will govern this 
partnership.  District and University will form a partnership to provide coordinating services as 
part of the Student Teaching Program, serving multiple subject, single subject, and education 
specialists, hereafter referred to as the “Student Teaching Program.”  The purpose of the 
Student Teaching Program is to support Student Teachers. 

Student Teachers must meet all applicable prerequisites required by the California Commission 
on Teacher Credentialing (“CTC”) before participating in the Student Teacher Program.  

III.  Responsibilities 

As a condition of our partnership, Sacramento City Unified School District and Dominican 
University of California agree to adhere to the following general responsibilities: 

A. The District agrees to: 

Provide the University with the following information related to the Student Teaching 
Program: 

Docusign Envelope ID: A0EE7508-90D0-4034-9EED-3BC7095ED74F



Dominican University of California          2 

 
 

1) Learning Environment:  The District has a responsibility to maintain a positive, 
respectful, and sufficiently resourced learning environment so that sound educational 
experiences can occur. 
 

2) District Liaison: The District shall identify a liaison(s) from among its teaching staff who 
will communicate and cooperate with the University to ensure student teacher access to 
appropriate resources for the Student Teaching experience.  
 

3) Mentor and Support Teachers: Mentor and Support teachers shall hold a Clear 
Credential in the content area for which they are providing supervision. They shall have 
a minimum of three (3) years of content area K-12 teaching experience and have 
demonstrated exemplary teaching practices. Mentor and Support teachers agree to 
complete Dominican’s 10-hour initial orientation addressing CalTPA, 21st Century Skills, 
roles and responsibilities, teaching and coaching methods, as well as instructional and 
inclusive strategies for all learners.  
 

4) On Campus Emergencies: The District will ensure that there are written policies and 
procedures for handling emergencies, which might involve Student Teachers and their 
Directing Teachers.  The District will ensure that these policies and procedures will be 
disseminated to the student teachers. 
 

5) Teaching Experience: The District shall provide teaching experience through student 
teaching in schools and classes of the District.  
 
The District may, for good cause, refuse to accept any student of the University assigned 
to student teaching in the District.  Upon request of the District, made for good cause, 
the University shall terminate the student teaching assignment in the District for any 
student of the University. 
 

6) "Student teaching" as used herein and elsewhere in this agreement means active 
participation in the duties and functions of classroom teaching under the direct 
supervision and instruction of employees of the District holding valid credentials issued 
by the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, other than emergency permits 
or provisional credentials, authorizing them to serve as classroom teachers in the 
schools or classes in which the practice teaching is provided. 
 
District employees who provide supervision for field experiences are selected, oriented, 
supervised, evaluated, and rewarded in ways that optimize the development of each 
candidate. Candidates are supervised in field placements by practitioners who have an 
appropriate credential, three or more years of teaching experience in California, 
knowledge of state-adopted student academic content standards and/or the common 

Docusign Envelope ID: A0EE7508-90D0-4034-9EED-3BC7095ED74F



Dominican University of California          3 

core standards, and expertise in the fields of elementary or secondary teaching, 
depending on the candidate’s preliminary credential.  
 

7) Student Teaching Assignment: An assignment of a student of the University to student 
teaching in schools or classes of the District shall be, at the discretion of the University, 
for approximately fifteen (15) weeks. A student may be given more than one (1) 
assignment by the University to student teach in such schools or classes. The assignment 
of a student of the University to student teaching in the District shall be deemed to be 
effective for the purposes of this agreement as of the date the student presents to the 
proper authorities of the District the document given her/him by the University 
affecting such assignment, but not earlier than the date of such assignment as shown on 
the document. Before assigning students to School districts, Dominican University will 
instruct such students on applicable state and federal law relating to unlawful 
discrimination and sexual harassment.  
 

8) Permit Teachers: If the student teacher is also serving as a district employee on a 
district-sponsored permit (e.g., Provisional Internship Permit Short Term Staff Permit, 
Emergency) while enrolled at Dominican, the District agrees to provide the following 
support hours to the student and collaborate to track the hours of support and 
supervision provided to the permit teacher via Dominican’s Permit Teacher Support Log: 
 

a) A minimum of 144 hours of general support/mentoring and supervision is 
provided to each permit teacher per school year, including coaching, modeling, 
and demonstrating within the classroom; assistance with course planning; and 
problem-solving regarding students, curriculum, and development of effective 
teaching methodologies. A minimum of two hours of support/mentoring and 
supervision must be provided to a permit teacher every five instructional days. 
 

b) An additional 45 hours of support/mentoring and supervision specific to meeting 
the needs of English learners shall be provided to a permit teacher who enters 
the program without a valid English learner authorization listed on a previously 
issued Multiple Subject, Single Subject, or Education Specialist Teaching 
Credential or a valid English Learner Authorization or Cross-cultural, Language 
and Academic Development (CLAD) Certificate. The support/mentoring and 
supervision should be distributed in a manner that sufficiently supports the 
permit teacher’s development of knowledge and skills in the instruction of 
English learners.  

 
9) Administrator: District site will have a fully qualified administrator. 

 
10) For purposes of implementing the video requirement, the program places candidates 

only in student teaching or intern placements where the candidate is able to record 
his/her teaching with K-12 students. The program assures that each school or district 
where the candidate is placed has a recording policy in place. 

Docusign Envelope ID: A0EE7508-90D0-4034-9EED-3BC7095ED74F



Dominican University of California          4 

 
11) Method of Evaluation:  There is a clear method for oral and written evaluation per 

semester that will be conveyed to the Student Teacher. An open communication 
exchange between District and University is always welcomed. At the end of the 
fieldwork experience, the Student Teacher evaluates the Directing Teachers and 
University Supervisor. 

 
12) Safety, Laws and Regulations:  The District agrees to comply with applicable state and 

federal workplace safety laws and regulations. 
 

13) Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA):  To the extent the District generates 
or maintains educational records related to the participating Student, the District agrees 
to comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), to the same 
extent as such laws and regulations apply to the University and shall limit access to only 
those employees or agents with a need to know. For the purposes of this Agreement, 
pursuant to FERPA, University hereby designates District as a University official with a 
legitimate educational interest in the educational records of the participating Student(s) 
to the extent that access to the University’s records is required by District to carry out 
the Program. 
 

14) Claim against Student Teacher:  The District will provide written notification to the 
University promptly if a claim arises involving a Student Teacher. The District and 
University agree to share such information in a manner that protects such disclosures 
from discovery to the extent possible under applicable federal and state peer review 
and joint defense laws. 

B.  The University’s Department of Education agrees to: 

1) Assign to the District only those Student Teachers who have satisfactorily completed the 
prerequisites of the University’s curriculum. 

 
2) Retain ultimate responsibility for the education and assessment of its Student Teachers.  

The University Supervisor for this Agreement shall be appointed and assigned by the 
University. 

 
3) Advise Student Teachers that they are required to comply with District’s rules, 

regulations and procedures.  
 

4) Provide new university supervisors with an orientation at Dominican University. 

C.   Other Terms and Conditions 

As between the Parties hereto, it is understood and agreed that:  

1) Legal Compliance and Non-discrimination: 

Docusign Envelope ID: A0EE7508-90D0-4034-9EED-3BC7095ED74F



Dominican University of California          5 

In connection with the performance of work under this contract, both parties 
agree that all Students receiving teacher training experience pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be selected and trained in an environment without 
discrimination on account of race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, 
disability, marital status, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, age, 
veteran status or any other basis protected by law. These same principles apply 
in the event the Student is withdrawn from the teacher training experience.  

 
2) Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act:   

Students participating in the Student Teaching Program pursuant to this 
Agreement are members of the District’s workforce for purposes of the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) within the definition of 
“health care operations” and therefore may have access to client information as 
provided for in the Privacy Rule of HIPAA. Therefore, additional agreements are 
not necessary for HIPAA compliance purposes.  This paragraph applies solely to 
HIPAA privacy and security regulations applicable to the District and does not 
establish an employment relationship.   

 
3) No District Relationship:   

 Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall be construed to constitute or 
establish a District, employer/employee, partnership, franchise, or fiduciary 
relationship between the parties; and neither party shall have the right or 
authority or shall hold itself out to have the right or authority to bind the other 
party, nor shall either party be responsible for the acts or omissions of the other 
except as provided specifically to the contrary herein. 

 
4) Severability: 

The provisions of this Agreement are divisible; if any such provisions shall be 
deemed invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall remain in force. 
That provision shall be deemed limited to the extent necessary to render it valid 
and enforceable and the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue 
in full force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

 
5) Term and Termination: 

This Agreement is effective upon execution by both parties to the Student 
Teaching Program and will continue through the published expiration date or 
until terminated. This Agreement may be terminated at any time and for any 
reason by either party upon not less than ninety (90) days prior written notice to 
the other party.  Should notice of termination be given under this Section, 
Students already scheduled to train at District will be permitted to complete any 
previously scheduled teacher training assignment at District. 

 
 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: A0EE7508-90D0-4034-9EED-3BC7095ED74F



Dominican University of California          6 

6) Entire Agreement: 
This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, and 
communications between University and District, whether written or oral, 
express or implied, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement and is 
intended as a complete and final expression of the terms of the binding 
Agreement between University and District and shall not be changed or subject 
to change orally.  The parties further agree and acknowledge that neither they 
nor anyone on their behalf made any inducements, agreements, promises, or 
representations other than those set forth in this Agreement. 

 
7) Indemnification:  

 District agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless University and its 
affiliates, directors, trustees, officers, agents, students and employees against all 
claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses of whatever nature, including court 
costs and reasonable attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from District’s 
negligence, or in proportion to the District’s comparative fault. 
 

 University agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless District and its 
affiliates, directors, trustees, officers, agents, students and employees against all 
claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses of whatever nature, including court 
costs and reasonable attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the 
University’s negligence, or in proportion to the University’s comparative fault.  
However, the University does not agree to indemnify for the actions of a student 
while following the direction(s) of the District. 

 
8) Insurance:   

District shall maintain in force at all times during the Terms of this Agreement 
the following insurance:  (1) Professional Liability insurance with minimum limits 
of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 annual aggregate; (2) Commercial 
General Liability (“CGL”) insurance, including bodily injury, property damage, 
premises and contractual liability, with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $3,000,000 annual aggregate; and (3) Sexual Misconduct/Abuse 
liability insurance of an amount of not less than $1 million per occurrence.  
Coverage endorsed onto the CGL policy is acceptable. The Professional Liability 
and CGL insurance policies must:  (1) name Dominican University of California 
and its affiliates, trustees, directors, officers, partners, principals, employees and 
agents (collectively the “Additional Insureds”) as additional insureds pursuant to 
an endorsement that provides coverage for all claims or lawsuits arising out of or 
related to this Agreement. District must furnish to University before the effective 
date of this Agreement certificates of insurance for all insurance policies 
required under this section showing the Additional Insureds as additional 
insureds.  District must also provide at least 30 days written notice to University 
before any cancellation or restrictive endorsement to any of the required 
coverages. If the above-mentioned policies of insurance are claims-made 

Docusign Envelope ID: A0EE7508-90D0-4034-9EED-3BC7095ED74F



Dominican University of California          7 

coverage, District agrees to purchase claims-made coverage for three (3) years 
following termination of the agreement.  

 
University shall maintain in force at all times during the Terms of this Agreement 
the following insurance (1) Professional Liability insurance with minimum limits 
of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 annual aggregate; (2) Commercial 
general liability (“CGL”) insurance, including bodily injury, property damage, 
premises and contractual liability, with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $3,000,000 annual aggregate; and (3) Sexual Misconduct/Abuse 
liability insurance of an amount of not less than $1 million per occurrence.  
Coverage endorsed onto the CGL policy is acceptable. The Professional Liability 
and CGL insurance policies must:  (1) name District and its affiliates, trustees, 
directors, officers, partners, principals, employees and agents (collectively the 
“Additional Insureds”) as additional insureds pursuant to an endorsement that 
provides coverage for all claims or lawsuits arising out of or related to this 
Agreement.  University must  furnish to the District before the effective date of 
this Agreement certificates of insurance for all insurance policies required under 
this section showing the Additional Insureds as additional insureds.  University 
must also provide at least 30 days written notice to the District before any 
cancellation or restrictive endorsement to any of the required coverages. If the 
above-mentioned policies of insurance are claims-made coverage, University 
agrees to purchase claims-made coverage for three (3) years following 
termination of the agreement.  

9) Choice of Law:  
This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California. Unless waived by both parties, venue for any action to enforce or 
interpret the provisions of this Agreement shall be in Marin County, California. 

 
The authorized signatures below indicate understanding and acceptance of the 
terms of this Memorandum of Understanding. 

 
 

 
Janea Marking         Date 
Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
 
 
 

Mojgan Behmand         Date 
Vice President for Academic Affairs/Dean of the Faculty   
Dominican University of California  

Docusign Envelope ID: A0EE7508-90D0-4034-9EED-3BC7095ED74F

10/24/2024



P.O. Box 269003 
Sacramento, CA 95826 

 

October 16, 2024 Page 1 of 4  Sacramento County Office of Education  

 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
FOR DATA SHARING AND SUPPORT 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the Sacramento County Office of 
Education (SCOE), and Sacramento City Unified School District (District) regarding the 
provision of data support to District. 

WHEREAS, District has access to large amounts of student data and desires support in 
utilizing this data for its improvement efforts.  

WHEREAS, through SCOE’s System of Support and Differentiated Assistance, SCOE 
has a team with the expertise necessary to assist District in utilizing its data and building District’s 
capacity for future data analysis. 

WHEREAS, with this MOU, the parties set forth their agreement for SCOE to provide data 
support to District, consistent with the terms in this MOU.   

The parties agree to the following terms: 
A. Term and Termination  
Once signed by both parties, this MOU is in effect from October XX, 2024 through June 30, 
2027.  This MOU may be terminated by either party by giving 30-days written notice. 
 
B. SCOE agrees to: 

1. Provide Data Interpretation and Support.  SCOE will identify individuals (“SCOE Data 
Team”) to integrate, analyze and interpret District’s data around key areas related to 
SCOE’s System of Support and Differentiated Assistance.  As used in this MOU, data 
includes information from pupil records subject to the Federal Educational Rights and 
Privacy Act (FERPA) (“Data”).  SCOE’s Data Team will:  

a. work with designated District staff to identify District needs,  
b. integrate, analyze, and interpret District Data, 
c. present Data to District in a format that is easily understandable and addresses 

District’s identified needs, 
d. assist District in developing a plan for continuous improvement guided by the 

Data findings.  
 

2. Assist District with Training and Capacity Building.  SCOE’s Data Team will act as 
a resource for District’s designated staff to build their capacity to analyze and interpret 
Data from different sources.  
 

C. District agrees to: 
1. Designate District staff to collaborate with SCOE’s Data Team in identifying and reviewing 

Data regarding District’s needs. 
 

2. Provide SCOE access to relevant student data as needed to facilitate SCOE’s provision 
of services articulated in paragraph B, above. 
 
 
 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

October 16, 2024  Page 2 of 4  Sacramento County Office of Education  

D. Data Sharing 
1. School Official Designation.  The SCOE Data Team will be deemed to be school officials 

subject to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”), its implementing 
regulations, and corresponding California law. The SCOE Data Team will have access to 
pupil records in which they have a legitimate educational interest, which are those records 
that contain information necessary for the performance of the duties specified in section 
B of this MOU. SCOE agrees to abide by FERPA and the requirements imposed by 34 
CFR 99.33(a) on school officials and use the information only for the purposes of this 
MOU.  SCOE will not disclose pupil records to any other entity except with prior written 
consent, or as otherwise permitted by FERPA, its implementing regulations, and 
corresponding California law.  District will provide appropriate notice to parents in its 
annual notifications regarding school officials. (34 C.F.R. § 99.7.) 
 

2. Ownership of Data.  SCOE and District agree that District will continue to maintain 
ownership of and control over its source Data, including information contained in its pupil 
records.  SCOE agrees that it will not alter District’s source Data.  SCOE shall not be 
responsible for the type or quality of the Data provided by District, and SCOE makes no 
warranty as to the Data itself. District understands that though SCOE may notify it of 
issues it discovers with the source Data, District is responsible for any corrections 
required to its own Data or will authorize SCOE to make any limited explicit changes.  
District acknowledges that accurate reports rely upon accurate source Data being 
maintained by District.   
 

3. Transmission of Data. 
Both Parties agree to maintain appropriate security protocols in the transfer or 
transmission of Data, including ensuring Data may only be viewed or accessed by parties 
legally allowed to do so.  SCOE shall maintain Data obtained or generated pursuant to 
this MOU in a secure computer environment and not copy, reproduce, or transmit Data 
obtained pursuant to this MOU, except as requested by District or with District’s consent.  
SCOE shall provide security training to those of its employees who operate or have 
access to the system.  SCOE may also provide an initial security training to District.  
SCOE shall provide District with contact information for the person at SCOE who District 
may contact if District has security concerns or questions.  Where applicable, SCOE will 
require unique account identifiers, usernames, and passwords that must be entered each 
time a client or user signs in. 
 
Both parties agree to maintain appropriate network and other data security to protect any 
Data in its possession.  Each party agrees to notify the other if it has any reason to believe 
there has been a breach of data security relevant to the Data subject to this agreement, 
and any Data has been lost, tampered with, or otherwise illegally accessed.  Any 
notifications required by law in the event of a breach in data security will be the 
responsibility of the agency responsible for the data breach. 
 

4. Third Party Data Sharing. 
SCOE agrees to notify District and obtain District’s permission for sharing Data with any 
third parties. 
 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

October 16, 2024  Page 3 of 4  Sacramento County Office of Education  

SCOE has contracts with third party vendors to help with data processing and 
management (“SCOE Contractors”).  SCOE shall ensure SCOE Contractors that process, 
store, or access District’s Data have adequate technical security and organizational 
measures in place to keep Data secure and comply with this MOU.  SCOE will require 
any third-party vendors and subcontractors to comply with applicable state and federal 
laws and regulations regarding educational records and data privacy, including but not 
limited to: Education Code §§ 49073.1 and 49076; FERPA; HIPAA; and the Student 
Online Personal Information Protection Act (SOPIPA).  
 

5. Prohibited Use of Data   
Except as otherwise permitted by the terms of this MOU, SCOE shall not use the Data 
supplied to it in an unauthorized manner. Specifically, SCOE shall not sell or release Data, 
nor enable or permit third parties to engage in targeted advertising to students or to build 
student profiles unrelated to the purposes contemplated by this MOU. 
 

6. Destruction 
Within 30 days of the termination of this MOU, SCOE will destroy confidential pupil record 
information it has received from District in the performance of services under this MOU. 

E. Fiscal 
Neither party will owe a fiscal obligation to the other for the provision of services pursuant to 
this MOU.  

F. General Terms 
1. Indemnity. Each party agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other party 

(including its directors, agents, officers and employees), from any claim, action, or 
proceeding arising from any actual or alleged act or omission of the indemnifying party, 
its director, agents, officers, or employees arising from the indemnifying party’s duties and 
obligations described in this MOU or imposed by law.  
It is the intention of the parties that the provisions of this paragraph be interpreted to 
impose on each party responsibility to the other for the acts and omissions of their 
respective elected and appointed officials, employees, representatives, agents, and 
subcontractors. It is also the intention of the parties that where comparative fault is 
determined to have been contributory, principles of comparative fault will be followed.  
This provision will survive the termination of the MOU. 

2. Independent Agents.  This MOU is by and between independent agents and does not 
create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture and/or 
association between the independent agents.  Each party independently has control of 
its own data systems.  

3. Nondiscrimination.  Any service provided by the parties pursuant to this MOU shall be 
without discrimination based on the actual or perceived race, religious creed, color, 
national origin, nationality, immigration status, ethnicity, ethnic group identification, 
ancestry, age, marital status, pregnancy, physical or mental disability, medical condition, 
genetic information, gender, gender identity, gender expression, sex, or sexual 
orientation, in accordance with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations. 

4. Insurance.  All parties shall maintain in full force Commercial General Liability Insurance 
with limits of no less than $3,000,000 per occurrence.  Such requirement may be satisfied 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

October 16, 2024  Page 4 of 4  Sacramento County Office of Education  

by coverage through a joint powers authority. Evidence of insurance coverage shall be 
furnished upon request by a party to this MOU.  

5. Force Majeure. No party shall be liable to the other for delays or failures in performance 
under this MOU for events beyond their reasonable control, including acts of God, war, 
government regulation, terrorism, disaster, strikes of a third-party, civil disorder, 
curtailment of transportation facilities, pandemics, infectious disease outbreak, or similar 
occurrence beyond the party’s control, making it impossible, illegal, or commercially 
impracticable for one or both parties to perform its obligations under this MOU, in whole 
or in part. 

6. Entire Agreement.  This MOU constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the 
parties. All prior understandings, terms or conditions are deemed merged into this MOU. 
Any changes to this MOU must be agreed to in writing by all parties. 

7. Execution. The undersigned represent that they are authorized representatives of the 
parties.  This MOU may be executed in counterparts each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 
Photographic copies of the signed counterparts may be used in lieu of the originals for 
any purpose. 

Sacramento County Office of 
Education 

 Sacramento City Unified School 
District 

Nancy Herota, Ed.D. 
Deputy Superintendent  

 Janea Marking, Chief Business and 
Operations Officer 
  

   
Signature  Signature 

  
 
 

Date  Date 
 



SDCOE Agreement C- __________

Services Agreement

This Agreement, for the provision of services is entered into this ______ day of_________________, 
20____, by and between the SAN DIEGO COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS (hereinafter referred to as 
"SDCOE") and_Sacramento City Unified School District (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor") who 
agrees to provide the following services to the SDCOE:

1. Scope of Services.
Contractor shall provide services as described in Exhibit "A" entitled "Special Provisions" attached hereto 
and made a part hereof.

In the event of a conflict in or inconsistency between the terms of this agreement and Exhibit A, the 
Agreement shall prevail. Unless specifically stated otherwise, the order of precedence for the purpose of 
determining any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this agreement and any other documents 
shall be as follows 1) Any amendment to this agreement, 2) this agreement, 3) Exhibit(s) to this agreement, 
4) Other associated documents named in the agreement.

2.Term of Agreement.
This Agreement shall be effective from the period commencing 7/01/2024 and ending 6/30/2027, unless 
sooner terminated by SDCOE as provided in the section of this Agreement entitled "Termination." Upon 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall return to SDCOE any and all equipment, 
documents or materials and all copies made thereof which Contractor received from SDCOE or produced for 
SDCOE for the purposes of this Agreement.

3. Termination.
This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by SDCOE. Termination without cause shall be
effective only upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to Contractor. During said thirty-day period shall perform
all consulting services in accordance with this Agreement.

This Agreement may also be terminated by either party for cause in the event of a material breach of this
Agreement, misrepresentation in connection with the formation of this Agreement or the performance of
services, or the failure to perform services. Termination for cause shall be effected by delivery of written
notice by the non-breaching party. It is understood and agreed the termination may be delivered via email
and shall be effective on the date sent.

4. Compensation and Reimbursement.
There is no exchange of compensation between the parties under this agreement.

5. Confidential Relationship.
SDCOE may from time to time communicate to Contractor certain information to enable Contractor to
effectively perform the services. Contractor shall treat all such information as confidential, whether or not
so identified, and shall not disclose any part thereof without the prior written consent of the SDCOE.
Contractor shall limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its own organization, to the
extent necessary to perform the services. The foregoing obligation of this Paragraph 5, however, shall not
apply to any part of the information that (i) has been disclosed in publicly available sources of information;
(ii) is, through no fault of Contractor, hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information; (iii) is
now in the possession of Contractor without any obligation of confidentiality; (iv) is required to be disclosed
by operation of law; or (v) has been or is hereafter rightfully disclosed to Contractor by a third party, but
only to the extent that the use or disclosure thereof has been or is rightfully authorized by that third party.



Contractor shall not disclose any reports, recommendations, conclusions or other results of the services or
the existence of the subject matter of this Agreement without the prior written consent of the SDCOE. In its
performance hereunder, Contractor shall comply with all legal obligations it may now or hereafter have
respecting the information or other property of any other person, firm or corporation.

6. Public Records Act.
Contractor acknowledges that the SDCOE is a public agency subject to the requirements of the California
Public Records Act Cal. Gov. Code section 7920.000, et seq. The SDCOE acknowledges that Contractor may
submit information that Contractor considers confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information pursuant
the Uniform Trade Secrets Act (Cal. Civ. Code section 3426 et seq.), or otherwise protected from disclosure
pursuant to an exemption to the California Public Records Act (Government Code sections 7927.500 -
7929.010 and section 7922.000 et seq.) Contractor acknowledges that the SDCOE may submit to Contractor
information that the SDCOE considers confidential or proprietary or protected from disclosure pursuant to
exemptions to the California Public Records Act (Government Code sections 7927.500 - 7929.010 and
section 7922.000 et seq.). Upon request or demand of any third person or entity not a party to this
Agreement (“Requestor”) for production, inspection and/or copying of information designated by a
Disclosing Party as Confidential Information, the Receiving Party as soon practical but within three (3) days
of receipt of the request, shall notify the Disclosing Party that such request has been made, by telephone
call, letter sent via email and/or by US Mail to the address and email listed within the notices section of this
Agreement. The Disclosing Party shall be solely responsible for taking whatever legal steps are necessary to
protect information deemed by it to be Confidential Information and to prevent release of information to
the Requestor by the Receiving Party. If the Disclosing Party takes no such action, after receiving the
foregoing notice from the Receiving Party, the Receiving Party shall be permitted to comply with the
Requestor’s demand and is not required to defend against it.

7. Ownership of Documents.
All memoranda, reports, plans, specifications, maps, and other documents prepared or obtained under the
terms of this Agreement by or for SDCOE shall be the property of SDCOE and shall be delivered to SDCOE by
Contractor upon demand.

Services provided to the SDCOE, and all participating schools therein, and all related materials including, but
not limited to; audio; video; images; Contractor’s name, slogans, quotes, writings; posters; and any other
related materials which are exclusively owned by the Contractor will remain the exclusive property of the
Contractor.

8. Fund Availability
Funding of this Agreement, if funded by the SDCOE, is contingent upon appropriation and availability of
funds. Work performed in advance of Agreement approval shall be done at the sole risk of Contractor. In the
event the funds are not available by operation of law or budget determination, SDCOE shall have the
exclusive right to withhold funding.

9. Data Privacy and Protection
All SDCOE content/data (to include but not limited to students, teachers, interns, aides, Principals, and
other administrative personnel) involved in this agreement shall continue to be the property of and under
the control of the SDCOE.

All content/data created by the SDCOE or by its students or personnel using the service(s) provided by
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will cease to be retained by the Contractor at the conclusion of this
Agreement and will, in fact, be removed from the Contractor’s records.

The Contractor will not use any information in a student or personnel record for any purposes other than
those required or specifically permitted by this Agreement. Any other use of the SDCOE’s student and
personnel information will not be undertaken without the express, written consent of the SDCOE.

Page 2 of 8
Rev 1/2024



The Contractor certifies it uses and adheres to the following methods to ensure the privacy and security of
all electronically stored information:

· transmission of student and personnel information is always via secure protocols (SFTP, SSL and/or
encryption)

· no data transmission occurs via email

· student and personnel data are stored in an encrypted form and programmatic access to that data is done
using secure coding standards without visible account or password information

· all server systems including data storage are maintained in a locked, secure, environmentally controlled
facility

· all server systems have been hardened with industry standard recommended measures for security
protection

The Contractor will notify the SDCOE within 24 hours of the Contractor discovering an unauthorized access
or disclosure of SDCOE data.

The Contractor and the SDCOE will work together to ensure compliance with FERPA regulations as
applicable.

10. No Assignments.
Neither any part nor all of this Agreement may be assigned or subcontracted, except as otherwise
specifically provided herein, or to which SDCOE, in its sole discretion, consents to in advance thereof in
writing. Any assignment or subcontracting in violation of this provision shall be void.

11. Audit.
Contractor agrees to maintain and preserve, until three (3) years after termination of the Agreement with
the SDCOE and to permit the State of California or any of its duly authorized representatives, to have access
to and to examine and audit any pertinent books, documents, papers, and records related to this
Agreement.

12. Independent Contractor.
It is expressly understood that at all times, while rendering the services described herein, and in complying
with any terms and conditions of this Agreement, Contractor is acting as an independent contractor and not
as an officer, agent, or employee of the SDCOE. Except as SDCOE may specify in writing, Contractor shall
have no authority express or implied, to act on behalf of SDCOE in any capacity whatsoever as an agent.
Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind SDCOE to any obligation whatsoever.

13. Licenses, Permits, Etc.
Contractor represents and declares to SDCOE that it has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals
of whatever nature that is legally required to practice its profession. Contractor represents and warrants to
SDCOE that Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of this
Agreement, any license, permit, or approval which is legally required for Contractor to practice its
profession.

14. NOT USED

15. NOT USED

16. Tuberculosis Clearance.

Page 3 of 8
Rev 1/2024



Contractor shall certify in writing that Contractor’s employees, volunteers, and subcontractors receive
clearance for TB. In such cases where Contractor does not have in-person contact with students, contractor
shall not be required to obtain TB clearance.

17. NOT USED

18. Indemnification.
Each party, including its officers, agents, and employees, shall each save, defend, and hold harmless the
other against any and all liability, claims, damages, judgments, expenses, including litigation costs,
attorneys’ fees, and costs of whatsoever kind and nature for injury to or death of any person or persons and
for loss or damage. Each party shall defend, indemnify and hold the other party, its officers, employees, and
agents harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees),
or claims for injury or damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement but only in proportion to
and to the extent such liability, loss, expense, attorneys’ fees, or claims for injury or damages are caused by
or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its officers,
employees, or agents to property occurring in connection with or in any way incident to or arising out of
the occupancy, use, service, operations, or performance of work under the terms of this Contract, resulting
in whole or in part from the negligent, reckless, willful acts or omissions of County, including its agents or
representatives, or Contractor, including its agenda or representatives. All duties of County and Contractor
under this Section shall survive termination of this Contract.

19. Tobacco-Free Facility.
The SDCOE is a tobacco-free facility. Tobacco use (smoked or smokeless) is prohibited at all times on all
areas of or within SDCOE property.

20. Notices.
All notices, legal or otherwise, shall be provided as follows:

SDCOE: Sheiveh Jones, Executive Director
6401 Linda Vista Rd
San Diego, CA 92111
858-295-8806
snjones@sdcoe.net

With copy to: Chief Business Officer and
SDCOE Legal Services
6401 Linda Vista Rd
San Diego, CA 92111

Contractor: Dr. Tiffany Smith-Simmons, Director II
5735 47th Avenue
Sacramento, CA  95824
(916) 643-9058
tiffany-smith-simmons@scusd.edu

Page 4 of 8
Rev 1/2024



21. Amendment.
No oral or other agreements or understandings shall be effective to modify or alter the written terms of this
Agreement. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument signed by the
SDCOE and by a duly authorized representative of the Contractor.

22. Governing Law/Venue.
In the event of litigation, the Agreement and related matters shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be with the appropriate state or federal
court located in San Diego County.

23. Mediation.
In the event of any dispute, claim, question, or agreement or disagreement arising from or relating to this
Agreement or breach thereof, the parties hereto shall use their best efforts to settle the dispute, claim,
question, or disagreement. To this effect, they shall consult and negotiate with each other in good faith,
recognize their mutual interests, and attempt to reach a just and equitable solution satisfactory to both
parties. If the parties are unable to resolve the issue(s) within a period of thirty (30) days, then upon notice
of either party to the other, all disputes, claims, questions, or disagreements shall be resolved through
mediation. The parties will select a mediator by their mutual agreement, within 30 days. If there can be no
such agreement, each party will submit a list of five mediator choices to the other, rank ordered by
preference. The mediator will then be selected based on a further discussion, unless an individual is on both
lists and then that person would have preference. Each party shall bear its own costs, including without
limitation one half of the cost of the fees and costs of mediation.

24. Compliance with Law.
The Contractor shall be subject to, and shall comply with, all federal, state, and local laws and regulations
applicable to its performance under this Agreement including, but not limited to licensing, employment,
purchasing practices, wages, hours, and conditions of employment, including non-discrimination COVID
requirements as stated in Exhibit B to this agreement.

To the extent that this Agreement may be funded by fiscal assistance from another governmental entity,
Contractor and any subcontractor(s) shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations to which SDCOE is
bound by the terms of such fiscal assistance program.

25. Debarment, Suspension or Ineligibility Clause.
By signing this Agreement, the Contractor certifies that the Contractor, and any of its principles and/or
subcontractors:

i. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of
contracts by any federal agency, and;

ii. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this Agreement, been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with containing,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public
transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statues or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property.
Contractor certifies that no employee, officer, agent, or subcontractor who may come in contact with
students in performance of this Agreement, has been convicted of a serious or violent felony.

26. Authorization to Perform Services.
Contractor is not authorized to perform services or incur costs under this agreement until executed by both
the Contractor and approved by signature of the SDCOE Superintendent of Schools or his designee, the
Deputy Superintendent, Chief Business Officer.

Page 5 of 8
Rev 1/2024



27. Employment with Public Agency and Retirees.
Contractor, if an employee of another public agency, agrees that Contractor will not receive salary or
remuneration, other than vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in
which services are being performed pursuant to this Agreement. Retirees should seek guidance from their
respective retirement system to avoid a loss of retirement benefits.

In the event that Contractor or any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor providing services
under this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, the California Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) or the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) to be eligible for enrolment as an
employee of SDCOE, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless SDCOE for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for such retirement benefits on behalf of Contractor or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as payment for any penalties and interest on such
contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of SDCOE.

28. Conflict of Interests.
Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose activities or whose business, regardless of location,
would place the Contractor in a “conflict of interest” as the term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. Contractor shall not employee any SDCOE
official in the work performed pursuant to this Agreement. No officer or employee of SDCOE shall have any
financial interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1029 et seq.
Contractor warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous twelve (12) months, an employee,
agent, appointee, or official of SDCOE. Contractor understands that if this Agreement is or was

made in violation of Government Code 1090 et seq. the entire Agreement is void and Contractor will not be
entitled to any reimbursement of expenses, and Contractor will be required to reimburse SDCOE for any
sums paid to the Contractor. Contractor understands that, in addition to the foregoing, it may be subject to
criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code 1090 and, if applicable, will be disqualified from
holding public office in the State of California.

29. Counterparts.
This Agreement (and any amendments) may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. Documents
delivered electronically shall be valid and binding.

30. Severability.
If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this Agreement is invalid, void, or
unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The
invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any
other provision of this Agreement.

31. Waiver.

Any of the terms or conditions of this agreement may be waived at any time by the party entitled to the
benefit of the term or condition, but no such waiver shall affect or impair the right of the waiving party to
require observance, performance or satisfaction of that term or condition as it applies on a subsequent
occasion or any other term or condition of this Agreement.

Page 6 of 8
Rev 1/2024



32. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement represents the entire Agreement and understandings of the parties hereto and no prior
writings, conversations or representations of any nature shall be deemed to vary the provisions hereof. This
Agreement may not be amended in any way except by a writing duly executed by both parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed, such parties
acting by their representatives being thereunto duly authorized.

SAN DIEGO COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT Sacramento City Unified School District

OF SCHOOLS

By (Authorized Signature) By (Authorized Signature)

Michael Simonson
Name (Type or Print) Name (Type or Print)

Deputy Superintendent, Chief Business Officer
Title Title

Date Date

Page 7 of 8
Rev 1/2024

Janea Marking

Chief Business and  Operations Officer



EXHIBIT A
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A. The County agrees to: 

1. Act as Local Educational Agency (LEA) in accordance with San Diego County Local Educational
Agency agreement with the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing. a. Provide
credential services for the review of applications for the Adult and Career Technical Education
Designated Subjects Credentials. 

2. Distribute Commission on Teacher Credentialing updates for credential standards and program
information. 

3. Review and organize data from course evaluations and mentor experiences. Report findings
at Credential advisory meetings. 

4. Organize candidate, credential analyst, and administrative advisory meetings. 

5. Adhere to the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing educator preparation
accreditation system’s 7-year cycle of activities. 

6. Provide support and linkages to partnering Institution of Higher Educations (IHE).

7. Provide ongoing program improvement collaboration opportunities with IHEs, Districts,
employers, and all relevant stakeholders. 

B. The Contractor agrees to: 

1. Provide supervisors (evaluative) who are: 

a. Certificated and experienced in teaching. 

b. Trained in supervision and support of beginning teachers. 

c. Experienced in offering professional development opportunities. 

d. Experienced in providing ongoing support to support providers and candidates. e.
Responsible for collaborating with the county program staff on selecting qualified
mentors and completing all necessary paperwork.

2. Provide support provider (non-evaluative) mentors for each preliminary credential
candidate

A. Scope of Services. including substitute teachers) upon hire who are: 
a. Program approved and meet minimum qualifications: 

i. Hold a valid clear California teaching credential. 
ii. Verify a minimum of three (3) years of classroom teaching experience. 
iii. Verify recent work experience in an educational setting. 

b. Trained in providing coaching and support to beginning teachers. 

c. Assessed by new teacher candidates for their services. 

d. Competent in providing complete, accurate and timely feedback to new teacher candidates
throughout the period of the preliminary credential.

3. Provide staff available to assist and support candidates in the processing of credential
application materials (i.e., district credential technician). 
4. Ensure candidates enroll in Early Program Orientation within the first 30-days of
employment. 
5. Identify one (1) contact person as liaison with the County.

Page 8 of 8
Rev 1/2024



Sacramento City Unified School District

Sacramento City Unified School District

 Pacific ES and
Arthur A. Benjamin HS.





July 1, 2024 June 30, 2025



Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the University and the CHP, each Fellow may be assigned to the CHP 

from July 1, 2024 to June 30, 202S for 12 to 15 hours per week. 

Term and Termination 

a. This MOU shall become effective as of the last written date below and shall remain in effect for one year

after that date unless terminated earlier by the Parties.

b. The Parties may terminate this MOU, without cause, by providing 30 days prior written notice to the

other Party provided. However, no termination shall take effect for enrolled fellows, who shall be

permitted to complete their training for any semester term in which termination would otherwise occur.

c. The CHP may immediately terminate the Fellow's service placement if the Fellow violates the CH P's

standards of conduct, policies, procedures, or instructions or if the CH P's business necessity requires

termination.

General Provisions 

A. Confidentiality. The Parties to this MOU shall maintain the confidentiality of all Data exchanges by each Party

under the terms of this MOU and the Attachments. The confidentiality requirement under this paragraph and

Attachments 1 and 2 shall survive the termination or expiration of this MOU or any subsequent MOU intended to

supersede this MOU.

B. Use of Names. Nothing in this MOU confers on either Party the right to use the other Party's name without prior

written permission or constitutes an endorsement of uny commerciul product or service by either Party,

C. Notices. All notices described in this MOU shall be in writing and shall be considered given upon personal delivery

of the written notice or within four days after deposit in the mail, certified or registered, and addressed to the

appropriate address set forth below. Any address change shall be made by written notice under this paragraph.

D. Negligence. Each Party is liable for the negligence of its own employees, with liability limited by the CTC and

applicable laws.

E. Indemnification.

1. 

2. 

CHP lndemnfflcation: The CHP will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Sacramento State and 

its affiliates ("University lndemnitees") from all liabilities, losses, claims, and related expenses 

arising from (1) any negligent or intentional acts or omissions by the CHP, and (2) any breach of 

the CHPs representations or warranties in this Agreement. This indemnification does not cover 

damages from Sacramento State's sole negligence or willful misconduct. 

Sacramento State's Indemnification: Sacramento State will defend, indemnify, and hold 

harmless the CHP and its affiliates ("CHP lndemnitees") from all liabilities, losses, claims, and 

related expenses arising from (1) any negligent or intentional acts or omissions by Sacramento 

State, and (2) any breach of Sacramento State's representations or warranties in this 

Agreement. This indemnification does not cover damages from the CHPs sole negligence or 

willful misconduct. 

G. Execution. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, by signing below, each of the following represent that they have authority to

execute this Agreement and to bind the Party on whose behalf their signature is made.

The University & CHP MOU, 

Page 4 of 6 



Attn: Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contract Analyst
Sacramento City Unified School District
5735 47th Avenue
Sacramento CA  95824

Janea Marking

Chief Business & Operations Officer































































































































































































































 

 

 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT FOR  
CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
This Amendment to the Agreement for Consultant Services ("Amendment") is entered into between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and Campbell Keller ("Consultant ") (collectively the 
"Parties"): 

 
Section I. Amendment to Agreement for Independent Consultant Agreement for Consultant Services 
originally entered to on February 1, 2024. 

 
1. Approval of this Amendment: This Amendment shall be subject to the approval of the 

District's Board of Education ("Board"). Upon approval by the Board, the effective date of this 
Amendment shall be November 7, 2024; 

 
2. Extension of Term of the Agreement: This Amendment shall extend the current Consultant 

staffing on the Project from February 2024 to June 2025; 
 

3. Fee and Method of Payment: The District shall continue to pay Consultant for the current 
services and will now pay for the added services from and after November 7, 2024, on a flat fee basis up to a 
maximum of $782,963.00, as reflected below, unless this Amendment is further extended or modified. 

 
Description of Scope Change: basis for change order 

 
Additional purchasing of classroom and specialty furniture at California MS Campus Renewal as 

requested of the District 
 

Description of funding changes to contract: 
 

Original contract amount. ................................................................................................ $632,057.00 
Previous change orders through change order #- ..................................................................... $0.00 
Contract amount prior to this change order ..................................................................... $632,057.00 
Amount of this change order.......... ............................................................................. ... $134,489.00 

 
 

NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT......... ........................................................................... ......$766,546.00 
 
  

 
FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Chris Ralston, Assistant Superintendent to Facilities 



 

 
 
 

Section IL All Other Provisions Reaffirmed. 
All other provisions of the Agreement for Consultant Services shall remain in full force and effect and 

are hereby reaffirmed. If there is any conflict between this Amendment No. 1 and any provision of the Agreement 
for Consultant Services, the provisions of this Amendment No. 1 shall control. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for 

Consultant Services to be executed by their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the Effective 
Date. 

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 

 
 

DATE: November 7, 2024 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School 
District 

 Campbell Keller 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Janea Marking 
Chief Business and Operations Officer 

 Craig Campbell 
 

 
 
 
 
 





































completion of the entire work as stated therein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials 
and services and perform all work necessary to complete any additional work specified for 
the consideration stated therein. Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which 
Contractor knows are false are at the sole risk of Contractor and may be a violation of the 
False Claims Act set forth under Government Code section 12650 et seq. 

This change order is subject to approval by the governing board of this District and must be 
signed by the District. Until such time as this change order is approved by the District's 
governing board and executed by a duly authorized District representative, this change 
order is not effective and not binding. 

It is expressly understood that the compensation and time, if any, granted herein represent 
a full accord and satisfaction for any and all time and cost impacts of the items herein, and 
Contractor waives any and all further compensation or time extension based on the items 
herein. The value of the extra work or changes expressly includes any and all of the 
Contractor's costs and expenses, and its subcontractors, both direct and indirect, resulting 
from additional time required on the project or resulting from delay to the project including 
without limitation, cumulative impacts. Any costs, expenses, damages or time extensions 
not included are deemed waived. 

Signatures: 

District: 

Janea Marking
Chief Business & Operations Officer 

Architect: 

Affifa Kadhim
HMC Architects 

Date 

10/22/24 

Date 

Contractor: 

;t(__. (, µ__ 
Marco Antonio Marin
Patio Designers 

Project Inspector: 

10-18-2024

Date 

END OF DOCUMENT 

SACRAMENTO CITY USD 

PARKWAY ES SHADE STRUCTURE 

CHANGE ORDER FORM 

DOCUMENT 00 63 63-77 













SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED  
SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CHANGE ORDER FORM 
DOCUMENT 00 63 63.02-1 

Revised 10/28/24 
 

DOCUMENT 00 63 63.02 

CHANGE ORDER FORM 

 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
5735 47th Ave. 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

 CHANGE ORDER NO.: 

1 

CHANGE ORDER 
Project:  Metasys at 14 Sites 
Bid No.:  463 

Date: October 31, 2024 
DSA File No.: N/A 
DSA Appl. No.: N/A 
 

The following parties agree to the terms of this Change Order: 

Owner:  Sacramento City USD 
5735 47th Ave. 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

Contractor: Johnson Controls, Inc. 
103 Woodmere Road 
Folsom CA  95630 
 

Designer Engineer: KMM Services 
5433 El Camino Avenue 
Suite 5 
Carmichael CA  95608 
 

       Project Inspector:  
[Name / Address] 
 

    
Reference Description  Cost Days 

Ext. 
 Credits used to buy spare equipment parts; 

adjustment for miscount of HVAC units at Capital City 
campus 

$0  

 Summary of transactions: 
1. Credit from JCI for economizers not required 

to be installed at several of the school sites. 
2. Metasys invoice charge 2022-2025 
3. Adjustment for miscount of HVAC units at 

Capital City campus 
4. Additional parts purchased by SCUSD-Alex 

Constance for Hiram Johnson 
5. Parts to be supplied - 4xSNE / 

11xCGM/35xTStats/35xCO2 
 

($183,956) 
 
 
$30,661 
$28,594 
 
$25,751 
 
$98,950 

 

Contract time will be adjusted as follows: 

Previous Completion Date:    [Date] 

            [#]  Calendar Days Extension 

Original Contract Amount: $4,129,531  

Amount of Previously 
Approved Change 
Order(s): 

$0.00 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED  
SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CHANGE ORDER FORM 
DOCUMENT 00 63 63.02-2 

Revised 10/28/24 
 

Current Completion Date:     [Date] Amount of this Change 
Order: 

$0.00 

Contract Amount: $4,129,531 

The undersigned Contractor approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any, and the Cost, 
if any, specified for each item and as to the extension of time allowed, if any, for completion 
of the entire work as stated therein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials and services 
and perform all work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the 
consideration stated therein. 

This change order is subject to approval by the governing board of this district and must be 
signed by the District. 

The compensation and time, if any, granted herein represent a full accord and satisfaction 
for any and all time and cost impacts of the items herein, and Contractor waives any and all 
further compensation or time extension based on the items herein.  The value of the extra 
work or changes expressly includes any and all of the Contractors costs and expenses, both 
direct and indirect, resulting from additional time required on the project or resulting from 
delay to the project.  Any costs, expenses, damages or time extensions not included are 
deemed waived. 

Signatures: 

District:    Contractor: Johnson Controls, Inc. 
 
 
        
Janea Marking  Date    Date 
Chief Business & Operations Officer 
 
 
 
Designer Engineer: KMM Services, Inc.  Project Inspector:  N/A 
 
 
 
        
Ronny Kagstrom  Date  [Name]  Date 
 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item#11.1b 

 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Approve Contracts Report >$15,000 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval of items submitted. 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
Financial Considerations:  See attached. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence    
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Contracts Reports > $114, 500 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Janea Marking, Chief Business Officer 

  Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contract Analyst 

Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Contracts Report >$15,000

1 of 3 November 7, 2024 BOE

Requisition Vendor Name Requisition 
Type Department/School Director/Instr. 

Asst. Supt. 
Cabinet 
Member

New 
Contract?  Term Description Funding 

Resource
Resource 

Code Amount PRC 
Approved

SA25-00249
Norcal School of 
the Arts

Service 
Agreement Academic Yvonne Wright Yvonne Wright Yes 9/1/24-6/30/25

Providing in-school theater arts & SEL 
integrated classes (MOU on file)

Arts & Music 
in School 6770 $645,000.00 10/14/2024

SA25-00509
Shimansky 
Enterprises

Service 
Agreement Facilities Chris Ralston Janea Marking Yes 11/7/24-3/1/28

DSA Inspection services for the Fern Bacon MS 
Modernization project.  Project will have two (2) 
inspectors on project. Measure H 9809 $515,900.00 10/28/2024

SA25-00471
Fagen Friedman & 
Fulfrost

Service 
Agreement Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Legal Services to Special Education Dept 
(Master Agreement approved at 6/20/24 BOE) General 0000 $500,000.00 10/14/2024

SA25-00473 Lozano Smith
Service 
Agreement Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Legal Services to Special Education Dept 
(Master Agreement approved at 6/20/24 BOE) General 0000 $375,000.00 10/14/2024

SA25-00510
Phoenix 
Construction

Service 
Agreement Facilities Chris Ralston Janea Marking Yes 11/7/24-3/1/28

DSA Inspection services for the Fern Bacon MS 
Modernization project.  Project will have two (2) 
inspectors on project. Measure H 9809 $332,640.00 10/28/2024

S25-00006

Mountain Valley 
Child & Family 
Services

Non-Public 
School Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Residential services for students as requested 
by the Special Education Department for 
SY2024-25

Special 
Education 6500 $317,196.00 10/14/2024

SA25-00458
St. Hope Public 
Schools

Service 
Agreement Youth Development Manpreet Kaur Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Provide students opportunities to expand 
learning, promote academic achievement, 
assist children and adults from low-income 
families to participate in their education 21st Century 4124 $276,325.00 10/28/2024

SA25-00210
Studios for the 
Performing Art

Service 
Agreement Academic Yvonne Wright Yvonne Wright Yes 9/1/24-6/30/25

Providing in-school artist residences (MOU on 
file)

Arts & Music 
in School 6770 $275,000.00 10/14/2024

SA25-00467
In Class Today 
(EveryDay Labs)

Service 
Agreement

Student Attendance & 
Engagement

Mary Hardin 
Young

Mary Hardin 
Young Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Truancy Support which includes: review 
students eligible to receive notices of truancy; 
select and/or approve students to send notices 
to; view reporting on how many students have 
received each notice

Learning 
Comm for 

Sch Success 7085 $181,947.55 10/14/2024

SA25-00116
Northern 
California Rehab

Service 
Agreement Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25 Occupational Therapy services (MOU on file)

Special 
Education 6500 $178,200.00 10/14/2024

SA25-00408
Improve Your 
Tomorrow

Service 
Agreement Counseling Services Yvonne Wright Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Serve 150 students through the College 
Academy at SCUSD

IASA-Title I 
Basic Grants-

Low 3010 $157,500.00 10/14/2024

R25-02311 Follet Software
Purchase 
Order Technology Services Tim Rocco Tim Rocco No 1/31/25-1/30/26

District Library Manager and Destiny hosted 
services renewal licenses General 0000 $129,863.48 10/28/2024

SA25-00519 Eliassen Group
Service 
Agreement Accounting Cindy Tao Janea Marking Yes 11/11/24-5/16/25

Working remotely: will assist with various 
payroll tax functions, ensuring compliance with 
federal, state, and local tax laws General 0000 $120,000.00 10/28/2024

R25-02062
Avanti Restaurant 
Solutions

Purchase 
Order Nutrition Services Diana Flores Janea Marking Yes 9/20/24-6/30/25

Pass-through refrigerators and combi-ovens for 
school site kitchens

Child 
Nutrition/NSL
P Equipment 5310/5314 $105,725.67 10/14/2024

SA25-00415
Leadership 
Academy

Service 
Agreement Academic Yvonne Wright Yvonne Wright Yes 9/1/24-5/30/25

Professional learning, coaching and through 
partnership services that build the culturally 
responsive leadership

IASA-Title I 
Basic Grants-

Low 3010 $99,000.00 10/14/2024

R25-02259 Apple, Inc
Purchase 
Order Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 9/1/24-6/30/25

160 each i-Pads for Wechsler Individual 
Achievement Test training

Special 
Education 6500 $69,656.00 10/14/2024

R25-02478 CDW LLC
Purchase 
Order Technology Services Tim Rocco Tim Rocco Yes 12/14/24-12/13/25

Syscloud Google Workspace District license 
renewal. Sourcewell Contract 081419-CDW General 0000 $60,000.00 10/28/2024

SA25-00439
Read Academy of 
Sacramento

Service 
Agreement Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Final Settlement Agreement OAH Case No. 
2023010106 & 2024040459

Special 
Education 6500 $50,150.00 10/14/2024

R25-02626
Fiery Ginger 
Farm, LLC

Blanket 
Purchase 
Order Nutrition Services Diana Flores Janea Marking Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

To purchase produce for the Child Nutrition 
program during SY2024-25

Child 
Nutrition 5310 $50,000.00 10/28/2024



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Contracts Report >$15,000

2 of 3 November 7, 2024 BOE

Requisition Vendor Name Requisition 
Type Department/School Director/Instr. 

Asst. Supt. 
Cabinet 
Member

New 
Contract?  Term Description Funding 

Resource
Resource 

Code Amount PRC 
Approved

R25-02203 Anixter, Inc
Purchase 
Order Facilities Chris Ralston Janea Marking Yes 9/30/24-6/30/25

Single point access electronic control latches 
and accessory parts (exit devices) for Bond 
project schools Measure H 9809 $49,532.13 10/28/2024

R25-02462 Elk Grove Ford
Purchase 
Order Luther Burbank HS Tuan Duong Yvonne Wright Yes 10/11/24-6/30/25

Used 10-passenger van for Luther Burbank HS 
Urban Garden program. 

Sacramento 
Youth 

Development 
Program 

Grant 9255 $46,376.61 10/28/2024

R25-02471

Sacramento 
Community 
Convention Center

Purchase 
Order

Deputy 
Superintendent

Mary Hardin 
Young

Mary Hardin 
Young Yes 6/9/25-6/11/25

2025 Graduation Ceremonies use license at the 
Safe Credit Union Convention Center General 0000 $42,650.00 10/28/2024

SA25-00466
LPC Consulting 
Assoc

Service 
Agreement

Student Attendance & 
Engagement

Mary Hardin 
Young

Mary Hardin 
Young Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Provide Attendance Toolkit Revisions; Data 
Collection and Tracking Measures; and 
Meetings and Data Review for the Cohort 7 
Learning Communities.  Year 2 of 3 award.

Learning 
Comm for 

Sch Success 7085 $40,000.00 10/14/2024

SA25-00474
Northern 
California Rehab

Service 
Agreement Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant 
services (MOU is on file).

Special 
Education 6500 $29,781.00 10/14/2024

SA25-00513

Sacramento 
Chinese 
Community

Service 
Agreement Rosemont Tuan Duong Yvonne Wright Yes 6/24/24-7/26/24

Provide a freshman bridge and sophomore 
relaunch program where students can learn 
about the culture and expectations of the school

Expanded 
Learning 2600 $29,103.29 10/28/2024

R25-02209
A. and/or R. A. 
(Parents) 

Blanket 
Purchase 
Order Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 9/10/24-12/31/24

OAH Case No. 2024050659; Parent 
reimbursement for educational related services 
provided to their child between 6/1/2022 
through 9/10/2024.  

Special 
Education 6500 $29,085.00 10/28/2024

R25-02564

Precision 
Communications, 
Inc.

Purchase 
Order Facilities Chris Ralston Janea Marking Yes 10/17/24-6/30/25

Provide and install video intercom at John F. 
Kennedy HS, Elder Creek ES and School of 
Engineering & Science. Measure H 9809 $29,041.65 10/28/2024

SA25-00457
National 
University

Service 
Agreement Human Resources Cancy McArn Cancy McArn Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Bd approved 12/16/21 for Educator 
Effectiveness Block Grant. Purpose of 
supporting professional learning for certificated 
teachers, administrator, paraprofessional 
educators and certified staff.

Educator 
Effectiveness 6266 $26,844.63 10/14/2024

SA25-00230

Nor Cal Srv for 
Deaf and Hard of 
Hearing

Service 
Agreement Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Coaching for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing as 
requested by SPED

Special 
Education 6500 $24,999.00 10/28/2024

R25-02526
Thinkgreen 
Nature, Inc

Purchase 
Order Facilities Chris Ralston Janea Marking Yes 10/16/24-6/30/25

New irrigation valve and conduit installation at 
Sam Brannan Middle School. 

Ongoing 
Maintenance 8150 $24,610.00 10/28/2024

SA25-00440
Read Academy of 
Sacramento

Service 
Agreement Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Final Settlement Agreement OAH Case No. 
2023050758

Special 
Education 6500 $24,500.00 10/14/2024

R25-02345

Law Offices of 
Nicole Hodge 
Amey

Purchase 
Order Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 6/5/24-6/5/26

Parent's attorney fees per Settlement 
Agreement OAH Case No. 2023120077

Special 
Education 6500 $24,000.00 10/14/2024

R25-02160
JM Environmental, 
Inc

Purchase 
Order Facilities Chris Ralston Janea Marking Yes 9/26/24-6/30/25

Emergency response to CKM HS for the 
removal, and disposal of portable restroom fire 
debris and biological waste.    

Ongoing 
Maintenance 8150 $23,127.00 10/14/2024

R25-02094

Adams Esq, A 
Professional 
Corporation

Purchase 
Order Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 9/23/24-6/30/25

OAH Case No. 2024040907 attorney fees 
settlement amount paid by the District. General 0000 $22,500.00 10/14/2024

R25-02341 C.I (Parent)

Blanket 
Purchase 
Order Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Parent mileage reimbursement per student IEP 
during SY2024-25

Special 
Education 6500 $22,000.00 10/14/2024

SA24-00659 Armand Perez
Service 
Agreement Facilities Chris Ralston Janea Marking No 2/27/24-6/30/25

Additional DSA Inspection Services to complete 
Parkway Shade Structure project.  INCREASE 
OF 2,640 Measure H 9809 $21,840.00 10/14/2024



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Contracts Report >$15,000

3 of 3 November 7, 2024 BOE

Requisition Vendor Name Requisition 
Type Department/School Director/Instr. 

Asst. Supt. 
Cabinet 
Member

New 
Contract?  Term Description Funding 

Resource
Resource 

Code Amount PRC 
Approved

SA25-00464
Fagen Friedman & 
Fulfrost

Service 
Agreement Special Education

Geovanni 
Linares Yvonne Wright No 7/1/23-6/30/24 Services rendered for 2023-2024 SPED training

Special 
Education 6500 $19,620.24 10/14/2024

R25-02204 Ingenium Group
Purchase 
Order Risk Management 

Keyshun 
Marshall Janea Marking Yes 10/1/24-6/30/25

To pay invoices for the removal and disposal of 
hazardous waste from school sites. General 0000 $19,377.32 10/14/2024

R25-01619
Trustees of CA 
State University

Blanket 
Purchase 
Order Counseling Services

Christina 
Espinosa Yvonne Wright Yes 7/1/24-6/30/25

Application code fees for District students 
applying to CSUS during SY2024-25 General 0000 $17,000.00 10/14/2024

R25-02248 Lennox Industries
Purchase 
Order Facilities Chris Ralston Janea Marking Yes 10/2/24-6/30/25 Shop stock of R410A refrigerant for SY2024-25

Ongoing 
Maintenance 8150 $16,795.00 10/14/2024

R25-02250 Decker, Inc
Purchase 
Order Facilities Chris Ralston Janea Marking Yes 10/2/24-6/30/25 White boards for Serna conference rooms

Ongoing 
Maintenance 8150 $15,595.09 10/14/2024

R25-02521

Sacramento 
County Office of 
Education

Purchase 
Order Matsuyama ES Enrique Flores Yvonne Wright Yes 4/7/25-4/11/25

6th Grade Sly Park Science Camp field trip 
SY2024-25

Learning 
Recovery 

Emergency 
Block Grant 7435 $15,213.00 10/28/2024

R25-01608
Curriculum 
Associates

Purchase 
Order Oak Ridge ES Aprille Shafto Yvonne Wright Yes 8/1/24-7/31/25 i-Ready Math and Reading site annual license 

Title I Basic / 
Title I  

Intervention 3010/3019 $15,120.00 10/14/2024



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 11.1c 
 

 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
Subject:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resources Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Certificated Personnel Transactions Dated November 7, 2024 
2. Classified Personnel Transactions Dated November 7, 2024 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:   Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resources Officer and Lead 
Negotiator  
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Superintendent  

 
 Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 1:  CERTIFICATED 11/7/2024

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
AKABA-MCCUMBER CHERY B Teacher, Elementary PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 REEMPMLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                               
BURKE ANNA 0 Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 10/23/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/23/24                                                                                                  
DETHERAGE SANDEEP B Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. PHOEBE A HEARST BASIC ELEM. 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 REEMPLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                                  
DETHERAGE SANDEEP B Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. SUSAN B. ANTHONY ELEMENTARY 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 REEMPLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                                  
DIAZ LUA RENATA A Teacher, K-8 ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 REEMPMLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                               
DIEP DIEN A Teacher, Elementary PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 REEMPMLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                               
GREENBERG JEANNE B Lang. Speech & Hearing Speclst SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                              
HOEY BRITANY B Teacher, Elementary THEODORE JUDAH ELEMENTARY 10/22/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/22/24                                                                                                   
JONSEN KAITLYN B Teacher, Elementary TAHOE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/17/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/17/24                                                                                                    
MARQUEZ JARED 0 Teacher, High School ENGINEERING AND SCIENCES HS 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                  
MILLER ANGELA B Teacher, Elementary EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 10/23/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/23/24                                                                                                   
MUNOZ MELISSA 0 Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                  
MURRISH MICHELLE B Teacher, Elementary FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 10/17/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/17/24                                                                                                    
ORTIZ AGUILAR JOSE 0 Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 11/4/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 11/4/24                                                                                                   
PALAFOX CHAULETTE B School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 10/1/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/1/24                                                                                                   
PENN BETHANY B Teacher, Spec Ed LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                                  
ROYSTON JEWEL B School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                  
TISCARENO SAMANTHA 0 Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. GEO WASHINGTON CARVER 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                  
WANLASS MEGHAN B Teacher, Elementary HUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENTARY 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                                  
WHEDBEE STEVEN B Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                  

LEAVES 
ALEXANDER ASHLEY A Director III, Prof Learn ELA CURRICULUM & PROF DEVELOP 9/23/2024 10/24/2024 LOA (PD) 9/23-11/12/24                                                                                                 
ALVARADO LISSA A Teacher, Elementary PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/8/2024 2/3/2025 LOA (UNPD) 11/8/24-2/3/25                                                                                        
BAHRAMZI GHAZALA A Teacher, Spec Ed FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2024 6/13/2025 LOA (UNPD) 7/1-6/13/25                                                                                               
BRINKLEY SHANNON A Teacher, K-8 ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/22/2024 10/22/2024 RTN LOA 10/22/24                                                                                            
BRUNDAGE NICHOLAS 0 Teacher, High School HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIGH SCHOOL 10/21/2024 12/6/2024 LOA (PD) CFRA 10/21/24                                                                                               
CORTEZ CARA A Teacher, Middle School MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/4/2024 6/30/2025 RTN LOA 11/4/24                                                                                           
FIGUEROA VANESSA 0 Teacher, Elementary O. W. ERLEWINE ELEMENTARY 10/22/2024 6/30/2025 LOA (UNPD) ADMIN 10/22/24                                                                                                 
HARRIS KAYLA A Teacher, Middle School FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/27/2024 11/16/2024 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 10/26-11/16/24                                                                             
KOBERL NICOLE A Teacher, Elementary EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 11/11/2024 1/27/2025 LOA (PD) 11/11/24-1/27/25                                                                                          
MOSELY KRISTAL A Teacher, Elementary HOLLYWOOD PARK ELEMENTARY 10/13/2024 12/31/2024 LOA EXT (PD) 10/13/24-12/31/24                                                                                         
PALMER LORI A Teacher, Spec Ed EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 10/9/2024 6/30/2025 LOA (PD) ADMIN 10/9/24                                                                                                    
STANLEY DEMETRIA A Teacher, Elementary LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 7/1/2024 1/6/2025 LOA EXT (UNPD) 7/1/-1/6/25                                    
THAO MALEE A Teacher, Elementary NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 12/21/2024 2/15/2025 LOA (PD) 12/21/24-2/15/25                                                                                          
WILSON KRISTIN A Teacher, Spec Ed TAHOE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/28/2024 6/30/2025 LOA RTN ADMIN 10/28/24                                                                                             

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
COREY MEGAN A Teacher, Resource, Elementary EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 REA 10/14/24                                                                                                     
COREY MEGAN A Training Specialist EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 REA 10/14/24                                                                                                     
DOOLITTLE MOLLY A Teacher, Resource, Elementary CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY 8/1/2024 6/30/2025 STCHG 8/1/24                                                                                                  

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
ROACH LARA A School Social Worker STUDENT SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS 9/27/2024 10/25/2024 SEP/RESIGN 10/25/24                                                                                                
SETHI VEENA Teacher, Spec Ed SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 7/1/2024 10/18/2024 SEP/RESIGN 10/18/24                                                                                                     

TRANSFER
BRINKLEY SHANNON A Teacher, Middle School FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/23/2024 6/30/2025 TR 10/23/24                                                                                               
DILLY JENNIFER A Teacher, Elementary NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 10/7/2024 6/30/2025 TR 10/7/24                                                                                                          
FIELDS JACQUELINE A Teacher, Spec Ed ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 TR 10/21/24                                                                                                
ROSSI MICHELLE C Teacher, Elementary DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/23/2024 6/30/2025 TR 9/23/24                                                                                             
RUSSELL KAYLA B Teacher, Elementary SUY:U ELEMENTARY 10/1/2024 6/30/2025 TR 10/1/24                                                                                                   

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
November 7, 2024



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 2:  CLASSIFIED 11/7/2024

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY

AREVALO CRUZ PEDRO B Maint and Grounds Asst Sprvsr FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 10/28/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/28/24                                                                                                    
BETTES MIKELA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed HOLLYWOOD PARK ELEMENTARY 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                    
BRIESE PATRICIA B Inst Aide Child Dev EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                                  
CABRERA ALEJANDRA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 10/16/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/16/24                                                                                                    
DIAZ YENIA B Noon Duty ETHEL PHILLIPS ELEMENTARY 10/23/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/23/24                                                                                                    
ESPINDOLA ORTEGA ALISANDRA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                  
FIGUEROA NALLELY B Attendance Tech II ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/22/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/22/24                                                                                                  
GALEY JAMES B Inst Aid, Spec Ed ISADOR COHEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/16/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/16/24                                                                                                    
GARCIA VALDEZ SILVIA B Clerk II CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY 10/9/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/9/24                                                                    
GIFFORD ASHLEY B Food Prod Asst, Cent Kit NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 10/17/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/17/24                                                                    
GILBERT YANIKA B Custodian UMOJA INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY 10/16/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/16/24                                                                                                  
GONZALEZ LOPEZ BARDO B Inst Aid, Spec Ed H.W. HARKNESS ELEMENTARY 10/7/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/7/24                                                                                                     
GUO JIANWEN B Custodian ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 10/11/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/11/24                                                                                                  
HELFRICH ANDREW B Inst Aid, Spec Ed SAC NEW TECH EARLY COLLEGE HS 10/7/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/7/24                                                                                                   
HOOKER KAREN B Morning Duty PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/10/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/10/24                                                                                                    
HUERTA RUBY B Inst Aid, Spec Ed JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 10/28/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/28/24                                                                                                  
JOSE ANDRES B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 10/28/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/28/24                                                                                                    
LOPEZ PAULINE B Sup II Adult Ed A.WARREN McCLASKEY ADULT 10/7/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/7/24                                                                                                   
LOPEZ KATHLEEN B Instructional Aide (TK) WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                    
MCCLURE DAVID B Inst Aid, Spec Ed UMOJA INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                                  
MCKINNON MEREDITH B Food Prod Asst, Cent Kit NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/5/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 11/5/24                                                                                             
MERCHANT NEVAEH B Noon Duty DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                    
OBRIEN HEATHER B Inst Aid, Spec Ed NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 10/7/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/7/24                                              
ROSSI AMY B Noon Duty HOLLYWOOD PARK ELEMENTARY 10/11/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PORB 10/11/24                                                                                                    
SEKUL KATHLEEN B Inst Aid, Spec Ed SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                                    
TAN WEIKANG B Custodian C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                  
WACKER JENNIFER B Inst Aide Child Dev EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 11/4/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 11/4/24                                                                                              
WIBORN-MEDEIROS ALISHA B Morning Duty WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                                    
WIBORN-MEDEIROS ALISHA B Noon Duty WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/21/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/21/24                                                                                                    
YOUNG FRANCHELL B Inst Aid, Spec Ed HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 EMPLOY PROB 10/14/24                                                                                                  

LEAVES
OCHOA SALVADOR A Custodian MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/22/2024 6/30/2025 LOA (PD) ADMIN 10/22/24                                                                                                 
RODRIGUEZ VESENIA B Office Tchncn II JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 10/10/2024 1/17/2025 LOA (PD) CFRA/BB 10/10-1/17/25                                                                                          
HOOD KELLY B Director II, Const Services CONSTITUENT SERVICES 10/8/2024 10/31/2024 LOA EXT PD HE 10/8-31/24                                                                                                
BROWN CHARMAINE A School Office Manager I OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/22/2024 10/31/2024 LOA EXT(PD)HE 10/22-10/31/24                                                                                            
BROWN KAREN B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 8/26/2024 12/24/2024 LOA (PD) AMENDED FMLA/ CFRA 8/26-12/24/24                                                                        
HOOD KELLY B Director II, Const Services CONSTITUENT SERVICES 9/23/2024 10/7/2024 LOA (PD) 9/23-10/7/24                                                                                                  
WATSON TABATHA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 10/10/2024 1/14/2025 LOA (PD) FMLA 10/10-1/14/25                                                                                           
COOKE SEAN A Inst Aid, Comp Lab MARTIN L. KING JR ELEMENTARY 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 LOA RTN 10/14/24                                                                                                
CASTILLO BENJAMIN A Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 10/7/2024 6/30/2025 LOA RTN ADMIN 10/7/24                                                                                                
RAMOS GUADALUPE A Custodian MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/15/2024 6/30/2025 LOA RTN 10/15/24                                                                                        
WATSON TABATHA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 9/16/2024 10/9/2024 LOA (UNPD 9/16-10/9/24                                                                                               
WOOD MATTHEW A School Plant Ops Mngr I WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/22/2024 11/22/2024 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 10/22-11/22/24                                                                                 

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
ARROYO-CARRILLO RAYNA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed ETHEL PHILLIPS ELEMENTARY 10/8/2024 2/28/2025 REA/STCHG 10/8/24                                                                                                       
CARRERA JENNA A Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 10/21/2024 12/31/2024 REA/STCHG 10/21/24                                                                                                
COLMENARES MARIAISABEL B Accounting Specialist ACCOUNTING SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/12/2024 6/30/2025 REA/STCHG 11/12/24                                                                                      
HALEY KATHERINE A Bus Attendant TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 10/2/2024 6/30/2025 STCHG 10/2/24                                                                                    
HO VAN DUONG A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 10/3/2024 10/31/2024 STCHG 10/3/24                                                                                         
NGUYEN MINH TRUNG A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 10/21/2024 4/30/2025 STCHG 10/21/24                                                                                           
OBRIEN HEATHER B Instructional Aide NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 10/22/2024 6/30/2025 STCHG 10/7/24                                                                                     
POZO DE ROLLINS YANAYRY B Teacher Assistant, Bilingual PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/14/2024 6/30/2025 REA/STCHG 10/14/24                                                                                                      

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
November 7, 2024



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
RIPOYLA CYNTHIA B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 10/17/2024 6/30/2025 STCHG 10/17/24                                                                                       
SAETERN AMBER B Inst Aid, Spec Ed BRET HARTE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/23/2024 10/31/2024 STCHG 9/23/24                                                                                                  
SAETERN AMBER B Inst Aid, Spec Ed BRET HARTE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/1/2024 6/30/2025 STCHG 9/23/24                                                                                                  
SALGADO LIZETTE Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 10/21/2024 3/31/2025 REA/STCHG 10/21/24                                                                                                 
TOLENTINO STACI A Instructional Aide (TK) MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/23/2024 1/31/2025 STCHG 9/23/24                                                                                                     
TORIZ DE MEDINA MARIA A Office Tchncn II LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 8/30/2024 8/31/2024 STCHG 8/30/24                                                                                             

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
BONTON LEAH A Noon Duty MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2024 10/21/2024 SEP/RESIGN 10/21/24                                                                                                     
BONTON LEAH A Walking Attendant MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/19/2024 10/21/2024 SEP/RESIGN 10/21/24                                                                                                     
DE DONATO GREGG A School Plant Ops Mngr III ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 10/1/2024 1/8/2025 SEP/39 RR 1/8/25                                                                                                      
HERNANDEZ ANDREW A School Plant Ops Mngr I ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2024 10/31/2024 SEP/RETIRE 10/31/24                                                                                                     
JOHNSON LATRESSE A Noon Duty MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/9/2024 10/3/2024 SEP/RESIGN 10/9/24                                                                                                      
RAJ RADHIKA B Custodian JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 10/14/2024 10/15/2024 SEP/RESIGN 10/15/24                                                                                                     
ROSS DENNIS B Noon Duty ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 7/1/2024 10/17/2024 SEP/RESIGN 10/17/24                                                                                                     
ROSS DENNIS B Walking Attendant ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 7/1/2024 10/17/2024 SEP/RESIGN 10/17/24                                                                                                     
THOMAS MARGARET A Custodian THEODORE JUDAH ELEMENTARY 7/1/2024 11/20/2024 SEP/ 39 RR 11/20/24                                                                                                   
YU YANYIN Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 7/1/2024 10/25/2024 SEP/RESIGN 10/25/24                                                                                                

TRANSFER
DEVONSHIRE ASHLEY A Career Information Technician LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 8/19/2024 3/31/2025 TR  8/19/24                                                                                               
ELIZALDE MARIELA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed THE MET 10/21/2024 1/31/2025 TR  10/21/24                                                                                                
MIRANDA HOLGUIN XIUL B Instructional Aide (TK) JOHN D SLOAT BASIC ELEMENTARY 8/19/2024 6/30/2025 TR  8/19/24                                                                                            
SCROGGINS BLANCHE A Inst Aid, Spec Ed JOHN BIDWELL ELEMENTARY 10/16/2024 6/30/2025 TR  10/16/24                                                                                              



Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1d 

 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
Subject:  Approve Drainage Facility Maintenance Declaration with the County of 

Sacramento for Nicholas Elementary 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: _____)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Facility Support Services 
 
Recommendation:  Review and approve the Declaration of Covenants Private Drainage 
Maintenance Responsibilities with the County of Sacramento for Nicholas Elementary.  
 
Background/Rationale:  Sacramento City Unified School District (SCUSD) is required to 
properly manage drainage from our sites to reduce impact on County infrastructure and 
potential pollution. The District has opted to achieve this requirement on the Nicholas rebuild 
site with private drainage equipment. The private drainage will be buried underground and will 
require periodic maintenance and/or replacement, which falls under the responsibility of 
SCUSD. 
 
The County requires a Declaration of Covenants for Private Drainage Maintenance 
Responsibilities to ensure maintenance and compliance with drainage requirements.   
 
Financial Considerations:  The cost of the drainage system is incorporated into the 
construction cost of the rebuild project at Nicholas Elementary. Regular maintenance of the 
system will be covered by annual site maintenance costs.  
 
LCAP Goal(s): SCUSD will maintain sufficient instructional materials, safe and clean facilities, 
core classroom staffing, and other basic conditions necessary to support the effective 
implementation of actions across all LCAP goals. 
 
Documents Attached:  

1. Approve Declaration of Covenants Private Drainage Maintenance Responsibilities with the 
County of Sacramento for Nicholas Elementary 

 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

Estimated Time of Presentation: NA 

Submitted by:  Ben Wangberg, Manager, Facilities Planning  
 Nathaniel Browning, Director, Planning and Property Management 
 
Approved by:   Chris Ralston, Assistant Superintendent, Facilities Support Services 
   Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
   Lisa Allen, Superintendent 



(rev. 06-21) 
 

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS 

PRIVATE DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

 
RESPONSIBILITIES ("Declaration") is executed as of  , 2024 
, by Sacramento City Unified School District, a political subdivision of the State of 

California, (hereinafter the "Declarant"), with reference to the following facts: 
 

A. Declarant is the owner of that certain property, located within the County of 

Sacramento, California (hereinafter, "Sacramento County"), commonly referred to 

as Assessor's Parcel Number ("APN") 039-0133-011 and more particularly 

described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein 

(hereinafter, the "Subject Property"). 

 
B. Private drainage facilities will be or have been installed at the Subject Property 

in accordance with improvement reviewed by County of Sacramento 

("County") as described in Exhibit “B”. 

 

C. The private drainage facilities, installed on private property and draining only 

private property, are a private facility, and all maintenance or replacement of the 

private drainage facilities are the sole responsibility of the Declarant in accordance 

with the terms of this Declaration. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing benefits, as well as the 

benefits obtained by the Declarant and other valuable consideration, the receipt and 

adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, Declarant hereby declares as follows: 

 

1. Covenant Running with Land: The Declarant does hereby covenant that the 

burdens and benefits herein made and undertaken shall constitute covenants 

running with the Subject Property and constitute an encumbrance on said 

Subject Property which shall bind successors. 

2. Declarant Responsibility to Maintain Pipelines: The Declarant, at Declarant's 

sole cost and expense, shall maintain the private drainage facilities in good 

working order and repair such that water flows freely through the system as and 

when weather events or other sources of surface water runoff occur. Declarant 

shall at all times take all necessary action to keep the drainage facilities free from 

debris, trash, foliage, and any other obstruction which may disrupt, alter, impede, 

or change the flow of water. 

3. Successors and Assigns Bound: The provisions of this Declaration shall be 

enforceable as an equitable servitude and as conditions, restrictions and 

covenants running with the land, and shall be binding upon the Declarant and 

upon each and all its respective heirs, devisees, successors, and assigns, 

officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives, executors, trustees, 

successor trustees, beneficiaries and administrators, and upon any future 

owners of the Subject Property and each of them. 

4. Amendment: This Declaration may be amended by Declarant, but only if in 

writing, and only after written approval by the County of Sacramento. 



(rev. 06-21) 
 

5. Authority To Execute: Each person executing this Covenant represents and 

warrants that he or she is duly authorized and has legal authority to execute and 

deliver this covenant for or on behalf of the parties to this Covenant. Each 

signatory represents and warrants that the execution and delivery of the Covenant 

and the performance of such party’s obligations hereunder have been duly 

authorized. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Declarant has executed this Declaration as of the day and year written 

above. 

 
 

DECLARANT: 

“  ” 

By:    

Print Name:   
 

Title:   

_ 

 

(Attach) 

 
Exhibit "A" Legal Description of Subject Property 

Exhibit "B" Private Storm Drain Facility Location(s) 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Exhibit A 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

 

The land described herein is situated in the State of California, County of Sacramento, 

unincorporated area, described as follows:  

Parcel 1: 

Lot A of Fruitridge Vista Unit No. 14, according to the official plat thereof, filed in the Office of 

the County Recorder of said County May 2, 1956, in Book 44 of Maps, Page 16. 

APN: Portion of 039-0133-011-000 

Parcel 2: 

All that portion of the Northwest quarter of Section 33, Township 8 North, Range 5 East, Mount 

Diablo Base and Meridian, described as follows: 

Beginning at the Northeast corner of Lot A as said Lot is shown and so designated on the official 

plat of Fruitridge Unit No. 14, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of said County May 2, 

1956, in Book 44 of Maps, Page 16; thence from said point of beginning, along the East line of 

said Lot A, South 00°13'10" East 630.47 feet to the most Southerly corner of said Lot A, said 

corner being a point on the Northeasterly line of Steiner Drive, as shown on said plat of 

Fruitridge Vista Unit No. 14; thence North 46°33'10" East 150.11 feet; thence North 89°46'50" 

East 381.14 feet; thence North 00°13'10" West 528.66 feet; thence South 89°39'50" West 

490.52 feet to the point of beginning. 

Excepting therefrom that portion conveyed by Sacramento City Unified School District in Deed 

recorded March 30, 2000 in Book 20000330, Page 1070 of Official Records. 

APN: Portion of 039-0133-011-000 

END OF DESCRIPTION 





Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1e 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
Subject: Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers Issued for the period of September 1-30, 2024. 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve attached list of warrants and checks. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  The detailed list of warrants, checks and electronic transfers issued 
for the period of September 1-30, 2024 are available for the Board members upon request. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  Normal business items that reflect payments from district funds. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached: 
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Transfers – September 1-30, 2024 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Superintendent    



Sacramento City Unified School District
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers SEP 2024

Account Document Numbers Fund Amount 

97430612 - 97431356 745 items 47,005,304.80$         

General (01) 12,385,631.65$         

Charter (09) 116,113.41$              

Adult Education (11) 53,776.96$               

Child Development (12) 30,725.96$               

Cafeteria (13) 1,240,395.33$           

Building (21) 32,412,764.52$         

Developer Fees (25)

Cafeteria Enterprise (61) 2,678.00$                 

Self Insurance (67) 760,304.33$              

Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 124.78$                    

Payroll Revolving (76) 2,789.86$                 

00002642 - 00002674 33 items 150,315.30$              

Payroll Revolving (76) 69,276.83$               

97909290 - 97910096 807 items 5,745,344.49$           

General (01) 1,528,938.33$           

Charter (09) 82,972.06$               

Adult Education (11) 21,788.93$               

Child Development (12) 65,465.46$               

Cafeteria (13) 117,085.20$              

Deferred Maintenance (14)

Building (21)

Developer Fees (25)

Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)

Cafeteria Enterprise (61) 276.80$                    

Self Insurance (67)

Self Ins Dental/Vision (68)

Retiree Benefits (71)

Payroll Revolving (76) 3,928,817.71$           

ACH 01625655 - 01631038 5386 items 22,434,302.33$         

EFT 00000029 - 00000031 General (01) 20,248,808.47$         

Charter (09) 595,711.90$              

Adult Education (11) 233,592.01$              

Child Development (12) 433,955.73$              

Cafeteria (13) 777,115.37$              

Deferred Maintenance (14)

Building (21) 46,505.93$               

Developer Fees (25)

Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)

Cafeteria Enterprise (61) 3,696.64$                 

Self Insurance (67) 26,751.20$               

Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 6,353.32$                 

Retiree Benefits (71)

Payroll Revolving (76) 61,811.76$               

9700350215 - 9700350236 22 items 7,343,965.68$           

General (01) 143,101.76$              

Payroll Revolving (76) 6,102,181.92$           

Total 6993 items 82,679,232.60$         

County Accounts 

Payable Warrants

Alternate Cash 

Payroll and Payroll 

Vendor Warrants

Payroll ACHs and  

Payroll Vendor EFTs

County Wire Transfers 

for Benefit, Debt & Tax



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1f 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
Subject:   Donations to the District for the Period of September 1-30, 2024 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the donations to the District for the period of September 1-30, 2024 
 
Background/Rationale:  Per Board Policy 3290 Gifts, Grants and Bequests, the Board of Education 
accepts donations on behalf of the schools and the District. After Board approval, the Board Office will 
send a letter of recognition to the donors.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached: 
• Donations Report for the period of September 1-30, 2024. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Superintendent    



Receipt DetailAR06a

B OF A   - BANK OF AMERICA

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

09/10/24 Transportation,  Sutterville PTA, Ck5402BA25-0000409 BOFA091024(0354-3) SUTTERVILLE PTA Check 54028840Posted 2,076.50 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0354- 2,076.50 

09/03/24 9/3/24 BENEVITY FUND FOR WILLIAM LANDBA25-0000722 (000454) BENEVITY FUND Electronic Funds Xfer8888Posted 60.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0384- 60.00 

09/04/24 9/4/24 BENEVITY FUND FOR WILLIAM LANDBA25-0000723 (000454) BENEVITY FUND Electronic Funds Xfer8888Posted .54 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0384- .54 

2,137.04 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 2,137.04 Donation Board Acknowledgement

2,137.04 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  2,137.04 

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District

2,076.50 C - Check

60.54 E - Electronic Funds Xfer

Total Receipts 2,137.04 

Report Total 2,137.04 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 9/1/2024, Ending Receipt Date = 9/30/2024, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Marie-Christaine Bueno (MARIE-BUENO), Oct 18 

2024  8:43AM

Page 1 of 1



Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1g 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3459 Resolution of Intention to Convey Public Utilities 

Easement to County of Sacramento at Nicholas Elementary School  
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: _____)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Facilities Support Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3459, which provides notice of a Public Hearing 
and the future adoption of the County of Sacramento Sewer Easement Entitlements Resolution 
at its regularly scheduled Board Meeting on Thursday, November 21, at 6:30 PM. 
 
Background/Rationale: The District is rebuilding Nicholas Elementary School and will need 
numerous Easements for outside entities, and County of Sacramento has jurisdiction over the 
sewer distribution facilities that serve the Nicholas Elementary site. The County of Sacramento 
requires a utility easement to provide necessary sewer services to the site.    
 
Pursuant to Education Code 17557, the District must adopt a Resolution of Intention to dedicate 
or convey any District property prior to the adoption of a Resolution which dedicates or conveys 
property and provides notice to a Public Hearing. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 17558, copies of the adopted Resolution of Intention must be 
posted in three public places within the District not less than 10 days before the date of the 
meeting and publish the notice in a newspaper of general circulation not less than 5 days before 
the date it plans to provide a Public Hearing and adopt the Resolution.  
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  SCUSD will maintain sufficient instructional materials, safe and clean facilities, 
core classroom staffing, and other basic conditions necessary to support the effective 
implementation of actions across all LCAP goals. 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 
Documents Attached:  

1. Resolution No. 3459 
2. County of Sacramento Easement for Sewer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: NA 

Submitted by:  Ben Wangberg, Manager, Facilities Planning  
 Nathaniel Browning, Director, Planning and Property Management 
 
Approved by:   Chris Ralston, Assistant Superintendent, Facilities Support Services 
   Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
   Lisa Allen, Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3459 

 
RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO CONVEY PUBLIC UTILITIES EASEMENT TO 

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO AT NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) owns the property at Nicholas 
Elementary School located at 6601 Steiner Drive, in the County of Sacramento; 

 
WHEREAS, District’s request for Sacramento County Sewer Service at Nicholas School requires 

installation in accordance with Sacramento County’s rules and regulations; 
 

WHEREAS, County of Sacramento is seeking to acquire a permanent easement (“Permanent Easement”) 
for the Utility Access, which will consist of the installation of one (1) utility access facility near the Western property 
line and along Steiner Drive, on a 20.00 foot wide strip of land that extends14.44 feet into the property at the center 
line of the 20.00 foot strip, lengthening and shortening at the sidelines to terminate at the Southwest property line, 
approximately 290 square feet; 

 
WHEREAS, County of Sacramento’s design team has drafted an Easement Right of Way; 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Education Code § 17537, the District must adopt this Resolution of 

Intention, by a two-thirds vote, and establish a time at a subsequent Board meeting to hold a public hearing in 
order to consider adoption of a resolution, by the same vote, for the actual approval of the easement 
entitlements (the “Easement Entitlements Resolution”); 

 
WHEREAS, utilities are necessary for the provision of adequate school housing; 

 
WHEREAS, the Utility Easement totals a 20 foot long and approximately 14.44 foot wide strip of land 

totaling approximately 290 square feet and includes necessary utility facilities and infrastructure required by 
County of Sacramento; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of 

Education which finds and determines as follows: 
 

1. Adopts the foregoing recitals as true and correct. 
 

2. Pursuant to Education Code 17557, hereby determines that the Board will hold a public hearing 
and consider the adoption of the County of Sacramento Grant Easement Resolution at its regularly scheduled 
Board meeting on Thursday, November 21 at 6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard on the 
agenda. 

 
3. Authorizes the Superintendent, or their designee, to provide notice of the Board meeting set 

forth above as required by law. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on this 
7th day of November 2024, by the following vote: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:   

 
 

 

ATTESTED TO: 

 

_ 

 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Lavina Phillips     Lisa Allen 
President of the Board of Education    Superintendent  



RED File No.    LOG No.  
M:\RealEstate\Templates\RES SDA RE Mgmt\SASD\Deeds\Sewer Easement SASD  sgp  01042024 
  

  

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:  

REAL ESTATE DIVISION 

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 

3711 Branch Center Road 

Sacramento, CA 95827 

Mail Code 63-002 

 

No Fee Document - Per Government Code 27383 

No Document Transfer Tax -  Per R & T Code 11922 

 

 
 

Okay to Accept   
Name/Date:   

Print Name & Dept:   

APN:   

Project Name & Dept:     (SacSewer) THIS SPACE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 

 

EASEMENT FOR SEWER  
 

Sacramento City Unified School District, a Political Subdivision of the State of California 
 

(hereinafter referred to as “GRANTOR”), do(es) hereby grant to the Sacramento Area Sewer District, a county sanitation 

district formed pursuant to and operating under the authority of the County Sanitation District Act, commencing at Health 

and Safety Code section 4700, (hereinafter referred to as “SacSewer”), an easement, for sewer purposes, (hereinafter referred 

to as “Easement”), inclusive of digging, constructing, reconstructing, repairing, operating, upgrading and forever maintaining 

sanitary sewer pipelines, of such dimensions as SacSewer shall deem necessary, together with all necessary appurtenances, 

including the right to excavate, construct, reconstruct, repair, operate, upgrade and forever maintain said facilities appertaining 

thereto, including a perpetual right of way over, under, upon and across all that real property, (hereinafter referred to as 

“Easement Area”),  situated in the County of Sacramento, State of California, described as follows: 

 

SEE EXHIBITS “A” and “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof; 

 

together with the perpetual right of ingress to and egress from said Easement Area, for the purpose of exercising and performing 

all of the rights and privileges herein granted. 

 

Any use of this Easement Area by GRANTOR or assignees or successors in interest, shall not be allowed without the prior 

written approval of SacSewer; except for the following uses (collectively, the “Allowable Uses”): ( i ) lawn or similar 

groundcover; ( ii ) areas planted with species whose mature growth does not exceed five (5) feet in height and which are not 

environmentally protected; or ( iii) non-colored and non-patterned asphalt and concrete driveways, sidewalks, bikepaths, 

surface parking, curbs and gutters. Any of said Allowable Uses shall not be installed in a manner that will impede vehicular 

access by SacSewer for maintenance purposes. Other than the aforementioned Allowable Uses, each use proposed by 

GRANTOR must be approved in writing by SacSewer’s District Engineer, with said approval being in the District 

Engineer’s sole discretion, prior to construction within or use of the Easement Area by the GRANTOR. For any required 

written approval, the GRANTOR shall contact the SacSewer Main Office. All use activities, including but not limited 

to Allowable Uses, shall not in any way limit SacSewer’s rights under this Easement. Even if SacSewer’s District Engineer 

has approved the use within the Easement Area, SacSewer retains the right to remove all or any part of the approved use to 

allow SacSewer to use the Easement Area at any time pursuant to the rights granted herein. Except for the Allowable Uses 

identified above, SacSewer shall not be liable for any cost related to the removal or replacement of said improvements 

constructed by GRANTOR within the Easement Area. 
 
 
 
[Signature page follows] 
 
 

 



 
 
[Signature page to Easement for Sewer] 
 
 

 
 

Warrant of Signature Authority. The Grantor warrants the signature appearing on this instrument of real property (i.e. 

Easement Deed, Grant Deed, Quit Claim Deed) has the legal and requisite signatory authority for the conveyance of Grantor's 

real property interest. Further, the Parties acknowledge and agree that this Grantee, which is a public entity, is relying on said 

Warrant of Signature Authority when accepting this real property instrument for recordation.  

 

 
 
Dated this _____ day of ____________, 20____ 

 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District, 

a Political Subdivision of the State of California 
 

 

 

________________________________                      _________________________________ 

(Type name of person signing document)                     (Type name of Additional person signing document. 

Delete lines if not needed) 

 

 

________________________________          _________________________________ 

(Type Title of person signing document) (Type Title of person signing document) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 



 

 

STATE OF ______________________________________) 

 

COUNTY OF ____________________________________) 

 

 

On ______________ before me, _______________________________________, notary public, 
                       date                                                name of notary officer 
 

personally appeared ____________________________________________________________, 
               name(s) of signer(s) 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________, 

 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 

subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in 

his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 

person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 

paragraph is true and correct. 

 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Signature of Notary 

 

 

 

------------OPTIONAL SECTION------------- 

 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER 

 

Though statute does not require the Notary to 

fill in the data below, doing so may prove 

invaluable to persons relying on the document. 

 

INDIVIDUAL 

CORPORATE OFFICER(S) 

 

_________________________________ 

Title(s) 

 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 

 GENERAL 

 

  ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 

  TRUSTEE(S) 

  GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 

  OTHER: ______________________ 

 

___________________________________ 

 

___________________________________ 

 

SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 

Name of Person(s) or entity(ies) 

 

___________________________________ 

 

___________________________________ 

 

OPTIONAL SECTION: 

                                    TITLE OR TYPE OF  DOCUMENT: _________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATA REQUESTED HERE IS                          NUMBER OF PAGES ___________________ DATE _____________________________________________________________ 

NOT REQUIRED BY LAW.                  

                                                              SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE _________________________________________________________________ 

 

********************************************************************** 
CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

Sacramento Area Sewer District  

 

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the within deed, the provisions of which are 

incorporated by this reference as though fully set forth in this Certification, to the Sacramento Area Sewer 

District, a county sanitation district formed pursuant to and operating under the authority of the County 

Sanitation District Act, commencing at Health and Safety Code section 4700, is hereby accepted by the 

undersigned officer pursuant to authority conferred by Resolution No. SD-0267 of the Board of Directors of said 

District adopted on October 11, 2017 and the Grantee consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized 

officer. 

 

                                                                                     

Sacramento Area Sewer District Director of Collection System Operations  Date 
 

********************************************************************** 

A Notary Public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 

document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 



EXHIBIT A 
SEWER EASEMENT 

A Portion of Lot A as shown on the “Plat of Fruitridge Vista Unit No. 14” filed in the office of the 
Sacramento County Recorder in Book 44 of Maps at Page 16, being a portion of Section 33, Township 8 
North, Range 5 East, M.D.M., in unincorporated area of Sacramento County, State of California, more 
particularly described as follows: 

a 20.00 foot wide strip of land, the centerline of which is described as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the Southwest line of said Lot A, from which the Northwest corner of said Lot A 
bears along a 681.80 foot radius curve to the right, through a central angle of 9°26’09” a distance of 
112.28 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing of North 17°55’42” West 112.16 feet; 
Thence, from said Point of Beginning, North 67°20’53” East 14.44 feet. 

The sidelines to be lengthened or shortened to terminate at the Southwest line of said Lot A. 

8-29-2024



STEINER DRIVE

LOT A

CenterPoint  Engineering, Inc.
Land Surveying & Construction Staking

4230 Rocklin Rd.  Suite 200    Rocklin, CA    95677
Phone: 916-773-4006    Fax: 916-773-4498

SEWER EASEMENT
A PORTION OF LOT A, 44 P.M. 16
SECTION 33,T.8N., R.5E., M.D.M.

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA

EXHIBIT  "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SEWER EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
44 B.M. 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT A, 44 B.M. 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N67°20'53"E 14.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. 12-31-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 8507

AutoCAD SHX Text
K:\288300\SURVEY\SEWER\EXHIBIT B.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 8-29-24



 Page 1 of 2  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item#_11.1h 

 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Approve Resolution No. 3456 Authorizing Piggyback Contract for Purchase 

of School Site Furniture Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20118 
 

☐ Information Item Only 
☒ Approval on Consent Agenda 
☐     Conference (for discussion only) 
☐ Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
☐ Conference/Action 
☐ Action 
☐ Public Hearing 
 

Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3456 Authorizing Piggyback Contract for 
the Purchase of Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20118 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
District staff recommends the Board adopt Resolution No. 3456 to authorize and 
approve the District’s “Piggyback” utilizing San Juan Unified School District contract for 
the PURCHASE of Furniture with Jones Campbell Company, Inc. dba Campbell Keller 
for Sacramento City Unified School District. 
 
Under Public Contract Code section 20111, the District is required, absent an exception, 
to competitively bid the lease or purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies 
exceeding the bid threshold of $114,500 for 2024.  However, Public Contract Code 
section 20118, commonly referred to as the “piggybacking” statute, is an exception to 
the competitive bidding requirement, and allows the District to lease or purchase 
equipment, materials, or supplies by utilizing an existing contract, authorized by law, 
between a vendor and another public agency, pursuant to the same terms and equal 
prices of the existing contract. 
 
San Juan Unified School District solicited Bid 25-202, awarded to Jones Campbell 
Company, Inc. dba Campbell Keller to provide furniture, design, installation and 
additional related support services. The contract is active through October 7, 2027. The 
Contract states that any public agency in the state of California may “Piggyback” to 
purchase furniture and related support services per the items and the conditions at the 
same terms as the awarded Contract. 
 
 



 Page 2 of 2  

 
District staff performed their due diligence and researched the costs and terms of the 
Piggyback Contract, believe that the prices of the Piggyback Contract are reasonable, 
and that it would be in the best interest of the District to utilize the Piggyback Contract to 
purchase furniture pursuant to the proposed Contract Agreement for classroom furniture 
with Jones Campbell Company, Inc. dba Campbell Keller, attached to Resolution No. 
3456.  
 
Financial Considerations:   
 
District will reduce its costs of procurement by “piggybacking” on a contract that has 
already been competitively bid by another public entity in accordance with law. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  
 
 
Documents Attached:  
Resolution No. 3456 Authorizing Piggyback Contract for the Purchase of Furniture Pursuant to 
Public Contract Code Section 20118  
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations 
Officer 

  Tina Alvarez-Bevens, Contract Analyst 

Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Superintendent 



Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 3456 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 
AUTHORIZING PIGGYBACK CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE OF SCHOOL SITE 

FURNITURE PURSUANT TO PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 20118 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) seeks to purchase 
furniture (“Products”) from Jones Campbell Co., Inc. (“Vendor”). 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111, the District is required to 
competitively bid the “purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or 
leased to the district,” that exceed $114,500 in 2024; 

WHEREAS, Public Contract Code section 20118 is an exception to this requirement 
and states: 

Notwithstanding Sections 20111 and 20112, the governing board of any school 
district without advertising for bids, if the board has determined it to be in the 
best interests of the district, may authorize by contract, lease, requisition, or 
purchase order, any public corporation or agency, including any county, city, 
town, or district, to lease data-processing equipment, purchase materials, 
supplies, equipment, automotive vehicles, tractors, and other personal 
property for the district in the manner in which the public corporation or agency 
is authorized by law to make the leases or purchases from a vendor. Upon 
receipt of the personal property, if the property complies with the specifications 
set forth in the contract, lease, requisition, or purchase order, the school district 
may draw a warrant in favor of the public corporation or agency for the amount 
of the approved invoice, including the reasonable costs to the public corporation 
or agency for furnishing the services incidental to the lease or purchase of the 
personal property, or the school district may make payment directly to the 
vendor.  Alternatively, if there is an existing contract between a public 
corporation or agency and a vendor for the lease or purchase of the personal 
property, a school district may authorize the lease or purchase of personal 
property directly from the vendor by contract, lease, requisition, or purchase 
order and make payment to the vendor under the same terms that are available 
to the public corporation or agency under the contract; 

 WHEREAS, the District wishes to purchase the Products by utilizing an existing 
contract between a public corporation or agency and Vendor;   

WHEREAS, the San Juan Unified School District competitively bid and awarded a 
contract to Vendor for purchase of the Products (“Piggyback Contract”); 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20118, allowing other public 
agencies, including school districts, to purchase the Products from Vendor, under the same 
terms and at equal prices set forth in the Piggyback Contract; and 

 WHEREAS, District staff have researched the costs and terms of the Piggyback 
Contract and believe that the prices under the Piggyback Contract are reasonable and that it 
is in the best interest of the District to utilize the Piggyback Contract to purchase the Products 
from Vendor. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Education of the Sacramento City Unified School 
District hereby finds, determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 

1. That the foregoing recitals are true. 

2. That it is in the best interests of the District to purchase the Products from Vendor 
via the Piggyback Contract. 

3. That it hereby approves the proposed “Agreement Incorporating Piggyback 
Contract for school sit furniture with Vendor,” attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” 

4. That it hereby authorizes the District’s Superintendent and designees to take all 
further action necessary to otherwise carry out, give effect to, and comply with the 
terms and intent of this Resolution, including to finalize and execute the agreement 
in accordance with the parameters of Public Contract Code section 20118. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Board of Education of the Sacramento City Unified 
School District this ____ day of ______________, 2024, by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

 
By:       
 Lavinia Grace Phillips, President  

Attest: 
       
 
By:      ____      

Lisa Allen, Superintendent 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

AGREEMENT INCORPORATING PIGGYBACK CONTRACT 
 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 11.1i  
 

 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
Subject:  Approve Staff Recommendation for Expulsions 6, 7, 8, and 9 of the 

2024-25 school year 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Deputy Superintendent’s Office; Student Hearing and Placement Department 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve staff recommendation for Expulsions 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10 of 
the 2024-25 school year 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College and Career Ready Students 
 
 
Documents Attached:  N/A 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  David Van Natten, Director, Student Hearing and 

Placement 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Superintendent 

 
 



Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1j 

 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
Subject:  Approve Stormwater Treatment Device Access and Maintenance Agreement 

with the County of Sacramento for Nicholas Elementary 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: _____)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Facility Support Services 
 
Recommendation:  Review and approve the Stormwater Treatment Device Access and 
Maintenance Agreement with the County of Sacramento for Nicholas Elementary.  
 
Background/Rationale:  Sacramento City Unified School District (SCUSD) is required to 
properly manage and store stormwater runoff from our sites to reduce impact on County 
infrastructure and potential pollution. The District has opted to achieve this requirement at the 
new Nicholas rebuild site by installing two (2) Contech Storm filter Devices, seven (7) Bio-
retention Basins, and nine (9) Trash Screens at various locations on the Nicholas property. The 
stormwater devices will be buried underground and will allow for the catchment and filtration of 
stormwater so that it can remain on-site and slowly percolate into the ground on District 
property. The Basin will be an above ground depression for water collection. The Trash Screens 
will extend above the base of the basin but below the adjacent ground level. 
 
The County requires a Stormwater Treatment Device Access and Maintenance Agreement to 
ensure maintenance and optimal operation of the equipment, and compliance with stormwater 
runoff requirements.   
 
Financial Considerations:  The cost of the stormwater filter and chamber are incorporated into 
the construction cost of the rebuild project at Nicholas Elementary. Regular maintenance of the 
device will be covered by annual site maintenance costs.  
 
LCAP Goal(s): SCUSD will maintain sufficient instructional materials, safe and clean facilities, 
core classroom staffing, and other basic conditions necessary to support the effective 
implementation of actions across all LCAP goals. 
 
Documents Attached:  

1. Approve Stormwater Treatment Device Access and Maintenance Agreement with the County of 
Sacramento for Nicholas Elementary 



Page 2 of 2 

Estimated Time of Presentation: NA 

Submitted by:  Ben Wangberg, Manager, Facilities Planning  
 Nathaniel Browning, Director, Planning and Property Management 
 
Approved by:   Chris Ralston, Assistant Superintendent, Facilities Support Services 
   Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
   Lisa Allen, Superintendent 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY and for the BENEFIT OF: 

NAME Sacramento County 
Department of Water Resources 

MAILING 
ADDRESS 827 7th Street. Rm. 301 

  CITY,STATE Sacramento, CA 95814 

ZIP CODE 

INTEROFFICE 
MAIL Mail Code 01-301 

NO FEE DOCUMENT 
Gov. Code § 6103 

(rev. 05-21)     SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE

1 

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS 
(Device Maintenance and Access) 

THIS DECLARATION OF COVENANTS (“Declaration”) is executed as of , 
20  , by 
a   , (hereinafter the “Declarant”) 
with reference to the following facts: 

A. Declarant is the owner of that certain real property, commonly referred to as Assessor’s Parcel
Number (“APN”) _______________________________________, and more particularly described in 
Exhibit “A” and the plat thereof on Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein 
(hereinafter, the “Subject Property”).  Subject Property is located within the County of Sacramento, 
California, a political subdivision of the State of California (hereinafter, “Sacramento County”).  The 
property owner may, in writing, duly authorize an agent to execute this document on his/her/its behalf. 

B. At the time of Sacramento County’s initial approval of the development project known as

wherein the Subject Property is located, Sacramento County required installation of onsite control measures 
to minimize pollutants in urban runoff and/or California State Water Resources Control Board required 
installation of trash treatment control device to minimize trash reaching waterways. 

C. Declarant has chosen to install

hereinafter referred to as the “Device,” as the on-site control measure to minimize pollutants in urban runoff 
and/or trash treatment control device to minimize trash reaching waterways. 

D. The Device will be installed in accordance with plans and specifications accepted by Sacramento
County. 



2 
 

E. The Device, being installed on private property and draining only private property, is a private 
facility, and all maintenance or replacement of the Device is the sole responsibility of the Declarant in 
accordance with the terms of this Declaration. 
 

F. The Declarant is aware that periodic and continuous maintenance, including, but not necessarily 
limited to, filter material replacement and sediment removal, is required to assure peak performance of the 
Device in accordance with the maintenance procedures prepared for the Device which maintenance 
procedures are attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein. 
 

G. Maintenance of the Device will require compliance with all Local, State, or Federal laws and 
regulations, including those pertaining to confined space and waste disposal methods, in effect at the time 
such maintenance occurs. 
 

H. In the event a Device failure results in pollutants being discharged into the County storm drain 
system, the Declarant shall be responsible for all costs of cleanup.  The terms ‘pollutants’ and ‘County 
storm drain system’ are used herein as defined in Sacramento County Code Chapter15.12. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing benefits, as well as the benefits obtained by the 
Declarant and other valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, 
Declarant hereby declares as follows: 
 

1. Covenant Running with Land. The Declarant does hereby covenant that the burdens and 
benefits herein made and undertaken shall constitute covenants running with the Subject Property and 
constitute an encumbrance on said Subject Property which shall bind successors. 

 
2. Declarant Responsibility to Maintain: Declarant, its successors or assigns, shall at all times 

maintain the Device in accordance with requirements stated in Exhibit “C” and in a manner assuring the 
Device’s peak performance at all times. All reasonable precautions shall be exercised by Declarant and 
Declarant’s representatives in the removal and extraction of material(s) from the Device. Disposal of the 
material(s) shall be performed in a manner consistent with all relevant laws and regulations in effect at the 
time of removal. For a time period of the most recent three (3) years, Declarant shall maintain written 
documentation verifying all material(s) removed from the Device, including identifying the material(s) 
removed, quantity, and manner and place of disposal thereof. Such documentation shall be provided to 
Sacramento County annually by May 1. 

 
3. Failure to Maintain: In the event Declarant, or its successors or assigns, fails to maintain 

the Device as required by this Declaration, after thirty five (35) days written notice thereof, Sacramento 
County may and is hereby authorized to cause, at the Declarant’s expense, any and all maintenance to the 
Device necessary under the requirements specified in Exhibit “C.” In addition to the actual costs of such 
maintenance, the Declarant shall reimburse Sacramento County for an additional fifteen percent (15%) 
thereof to cover costs of administration. All such actual and administrative costs shall accrue interest from 
the date incurred by Sacramento County at the maximum rate authorized by law until paid in full. In 
addition, failure to maintain the Device as required may result in enforcement actions consisting of 
administrative civil penalties (SCC § 15.12.560) and or criminal penalties (SCC § 15.12.570).  The notice 
provided herein shall be effective on the date sent by Fed Ex, UPS, DHL, or other reputable private 
delivery or courier service to the record owner of the Subject Property as shown on the last equalized 
assessment roll. 



3 
 

 
4. Security: If the Declarant fails to maintain the Device as required by the standards specified 

in Exhibit “C”, Sacramento County may require the Declarant, at the Declarant’s sole cost, to post security 
in a form, for a time period, and in an amount satisfactory to Sacramento County, to guarantee the 
Declarant’s performance of the obligations set forth herein. Should the Declarant fail to perform the 
obligations under this Declaration, Sacramento County may realize against said security, and in the case of a 
cash bond, act for the Declarant using the proceeds from it, or in the case of a surety bond, require the 
sureties to perform the obligations of this Declaration. Said security shall be available to Sacramento County 
to satisfy the Declarant’s reimbursement obligation under paragraph 3. 

 
5. Access by County: Declarant grants Sacramento County or the County's designee the 

unrestricted right of access to the Device, including its immediate vicinity as well as ingress and egress to 
and from said Device over Subject Property, at any time, upon twenty-four (24) hour advance notice in 
writing, of any duration for the purpose of inspection, sampling and testing of the Device. Sacramento 
County shall make reasonable efforts at all times to minimize or avoid interference with Declarant’s use of 
the Subject Property. 

 
6. Successors and Assigns Bound: Declarant hereby agrees and acknowledges that 

maintenance of the Device as set forth herein, the costs of Device maintenance, Sacramento County’s access 
to the Device, Sacramento County’s rights of ingress and egress to the Device, and Sacramento County’s 
rights to recovery of costs if Declarant fails to maintain the Device are a burden and restriction on the use of 
the Subject Property. The provisions of this Declaration shall be enforceable as an equitable servitude and 
as conditions, restrictions and covenants running with the land, and shall be binding upon the Declarant and 
upon each and all of its respective heirs, devisees, successors, and assigns, officers, directors, employees, 
agents, representatives, executors, trustees, successor trustees, beneficiaries and administrators, and upon 
any future owners of the Subject Property and each of them. 

 
7. Enforcement: It is the express intent of the Declarant that the terms and provisions of this 

Declaration shall be enforceable as an equitable servitude. To the extent necessary to do so, Declarant and 
its successors and assigns hereby confer and assign rights to enforce the terms and conditions of this 
Declaration to Sacramento County. 

 
8. Recording of Agreement: This Declaration shall be recorded in the Office of the Recorder of 

Sacramento County, California and shall constitute notice to all successors and assigns of the title to the 
Subject Property of the rights and obligations herein set forth. 

 
9. Amendment: This Declaration may be amended by Declarant, but only if in writing, and only 

after written approval of Sacramento County. 
 

10. Authority To Execute: Each person executing this Covenant represents and warrants that he 
or she is duly authorized and has legal authority to execute and deliver this Covenant for or on behalf of the 
parties to this Covenant.  Each signatory represents and warrants that the execution and delivery of the 
Covenant and the performance of such party’s obligations hereunder have been duly authorized. 

  



4 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Declarant has executed this Declaration as of the day and year written 
above. 
 
 
 
 

                                                                        DECLARANT: 
 
 
       
 
 
 

 
By:    
 
Print Name:    
 
Its:    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[attach] 
 
DECLARANT’S ACKNOWLEGEMENT 
 
Exhibit A Legal Description of Subject Property 
Exhibit B Plat of Subject Property (with device locations) 
Exhibit C   Device Maintenance Requirements 

 

greg
Text Box
a political subdivision of the State of California 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Exhibit A 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

 

The land described herein is situated in the State of California, County of Sacramento, 

unincorporated area, described as follows:  

Parcel 1: 

Lot A of Fruitridge Vista Unit No. 14, according to the official plat thereof, filed in the Office of 

the County Recorder of said County May 2, 1956, in Book 44 of Maps, Page 16. 

APN: Portion of 039-0133-011-000 

Parcel 2: 

All that portion of the Northwest quarter of Section 33, Township 8 North, Range 5 East, Mount 

Diablo Base and Meridian, described as follows: 

Beginning at the Northeast corner of Lot A as said Lot is shown and so designated on the official 

plat of Fruitridge Unit No. 14, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of said County May 2, 

1956, in Book 44 of Maps, Page 16; thence from said point of beginning, along the East line of 

said Lot A, South 00°13'10" East 630.47 feet to the most Southerly corner of said Lot A, said 

corner being a point on the Northeasterly line of Steiner Drive, as shown on said plat of 

Fruitridge Vista Unit No. 14; thence North 46°33'10" East 150.11 feet; thence North 89°46'50" 

East 381.14 feet; thence North 00°13'10" West 528.66 feet; thence South 89°39'50" West 

490.52 feet to the point of beginning. 

Excepting therefrom that portion conveyed by Sacramento City Unified School District in Deed 

recorded March 30, 2000 in Book 20000330, Page 1070 of Official Records. 

APN: Portion of 039-0133-011-000 

END OF DESCRIPTION 



X

XXXXXX

X

X
X

XXXXXX

X

X
X

X

VE
R

N
AC

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
W

AY
VE

R
N

AC
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

W
AY

PRENTISS

STEINER                             DR.

STEINER                                                  DR.

STEIN
ER

DR.

51ST

ST.

N
O

R
T

H

1 inch =  150 feet

150'0

Exhibit B

Plat of Subject Property (with device locations)

V
e
rn

ac
e
 W

ay

SF.1

BR.1-A

BR.1A - Bio-Retention
BR.1B - Bio-Retention

BR.3A - Bio-Retention
BR.3B - Bio-Retention
BR.7A - Bio-Retention

BR.8A - Bio-Retention
BR.8B - Bio-Retention

TS.1A - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard
TS.1B - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard

TS.3A - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard
TS.3B - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard

TS.7A - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard
TS.7B - Trash Screen, Bio-Clean
TS.8A - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard

TS.8B - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard
TS.9A - Trash Screen, Bio-Clean

Device Table

SF.1 - Stormfilter (ZPG)
SF.2 - Stormfilter (ZPG)

Steiner D
rive

51
St

.

St
re

et

TS.1-A

BR.1-B

TS.1-B
BR.3-B

TS.3-B

BR.3-A

TS.3-A

TS.7-A

BR.7-A
BR.8-A
TS.8-A

BR.8-B
TS.8-B

SF.2
TS.9-A

TS.7-B



N
O

R
T

H

1 inch =  40 feet

40'0

BR.1-A

BR.1A - Bio-Retention
BR.1B - Bio-Retention

TS.1A - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard

TS.1B - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard

Device Table

TS.1-A

BR.1-B

TS.1-B

BIORETENTION BR.1-A AND BR.1-B
TRASH SCREEN TS.1-A AND TS.1-B



N
O

R
T

H

1 inch =  40 feet

40'0

BR.3-B

TS.3-B

BR.3-A

TS.3-A

BR.3A - Bio-Retention

BR.3B - Bio-Retention

TS.3A - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard

TS.3B - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard

Device Table

Steiner D
rive

BIORETENTION BR.3-A AND BR.3-B
TRASH SCREEN TS.3-A AND TS.3-B



X

X

X

X

X

STEINER                                                  DR.

N
O

R
T

H

1 inch =  40 feet

40'0

SF.1

TS.9-A

TS.7-B

SF.2

TS.7-A

BR.7-A

BR.7A - Bio-Retention TS.7A - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard

TS.9A - Trash Screen, Bio-Clean
TS.9B - Trash Screen, Bio-Clean

Device Table

SF.1 - Stormfilter (ZPG)

SF.2 - Stormfilter (ZPG)

Steiner D
rive

BIORETENTION BR.7-A
TRASH SCREEN TS.7-A, TS.9-A AND TS.9-B

STORM FILTER SF.1 AND SF.2



X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

STEINER                             DR.

N
O

R
T

H

1 inch =  40 feet

40'0

Steiner D
rive

BR.8-A

TS.8-A

BR.8A - Bio-Retention TS.8A - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard

Device Table

BIORETENTION BR.8-A
TRASH SCREEN TS.8-A



X

X X X X

X
X

VE
R

N
AC

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
W

AY

N
O

R
T

H

1 inch =  40 feet

40'0

BR.8-B

TS.8-B

BR.8B - Bio-Retention TS.8B - Trash Screen, Flo-Guard

Device Table

V
e
rn

ac
e
 W

ay

BIORETENTION BR.8-B
TRASH SCREEN TS.8-B



StormFilter Inspection and 
Maintenance Procedures

ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS

Exhibit C

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
Exhibit C-1

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 



In addition to these two activities, it is important to check 
the condition of the StormFilter unit after major storms for 
potential damage caused by high flows and for high sediment 
accumulation that may be caused by localized erosion in the 
drainage area. It may be necessary to adjust the inspection/ 
maintenance schedule depending on the actual operating 
conditions encountered by the system. In general, inspection 
activities can be conducted at any time, and maintenance should 
occur, if warranted, during dryer months in late summer to early 
fall.

Maintenance Frequency 
The primary factor for determining frequency of maintenance for 
the StormFilter is sediment loading.

A properly functioning system will remove solids from water by 
trapping particulates in the porous structure of the filter media 
inside the cartridges. The flow through the system will naturally 
decrease as more and more particulates are trapped. Eventually 
the flow through the cartridges will be low enough to require 
replacement. It may be possible to extend the usable span of the 
cartridges by removing sediment from upstream trapping devices 
on a routine as-needed basis, in order to prevent material from 
being re-suspended and discharged to the StormFilter treatment 
system.

The average maintenance lifecycle is approximately 1-5 years. 
Site conditions greatly influence maintenance requirements. 
StormFilter units located in areas with erosion or active 
construction may need to be inspected and maintained more 
often than those with fully stabilized surface conditions.

Regulatory requirements or a chemical spill can shift maintenance 
timing as well. The maintenance frequency may be adjusted as 
additional monitoring information becomes available during the 
inspection program. Areas that develop known problems should 
be inspected more frequently than areas that demonstrate no 
problems, particularly after major storms. Ultimately, inspection 
and maintenance activities should be scheduled based on the 
historic records and characteristics of an individual StormFilter 
system or site. It is recommended that the site owner develop 
a database to properly manage StormFilter inspection and 
maintenance programs..

2 3

Maintenance Guidelines
The primary purpose of the Stormwater Management 
StormFilter® is to filter and prevent pollutants from entering our 
waterways. Like any effective filtration system, periodically these 
pollutants must be removed to restore the StormFilter to its full 
efficiency and effectiveness.

Maintenance requirements and frequency are dependent on the 
pollutant load characteristics of each site.  Maintenance activities 
may be required in the event of a chemical spill or due to 
excessive sediment loading from site erosion or extreme storms. It 
is a good practice to inspect the system after major storm events.

Maintenance Procedures
Although there are many effective maintenance options, we 
believe the following procedure to be efficient, using common 
equipment and existing maintenance protocols. The following 
two-step procedure is recommended::

1. Inspection 

• Inspection of the vault interior to determine the need for 
maintenance.

2. Maintenance

• Cartridge replacement

• Sediment removal

Inspection and Maintenance Timing 
At least one scheduled inspection should take place per year with 
maintenance following as warranted.

First, an inspection should be done before the winter season. 
During the inspection the need for maintenance should be 
determined and, if disposal during maintenance will be required, 
samples of the accumulated sediments and media should be 
obtained.

Second, if warranted, a maintenance (replacement of the filter 
cartridges and removal of accumulated sediments) should be 
performed during periods of dry weather.

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 



2 3

Inspection Procedures
The primary goal of an inspection is to assess the condition of 
the cartridges relative to the level of visual sediment loading as 
it relates to decreased treatment capacity. It may be desirable to 
conduct this inspection during a storm to observe the relative 
flow through the filter cartridges. If the submerged cartridges 
are severely plugged, then typically large amounts of sediments 
will be present and very little flow will be discharged from the 
drainage pipes. If this is the case, then maintenance is warranted 
and the cartridges need to be replaced.

Warning: In the case of a spill, the worker should abort 
inspection activities until the proper guidance is obtained. 
Notify the local hazard control agency and Contech Engineered 
Solutions immediately.

To conduct an inspection:

Important: Inspection should be performed by a person 
who is familiar with the operation and configuration of the 
StormFilter treatment unit.

1. If applicable, set up safety equipment to protect and notify 
surrounding vehicle and pedestrian traffic.

2. Visually inspect the external condition of the unit and take 
notes concerning defects/problems.

3. Open the access portals to the vault and allow the system 
vent.

4. Without entering the vault, visually inspect the inside of the 
unit, and note accumulations of liquids and solids.

5. Be sure to record the level of sediment build-up on the floor 
of the vault, in the forebay, and on top of the cartridges. If 
flow is occurring, note the flow of water per drainage pipe. 
Record all observations. Digital pictures are valuable for 
historical documentation.

6. Close and fasten the access portals. 

7. Remove safety equipment. 

8. If appropriate, make notes about the local drainage area 
relative to ongoing construction, erosion problems, or high 
loading of other materials to the system.

9. Discuss conditions that suggest maintenance and make 
decision as to weather or not maintenance is needed.

Maintenance Decision Tree
The need for maintenance is typically based on results of the 
inspection.  The following Maintenance Decision Tree should be used as 
a general guide. (Other factors, such as Regulatory Requirements, may 
need to be considered)

1. Sediment loading on the vault floor.

a. If >4” of accumulated sediment, maintenance is 
required.

2. Sediment loading on top of the cartridge.

a. If >1/4” of accumulation, maintenance is required.

3. Submerged cartridges.

a. If >4” of static water above cartridge bottom for more 
than 24 hours after end of rain event, maintenance 
is required. (Catch basins have standing water in the 
cartridge bay.)

4. Plugged media.

a. If pore space between media granules is absent, 
maintenance is required.

5. Bypass condition.

a. If inspection is conducted during an average rain fall 
event and StormFilter remains in bypass condition 
(water over the internal outlet baffle wall or submerged 
cartridges), maintenance is required.

6. Hazardous material release.

a. If hazardous material release (automotive fluids or other) 
is reported, maintenance is required.

7. Pronounced scum line.

a. If pronounced scum line (say ≥ 1/4” thick) is present 
above top cap, maintenance is required.

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 



Important: Care must be used to avoid damaging the 
cartridges during removal and installation. The cost of 
repairing components damaged during maintenance will be 
the responsibility of the owner.

C. Set the used cartridge aside or load onto the hauling 
truck. 

D. Continue steps a through c until all cartridges have been 
removed.

Method 2:
A. This activity will require that maintenance personnel enter 

the vault to remove the cartridges from the under drain 
manifold and  place them under the vault opening for 
lifting (removal).  Disconnect each filter cartridge from the 
underdrain connector by rotating counterclockwise 1/4 of 
a turn.  Roll the loose cartridge, on edge, to a convenient 
spot beneath the vault access.

B. Unscrew the cartridge cap.

C. Remove the cartridge hood and float.

D. At location under structure access, tip the cartridge on its 
side.

E. Empty the cartridge onto the vault floor. Reassemble the 
empty cartridge.

F. Set the empty, used cartridge aside or load onto the 
hauling truck.

G. Continue steps a through e until all cartridges have been 
removed.

4 5

Maintenance
Depending on the configuration of the particular system, 
maintenance personnel will be required to enter the vault to 
perform the maintenance. 

Important: If vault entry is required, OSHA rules for confined 
space entry must be followed. 

Filter cartridge replacement should occur during dry weather. 
It may be necessary to plug the filter inlet pipe if base flows is 
occurring.

Replacement cartridges can be delivered to the site or customers 
facility. Information concerning how to obtain the replacement 
cartridges is available from Contech Engineered Solutions.

Warning: In the case of a spill, the maintenance personnel 
should abort maintenance activities until the proper guidance 
is obtained. Notify the local hazard control agency and 
Contech Engineered Solutions immediately.

To conduct cartridge replacement and sediment removal 
maintenance:

1. If applicable, set up safety equipment to protect maintenance 
personnel and pedestrians from site hazards.

2. Visually inspect the external condition of the unit and take 
notes concerning defects/problems.

3. Open the doors (access portals) to the vault and allow the 
system to vent.

4. Without entering the vault, give the inside of the unit, 
including components, a general condition inspection. 

5. Make notes about the external and internal condition of 
the vault. Give particular attention to recording the level of 
sediment build-up on the floor of the vault, in the forebay, 
and on top of the internal components.

6. Using appropriate equipment offload the replacement 
cartridges (up to 150 lbs. each) and set aside.

7. Remove used cartridges from the vault using one of the 
following methods:

Method 1:
A. This activity will require that maintenance personnel enter 

the vault to remove the cartridges from the under drain 
manifold and  place them under the vault opening for 
lifting (removal).  Disconnect each filter cartridge from the 
underdrain connector by rotating counterclockwise 1/4 of 
a turn.  Roll the loose cartridge, on edge, to a convenient 
spot beneath the vault access.

 Using appropriate hoisting equipment, attach a cable 
from the boom, crane, or tripod to the loose cartridge. 
Contact Contech Engineered Solutions for suggested 
attachment devices.

B. Remove the used cartridges (up to 250 lbs. each) from the 
vault.



4 5

8.  Remove accumulated sediment from the floor of the 
vault and from the forebay. This can most effectively be 
accomplished by use of a vacuum truck.

9.  Once the sediments are removed, assess the condition of the 
vault and the condition of the connectors. 

10. Using the vacuum truck boom, crane, or tripod, lower and 
install the new cartridges. Once again, take care not to 
damage connections.

11. Close and fasten the door.

12. Remove safety equipment.

13. Finally, dispose of the accumulated materials in accordance 
with applicable regulations. Make arrangements to return the 
used empty cartridges to Contech Engineered Solutions.

Related Maintenance Activities - 
Performed on an as-needed basis
StormFilter units are often just one of many structures in a more 
comprehensive stormwater drainage and treatment system. 

In order for maintenance of the StormFilter to be successful, it 
is imperative that all other components be properly maintained. 
The maintenance/repair of upstream facilities should be carried 
out prior to StormFilter maintenance activities. 

In addition to considering upstream facilities, it is also important 
to correct any problems identified in the drainage area. Drainage 
area concerns may include: erosion problems, heavy oil loading, 
and discharges of inappropriate materials.

Material Disposal
The accumulated sediment found in stormwater treatment 
and conveyance systems must be handled and disposed of in 
accordance with regulatory protocols. It is possible for sediments 
to contain measurable concentrations of heavy metals and 
organic chemicals (such as pesticides and petroleum products). 
Areas with the greatest potential for high pollutant loading 
include industrial areas and heavily traveled roads. 

Sediments and water must be disposed of in accordance with 
all applicable waste disposal regulations. When scheduling 
maintenance, consideration must be made for the disposal of 
solid and liquid wastes. This typically requires coordination with 
a local landfill for solid waste disposal. For liquid waste disposal 
a number of options are available including a municipal vacuum 
truck decant facility, local waste water treatment plant or on-site 
treatment and discharge.

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 



Inspection Report

Date: Personnel: 

Location: ————————————System Size: ———————————————————————————————————

System Type:  Vault  Cast-In-Place  Linear Catch Basin  Manhole  Other

Sediment Thickness in Forebay: ———————————————————————————————————————————

Sediment Depth on Vault Floor: ———————————————————————————————————————————

Structural Damage: ————————————————————————————————————————————————

Estimated Flow from Drainage Pipes (if available): ————————————————————————————————————

Cartridges Submerged: Yes    No  Depth of Standing Water: ——————————————————————

StormFilter Maintenance Activities (check off if done and give description) 

 Trash and Debris Removal: ———————————————————————————————————————————

 Minor Structural Repairs: ————————————————————————————————————————————

 Drainage Area Report —————————————————————————————————————————————

 Excessive Oil Loading:  Yes  No  Source: ———————————————————————

 Sediment Accumulation on Pavement: Yes  No  Source: ———————————————————————

 Erosion of Landscaped Areas:  Yes  No  Source: ———————————————————————

Items Needing Further Work:  ————————————————————————————————————————————

Owners should contact the local public works department and inquire about how the department disposes of their street waste 
residuals. 

Other Comments: 

—————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

—————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

—————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

—————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

—————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

—————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

—————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

—————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Review the condition reports from the previous inspection visits.

 Date:



StormFilter Maintenance Report

Date: —————————————Personnel: ————————————————————————————————————

Location: ————————————System Size: ———————————————————————————————————

System Type:  Vault  Cast-In-Place  Linear Catch Basin  Manhole  Other

List Safety Procedures and Equipment Used: ——————————————————————————————————————

—————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

—————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

System Observations
Months in Service: 

Oil in Forebay (if present): Yes No 

Sediment Depth in Forebay (if present): ————————————————————————————————————————

Sediment Depth on Vault Floor: ———————————————————————————————————————————

Structural Damage:  ————————————————————————————————————————————————

Drainage Area Report
Excessive Oil Loading: Yes No  Source: —————————————————————————

Sediment Accumulation on Pavement: Yes No Source:  —————————————————————————

Erosion of Landscaped Areas: Yes No Source: —————————————————————————

StormFilter Cartridge Replacement Maintenance Activities
Remove Trash and Debris: Yes No  Details: ——————————————————————————

Replace Cartridges: Yes No  Details: ——————————————————————————

Sediment Removed: Yes No  Details: ——————————————————————————

Quantity of Sediment Removed (estimate?): 

Minor Structural Repairs: Yes No Details: —————————————————————————

Residuals (debris, sediment) Disposal Methods: ——————————————————————————————————————

Notes:

——————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

——————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

——————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

——————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

——————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

——————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

——————————————————————————————————————————————————————————



800.338.1122
www.conteches.com

NOTHING IN THIS CATALOG SHOULD BE CONSTRUED AS AN EXPRESSED 
WARRANT Y OR AN IMPLIED WARRANT Y OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR 

AN Y PARTICULAR PURPOSE . SEE THE CONTECH STANDARD CONDITIONS OF 
SALE (VIEWABLE AT WWW.CONTECHES.COM /COS ) FOR MORE INFORMATION .

Contech Engineered Solutions LLC provides site solutions for the civil engineering industry. Contech’s portfolio includes bridges, 
drainage, sanitary sewer, stormwater and earth stabilization products. For information on other Contech division offerings, visit 
contech-cpi.com or call 800.338.1122.

Support

• Drawings and specifications are available at www.conteches.com.

• Site-specific design support is available from our engineers.

ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS

©2016 CONTECH ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS LLC.

800-338-1122

www.ContechES.com

All Rights Reserved. Printed in the USA.

StormFilter Inspection and Maintenance Procedures 8/2016



Bio-retention Maintenance Plan For 

 

________________________________________________ 

 

Date: ___________________ 

 

 

Project Address: __________________________ 

      ________________________________________ 

Assessor’s Parcel No:__________________________ 

Property Owner: _____________________________ 

Phone No: __________________________________ 

Designated Contact: __________________________ 

Contact Phone: ______________________________ 

Mailing Address: _____________________________ 

Bioretention areas function as soil and plant based filtration devices that remove pollutants through a variety of physical, 

biological, and chemical treatment processes. These facilities normally consist of a ponding area, mulch layer, vegetation and 

biotreatment soil mix. 

 

The property contains ________________________  bioretention area(s) located as described below 

and as shown in the attached site plan  ________________________. 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

I. Routine Maintenance Activities 

The principal maintenance objective is to prevent sediment buildup and clogging, which reduces 

pollutant removal efficiency and may lead to bioretention area failure. Routine maintenance 

activities, and the frequency at which they will be conducted, are shown in Table 1 (continued 

next page). 

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
Exhibit C-3

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
Exhibit B

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
7

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
BR.1, BR.2, BR.3, BR.4, BR.5, BR.6, BR.7

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
Nicholas Elementary School

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
9-18-2024

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
6601 Stiener Drive

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
Sacramento, CA 95823

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
039-0133-011-000

greg
Text Box
Sacramento City Unified School District

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 



Table 1 

Routine Maintenance Activities for Bioretention Areas 

 

No.  Maintenance Task    Frequency of Task       

1  

 

 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

5 

 

 

 

6 

 

 

 

 

 

7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Remove obstructions, debris and trash from 

bioretention area and dispose of properly. 

 

Inspect bioretention area to ensure that it drains 

between storms and within five days after rainfall. 

If ponded water does not drain within five days, 

check if drains are clogged or consider removing 

the surface biotreatment soil and replacing with 

the approved soil mix and replant. 

 

Inspect inlets for channels, soil exposure or other 

evidence of erosion. Clear obstructions and 

remove sediment. 

 

Remove and replace all dead and diseased 

vegetation. 

 

Maintain vegetation and the irrigation system. 

Prune and weed to keep bioretention area neat 

and orderly in appearance. 

 

Inspect and, if needed, add mulch before the wet 

season begins. It is recommended that 

composted arbor mulch be applied once a year to 

maintain a 3” depth of mulch over all bare soil 

areas except within six inches of tree trunks. 

 

Inspect bioretention area using the attached 

inspection checklist. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monthly, or as needed after storm 

events 

 

Monthly, or as needed after storm 

events 

 

 

 

 

 

Monthly, or as needed after storm 

events 

 

 

Twice a year 

 

 

Before wet season begins, or as 

needed 

 

 

Before wet season begins, or as 

needed 

 

 

 

 

Monthly, or after large storm 

events, and after removal of 

accumulated debris or material 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



II. Prohibitions 

Do not use pesticides or other chemical applications to treat diseased plants, control weeds or 

removed unwanted growth. Employ non-chemical controls (biological, physical and cultural 

controls) to treat a pest problem. Prune plants properly and at the appropriate time of year. 

Provide adequate irrigation for landscape plants. Do not over water. 

 

III. Mosquito Abatment 

Standing water should not remain in the treatment measures for more than five days, to 

prevent mosquito generation. Should any mosquito issues arise, contact the Sacramento-Yolo 

County Mosquito & Vector Control District (SYCMVCD),  as needed for assistance. Mosquito 

larvicides should be applied only when absolutely necessary, as indicated by the SYCMVCD and 

then only by a licensed professional or contractor. Contact information for SYCMVCD is provided 

below. 

 

Sacramento County Office 

8631 Bond Road 

Elk Grove, CA 95624 

Fax (916) 685-5464 

 

Yolo County Office 

1234 Fortna Avenue 

Woodland, CA 95776 

Fax (530) 668-3403 

 
 

IV. Inspections 

The attached Bioretention Area Inspection and Maintenance Checklist should be used to 

conduct inspections monthly (or as needed), identify needed maintenance, and record 

maintenance that is conducted. 

 

(See attached Maintenance Checklist)

 



 

  Bioretention Area Maintenance Plan - Page 3  
F:\sm6x 2016\SM62 Subcommittees\NDS\C3TG Update\Final Approved Clean Docs - Sept 28 2016\G02 Bioret Area template 6.1.docx 

Bioretention Area 
Inspection and Maintenance Checklist 

 
 

Property Address:          Property Owner:        
 
Treatment Measure No.:         Date of Inspection:              Type of Inspection:  � Monthly                  � Pre-Wet Season 
                � After heavy runoff  � End of Wet Season 
Inspector(s):                 � Other:    
 

Defect Conditions When Maintenance Is 
Needed 

Maintenance 

 Needed? (Y/N) 

Comments (Describe maintenance 
completed and if needed maintenance was 
not conducted, note when it will be done) 

Results Expected When 
Maintenance Is Performed 

1. Standing Water When water stands in the bioretention 
area between storms and does not 
drain within five days after rainfall. 

  There should be no areas of 
standing water once inflow has 
ceased.  Any of the following may 
apply: sediment or trash blockages 
removed, improved grade from head 
to foot of bioretention area, or added 
underdrains.  

2. Trash and Debris 
Accumulation 

Trash and debris accumulated in the 
bioretention area. 

  Trash and debris removed from 
bioretention area and disposed of 
properly. 

3. Sediment Evidence of sedimentation in 
bioretention area.   

  Material removed so that there is no 
clogging or blockage.  Material is 
disposed of properly. 

4. Erosion Channels have formed around inlets, 
there are areas of bare soil, and/or 
other evidence of erosion. 

  Obstructions and sediment removed 
so that water flows freely and 
disperses over a wide area.  
Obstructions and sediment are 
disposed of properly. 

5. Vegetation Vegetation is dead, diseased and/or 
overgrown. 

  Vegetation is healthy and attractive 
in appearance. 

6. Mulch Mulch is missing or patchy in 
appearance.  Areas of bare earth are 
exposed, or mulch layer is less than 3 
inches in depth.   

  All bare earth is covered, except 
mulch is kept 6 inches away from 
trunks of trees and shrubs.  Mulch is 
even in appearance, at a depth of 3 
inches.   

7. Miscellaneous Any condition not covered above that 
needs attention in order for the 
bioretention area to function as 
designed. 

  Meet the design specifications. 

 

seth
Rectangle

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
6601 Stiener Drive, Sacramento, CA 95823

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
SCUSD



Bio Clean CPS
A Stormwater Trash Capture Solution

A Forterra Company

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
MANUAL

5796 Armada Drive Suite 250  |   Carlsbad,  CA 92008  |   855. 566. 3938
stormwater@forterrabp.com  |   biocleanenvironmental .com

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
Exhibit C-4a

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 



1 | P a g e

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

CPS devices should be maintained by individuals who are trained in proper disposal procedures, 
confined space entry and traffic safety regulations. When servicing a Bio Clean CPS device be 
sure to follow all safety and traffic control protocols as well as wearing all proper personal 
protection equipment such as gloves, safety glasses, hard-hat, safety vest and work boots. 

Visual Inspection 

1. Begin by inspecting the inflow of the catch basin where the Bio Clean CPS device is located.  
Check for any obstructions to inflow of the CB unit.  If any large obstructions are found, have them 
removed.  Once the inflow inspection is completed, remove the man-hole cover for further 
inspection. (Note: Confined Space Entry Procedures may apply if trained personnel intend to enter 
the interior space of any Catch Basin. Please follow all applicable confined space entry procedures)

2. Remove the manhole cover and visually estimate the amount and types of debris found in the CB 
unit. Look for any visual signs of damage that may compromise the CB unit to function properly. 
Inspect for any standing water in the CB unit as well as for large amounts of sediment and debris 
surrounding the CPS device. If standing water and high sediment volume is found, remove water, 
sediment and debris by vacuum truck or by other debris removal methods.

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 



2 | P a g e

Cleaning Procedures and Frequencies 

1. Like all other storm water BMP’s, Bio Clean CPS devices require periodic maintenance.
Routine inspection and maintenance intervals for all CPS devices are typically twice per year for 
inspections and once per year for maintenance service. Bio Clean CPS devices may require more 
frequent maintenance service if the device is located in a high debris loading drainage area, such as 
certain downtown areas, retail/restaurant, or residential areas where a significant amount of 
vegetation/foliage is located. In such cases, Bio Clean CPS devices may require more frequent 
inspection and maintenance service, which could range from twice per year to monthly inspection 
and maintenance service, depending on pollutant load conditions.

2. To begin Bio Clean CPS cleaning procedures, conduct a visual inspection of the CPS device and the 
surrounding area to ensure a safe working environment. Setup appropriate barriers and signage as 
necessary to establish a work zone surrounding the catch basin. Once the work zone has been 
established, remove the manhole cover from the catch basin.

3. Once the manhole cover is removed from the basin the Bio Clean CPS is ready for servicing. All 
debris can be removed by either a vacuum truck or manually removing sediment and debris by 
hand.

4. Bio Clean CPS devices shall be cleaned using a pressure washer as may be necessary if any 
materials are found to cause occlusion or clogging of the screen.
Disposal 

1. All trash and debris removed from the Bio Clean CPS unit shall be disposed of in accordance with 
local, state and federal regulation.

2. Solid waste disposal can be coordinated with local landfills. Liquids may need to be disposed of by 
wastewater treatment plant, municipal vacuum truck decant facility or approved facility.

For Maintenance Services or 
Information Please Contact Us At: 

760-433-7640
Or Email:

info@biocleanenvironmental.com



Inspection and Maintenance Guide

DR
AI

NAGE PROTECTION SYSTEM
S

A division of
Oldcastle Infrastructure

FLOGARD+PLUS®
CATCH BASIN INSERT FILTER

Seth Nisbet, WCE
Text Box
Exhibit C-4b

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 



SCOPE:
Federal, State and Local Clean Water Act regulations and those of insurance carriers require that stormwater 
filtration systems be maintained and serviced on a recurring basis. The intent of the regulations is to ensure that the 
systems, on a continuing basis, efficiently remove pollutants from stormwater runoff thereby preventing pollution 
of the nation’s water resources. These specifications apply to the FloGard+Plus® Catch Basin Insert Filter.

RECOMMENDED FREQUENCY OF SERVICE:
Drainage Protection Systems (DPS) recommends that installed FloGard+Plus Catch Basin Insert Filters be 
serviced on a recurring basis. Ultimately, the frequency depends on the amount of runoff, pollutant loading and 
interference from debris (leaves, vegetation, cans, paper, etc.); however, it is recommended that each installation 
be serviced a minimum of three times per year, with a change of filter medium once per year. DPS technicians 
are available to do an on-site evaluation, upon request.

RECOMMENDED TIMING OF SERVICE:
DPS guidelines for the timing of service are as follows:

1. For areas with a definite rainy season: Prior to, during and following the rainy season.
2. For areas subject to year-round rainfall: On a recurring basis (at least three times per year).
3. For areas with winter snow and summer rain: Prior to and just after the snow season and during the 

summer rain season.
4. For installed devices not subject to the elements (wash racks, parking garages, etc.): On a recurring 

basis (no less than three times per year).

SERVICE PROCEDURES:
1. The catch basin grate shall be removed and set to one side. The catch basin shall be visually inspected 

for defects and possible illegal dumping. If illegal dumping has occurred, the proper authorities and 
property owner representative shall be notified as soon as practicable.

2. Using an industrial vacuum, the collected materials shall be removed from the liner. (Note: DPS uses a 
truck-mounted vacuum for servicing FloGard+Plus catch basin inserts).

3. When all of the collected materials have been removed, the filter medium pouches shall be removed 
by unsnapping the tether from the D-ring and set to one side. The filter liner, gaskets, stainless steel 
frame and mounting brackets, etc., shall be inspected for continued serviceability. Minor damage 
or defects found shall be corrected on-the-spot and a notation made on the Maintenance Record. 
More extensive deficiencies that affect the efficiency of the filter (torn liner, etc.), if approved by the 
customer representative, will be corrected and an invoice submitted to the representative along with the 
Maintenance Record.

4. The filter medium pouches shall be inspected for defects and continued serviceability and replaced as 
necessary, and the pouch tethers re-attached to the liner’s D-ring. 

5. The grate shall be replaced. 

REPLACEMENT AND DISPOSAL OF EXPOSED FILTER MEDIUM AND COLLECTED DEBRIS
The frequency of filter medium exchange will be in accordance with the existing DPS-Customer Maintenance 
Contract. DPS recommends that the medium be changed at least once per year. During the appropriate service, 
or if so determined by the service technician during a non-scheduled service, the filter medium will be replaced 
with new material. Once the exposed pouches and debris have been removed, DPS has possession and must 
dispose of it in accordance with local, state and federal agency requirements.

DPS also has the capability of servicing all manner of storm drain filters, catch basin inserts and catch 
basins without inserts, underground oil/water separators, stormwater interceptors and other such devices. 
All DPS personnel are highly qualified technicians and are confined-space trained and certified. Call us at  
(888) 950-8826 for further information and assistance.

2



1

FloGard Plus Replacement and Repair 
Parts of the FloGard Plus Inlet Filter- 

1. FloGard Stainless Steel Support Frame

2. Fossil Rock Absorbent Pouches

3. Liner

4. GeoGrid Support Basket & Cable

* Grate and Basin NOT INCLUDED

Disassembly: 

1. Clear FloGard of any existing debris by hand or vacuum.

2. Unclip and remove the Fossil Rock pouches from the inside Liner.

3. Lift the FloGard from the catch basin.

4. Using a slotted screw driver, carefully pry open the metal tabs holding the 
GeoGrid and Cable in place. Separate the GeoGrid and Liner from the 
FloGard frame.

5. Unclip the Liner from the inside of the GeoGrid.  If you are reusing the Liner, 
rinse thoroughly with water and inspect for tears. (If torn, mend with 
stainless steel wire or replace the Liner).

6. Rinse and inspect the GeoGrid Basket and the reinforcing cable. (If
torn, mend with stainless steel wire or replace the GeoGrid).

7. Rinse and inspect the Stainless Steel FloGard frame. 

Reassembly: 

1. Fully expand the GeoGrid Basket and orient to the FloGard frame.
Hook cable and GeoGrid to the FloGard frame metal tabs and close the
tabs using slotted screwdriver. Move around the FloGard until all tabs
are closed and GeoGrid is secured to the Frame.

2. Expand and orient the Liner, locating the clips at each corner and side.
Push the Liner through the center of the FloGard frame and secure the clips
to the GeoGrid Basket close to the top support cable. Push the Liner to expand inside 
of the basket.

3. Clip new Fossil Rock Rubberizer pouches to the inside of the Liner.

4. Lower FloGard back into the basin, replace grate. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

greg
Text Box
Image removed for recording purposes 



Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 12.1 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024 
 
 
Subject:  Business and Financial Information: Enrollment and Attendance Report, 
Month 1, Ending Friday, September 13, 2024 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Receive business and financial information. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  Enrollment and Attendance Report, Month 1, Ending Friday, 
September 13, 2024 
 
Financial Considerations:  Reflects standard business information. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Goal I: Graduation Outcomes, Goal 2: Academic Outcomes, Goal 3: 
Welcoming and Safety Outcomes 
  
 
Documents Attached:   

• Enrollment and Attendance Report, Month 1, Ending Friday, September 13, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
  Estimated Time:  N/A 
  Submitted by: Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
  Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 1, ENDING FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2024

PERCENTAGE FOR 
THE MONTH

A M Winn Elementary K‐8 Waldorf 68 113 117 26 324 297.16 94.86%
Abraham Lincoln El 63 214 226 1 504 439.47 92.93%
Alice Birney Waldorf‐Inspired K8 68 140 168 1 377 362.36 95.95%
Bret Harte Elementary 31 78 48 34 191 154.79 89.69%
Caleb Greenwood 98 217 225 5 545 515.37 96.98%
Camellia Basic Elementary 44 128 135 5 312 301.58 97.88%
Capital City School 9 18 40 1 68 49.72 93.59%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 30 85 81 21 217 192.74 93.04%
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 350 14 364 329.00 94.27%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 86 268 280 1 635 596.21 95.63%
David Lubin Elementary 84 166 185 26 461 418.26 93.19%
Earl Warren Elementary 67 156 184 14 421 387.21 95.57%
Edward Kemble Elementary 128 316 0 15 459 413.11 93.72%
Elder Creek Elementary 103 302 351 3 759 658.16 95.07%
Ethel I Baker Elementary 97 274 263 2 636 553.16 93.02%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 64 172 188 11 435 401.11 94.68%
Father Keith B Kenny K‐6 School 38 94 106 29 267 206.68 92.81%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 87 198 211 5 501 474.31 96.61%
Golden Empire Elementary 74 188 190 6 458 409.00 94.07%
H W Harkness Elementary 59 110 118 10 297 255.05 93.52%
Hollywood Park Elementary 60 91 74 42 267 245.79 95.52%
Home/Hospital 9 15 24 0 48 216.58 100.00%
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 71 163 152 30 416 370.84 93.00%
Isador Cohen Elementary 80 149 152 31 412 356.89 93.38%
James W Marshall Elementary 34 132 133 33 332 310.16 95.71%
John Bidwell Elementary 51 115 117 16 299 219.37 94.32%
John Cabrillo Elementary 87 150 141 41 419 341.16 92.38%
John D Sloat Elementary 37 83 91 23 234 206.26 93.15%
John H. Still K‐8 74 178 216 3 471 417.42 94.60%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 9 9 7.58 81.25%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 25 88 97 3 213 173.42 90.77%
Leonardo da Vinci K ‐ 8 School 109 278 286 15 688 665.31 96.54%
Mark Twain Elementary 49 99 101 31 280 235.32 92.72%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 81 134 122 27 364 319.58 96.20%
Matsuyama Elementary 76 170 194 10 450 412.58 95.06%
Nicholas Elementary 66 200 226 5 497 428.89 93.70%
O W Erlewine Elementary 56 105 119 18 298 257.11 93.53%
Oak Ridge Elementary 87 167 198 2 454 391.00 91.39%
Pacific Elementary 87 259 248 4 598 536.26 94.24%
Parkway Elementary School 59 183 194 22 458 362.74 89.06%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 91 276 283 0 650 624.32 96.29%
Pony Express Elementary 71 125 161 11 368 330.47 94.31%
Rosa Parks K‐8 School 34 139 145 14 332 276.74 93.26%
Sequoia Elementary 62 163 159 29 413 369.32 93.31%
Success Academy K‐8 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 ‐
Susan B Anthony Elementary 62 138 124 2 326 303.37 96.21%
Sutterville Elementary 69 136 188 13 406 381.58 96.06%
Suy:u Elementary 51 157 166 27 401 361.74 94.79%
Tahoe Elementary 72 123 109 34 338 283.21 92.95%
Theodore Judah Elementary 122 181 176 16 495 449.00 95.52%
Washington Elementary 84 132 140 15 371 326.32 92.59%
William Land Elementary 80 155 145 0 380 346.21 95.37%
Woodbine Elementary 28 131 118 26 303 257.89 91.05%

TOTAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 3,322          7,852             8,265            782        20,221                 18,198.88      93.95%

ATTENDANCEENROLLMENT

2024‐2025 
Attendance

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION SDC 
Grades K‐

6

TOTAL 
ENROLLMENT

TK‐K Grades 1‐3 Grades 4‐6

ADA

Page 1



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 1, ENDING FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2024

PERCENTAGE FOR THE 
MONTH

A M Winn Elementary K‐8 Waldorf 52 33 85 7 92 83.84 94.86%

Albert Einstein MS 280 286 566 14 580 516.42 91.98%

Alice Birney Waldorf‐Inspired K8 49 48 97 2 99 93.84 95.95%

California MS 412 373 785 15 800 721.89 92.81%

Capital City School 21 28 49 0 49 33.21 93.59%

Fern Bacon MS 369 318 687 30 717 634.42 94.25%

Genevieve Didion Elementary 55 56 111 0 111 108.15 96.61%

Home/Hospital 24 18 42 0 42 144.95 100.00%

John H. Still K‐8 102 140 242 6 248 228.00 94.60%

John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 7 7 5.42 81.25%

Leonardo da Vinci K ‐ 8 School 65 56 121 14 135 127.42 96.54%

Miwok MS 540 637 1,177 7 1,184 1,122.58 95.74%

Rosa Parks K‐8 School 231 203 434 23 457 373.15 93.26%

Sam Brannan MS 162 169 331 30 361 307.84 92.20%

School of Engineering and Science 114 132 246 2 248 239.47 96.55%

Success Academy K‐8 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 ‐
Umoja International Academy 133 140 273 14 287 245.84 91.48%

Will C Wood MS 327 303 630 59 689 631.00 94.78%

TOTAL MIDDLE SCHOOLS 2,936       2,940     5,876                    230              6,106                5,617         93.91%

ENROLLMENT ATTENDANCE

2024‐2025 Attendance

MIDDLE SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION SDC Grades 
7‐8

TOTAL 
ENROLLMENT

Grade 7 Grade 8 Total Grades 7‐8

ADA

Page 2



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 1, ENDING FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2024

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

American Legion HS 164 0 0 0 0 164 0 164 107.68 77.68%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 0 49 40 26 36 151 16 167 141.63 90.70%
C K McClatchy HS 0 699 679 621 626 2,625 33 2,658 2,419.79 94.64%
Capital City School 0 27 26 36 43 132 0 132 93.10 93.59%
Hiram W Johnson HS 0 409 423 405 414 1,651 112 1,763 1,474.68 90.45%
Home/Hospital 0 21 22 4 20 67 0 67 282.00 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS 0 357 397 415 428 1,597 108 1,705 1,482.58 92.80%
Luther Burbank HS 0 384 362 347 407 1,500 114 1,614 1,379.40 92.13%
Rosemont HS 0 347 347 344 375 1,413 109 1,522 1,316.63 91.51%
School of Engineering and Science 0 107 57 66 64 294 6 300 285.47 96.55%
Umoja International Academy 0 35 45 25 40 145 0 145 128.37 91.48%
West Campus HS 0 233 233 220 218 904 11 915 888.32 97.68%
TOTAL HIGH SCHOOLS 164                   2,668   2,631     2,509      2,671      10,643        509      11,152             9,999.65 92.43%

ATTENDANCEENROLLMENT

2024‐2025 
Attendance

HIGH SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION Total Grade 
9‐12

SDC 
Grades 
9‐12

TOTAL 
ENROLLMENT

Continuation Grade 
9

Grade 
10

Grade 11 Grade 12

ADA

Page 3



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 1, ENDING FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2024

ADA PERCENTAGE FOR 
THE MONTH

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 93.95%

MIDDLE SCHOOLS 93.91%

HIGH SCHOOLS  92.43%

TOTAL ALL DISTRICT SCHOOLS 93.43%

Total Non‐Public Schools as of 9/24/24 242

ADULT EDUCATION

A. Warren McClaskey Adult Center
Charles A. Jones Career & Education Center
TOTAL ADULT EDUCATION

2024‐2025 DEPENDENT CHARTERS
Kdgn Grades 

1‐3
Grades 
4‐6

Grades 
7‐8

Grades 
9‐12

SDC ENROLLMENT 
TOTAL

ADA ADA PERCENTAGE FOR 
THE MONTH

Bowling Green McCoy 42 162 166 0 0 3 373 340.58 94.40%

Bowling Green‐Chacon 38 136 140 0 0 3 317 301.79 96.00%

George W. Carver SAS 0 0 0 0 176 2 178 157.05 93.25%

New Joseph Bonnheim Charter 64 99 115 0 0 5 283 257.95 94.21%

Sac New Tech Early College HS 0 0 0 0 155 1 156 142.56 95.84%

The Met High School 0 0 0 0 197 1 198 168.63 93.71%

TOTAL DEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS 144 397 421 0 528 15 1505 1368.56 94.57%

ADULT EDUCATION SCHOOLS

DEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS

103

237

340                                                     

40.10

34.21

74.31

ENROLLMENT ATTENDANCE

2024‐2025 Attendance
DISTRICT TOTALS TOTAL ADATOTAL ENROLLMENT

20,221                                                                                                          18,198.88 
6,106                                                  

11,152                                                
37,479                                                

ENROLLMENT ADA

                                                           5,617.44 
                                                           9,999.65 

33,815.97                                                        

Page 4


	8 November 7 2024 Agenda
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	AGENDA

	9.1 Recognition of Outgoing Board Member
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	9.2 Recognition of Veteran's Day
	9.2 Resolution Recognizing Veterans 2024
	Meeting Date: November 7, 2024

	9.2.1 Resolution Recognizing Veterans
	SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
	BOARD OF EDUCATION


	9.3 Resolution No. 3461 Recognition of Native American Heritage Month
	9.3 Agenda Cover Sheet NA Heritage Month
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	9.3.2 2024 Native American Heritage Month Resolution
	SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
	BOARD OF EDUCATION


	9.4 Approve Resolution No. 3462 Recognition of 1984 Sikh Genocide
	9.4 Sikh Genocide Reso Cover Page
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	9.4.1 Sikh Genocide Resolution Template

	9.5 Student Support and Services Annual Report
	9.5 Agenda Cover Sheet_SSHS Services_11-7-24
	Meeting Date: November 7, 2024

	9.5.1 2023-24 Annual Report_Final

	11.1a Grants Entitlements and Other Income Agreements
	11.1a 11-7-24 FINAL
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	11.1a.1 A24-00205 SCOE CTC Ldrship Institute
	11.1a.2 A24-00206 GAN Homeless Child  Youth
	A24-00206 2
	Grant Administration and Support Office 2023 Budget Signature Form

	A24-00206 GAN Homeless Child & Youth
	A24-00206 GAN Homeless Child & Youth-1
	Grant Administration and Support Office 2023 Expenditure Report Signature Form


	11.1a.3 A24-00203 Intent to Submit Workability Grant
	A24-00203 Intent to Submit (Filled Out)
	Form A
	Intent to Submit an Application for the  WorkAbility I Request For Applications Grant

	Untitled

	A24-00203 Program Requirements for RFA

	11.1a.4 A24-00207 MOU CSU CalState TEACH Program-fully executed
	11.1a.5 A24-00169 CAJ-Financial Aid to students
	11.1a.6 A24-00208 SETA HiSET-CAJ
	11.1a.7 A24-00209 SCOE Teacher Intern Program
	11.1a.8 A24-00204 CDE WorkAbility Grant 2024-2025 Budget
	11.1a.9 A24-00204a CDE WorkAbility Grant 2024-2025 Budget
	11.1a.10 A24-00211 CSU Fresno Student Teacher Placement-fully executed
	11.1a.11 A24-00212 MOU Dominican University
	Student Teaching Memorandum of Understanding July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2026

	11.1a.12 A24-00210 SCOE Data Sharing
	11.1a.13 A24-00214 San Diego Cnty Superinten Schools MOU
	11.1a.14 A24-00215 MOU CSUS Health Profess
	11.1a.15 A24-00216 City of SAC Neighborhood Resilience Pilot Grant
	11.1a.16 R24-03481 Campbell Keller CAL MS Campus Furniture CO 1 Amend 110724BD
	R24-03481 Campbell Keller CAL MS Campus Furniture CO 1 Amend
	R24-03481 Campbell Keller CAL MS Campus Furniture CO 1 Amend

	11.1a.17 0272-416 Parkway Shade-Patio Designers CO 1 110724
	11.1a.18 463 Metasys at 14 Sites-JCI CO 1 110724

	11.1b Approve Contracts Report over $15k
	11.1b Contracts Rpt Coversheet 10-24-24
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	11.1b.1 Contracts Rpt-REV
	Sheet1


	11.1c Approve Personnel Transactions
	11.1c Cover page Personnel Transactions_
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	11.1c.1  Certificated Board Agenda
	Sheet1

	11.1c.2 Classfied Board Agenda
	Sheet1


	11.1d Approve Drainage Facility Maintenance Declaration with the County of Sacramento for Nicholas
	11.1d Cover Sheet - Approve Drainage Facility Maintenance Declaration_
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	11.1d.1 PRIVATE DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES- Declaration of Covenants Nicholas

	11.1e Approve Business and Financial Report Warrants Checks and Electronic Checks
	11.1e 2024.09 SEP2024 Warrants Report Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	11.1e.1 2024.09 SEP2024 Worksheet and Exported Reports

	11.1f Donations to the District for the Period of September 1-30 2024
	11.1f Donations Report Cover Sheet DATE (SEP2024)
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	11.1f.1 AR06a Details SEP 2024
	Receipt Detail
	Main Body
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	BA25-0000409
	BA25-0000722
	BA25-0000723



	2
	2025
	01
	






	Recap
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	C
	E









	11.1g Approve Resolution No. 3459 Intention to Convey Public Utilities Easement to County of Sac at Nicholas
	11.1g Cover Sheet - Resolution 3459 Intention to Convey Easement at Nicholas
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	11.1g.1 Resolution 3459-  Intention to Convey Easement Nicholas Sewer
	11.1g.2 EASEMENT FOR SEWER- Nicholas to County of Sac

	11.1h Approve Resolution No. 3456 Piggyback Contract for Purchase of School Site Furniture
	11.1h Piggyback Resolution 3456
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	11.1h.1 Furniture Piggyback Resolution_San Juan-Campbell Keller

	11.1i Expulsions 6, 7, 8, 9 2024-25
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	11.1j Approve Stormwater Treatment Device Access and Maintenance Agreement with the County for Nicholas
	11.1j  Cover Sheet - Approve Stormwater Agreement Nicholas_
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	11.1j.1 DECLARATION OF COVENANTS- Stormwater at Nicholas

	12.1 Business and Financial Report  Enrollment and Attendance Report Month 1 Ending Friday September 13 2024
	12.1 Business and Financial Enrollment Cover_11.04.24
	Meeting Date:  November 7, 2024

	12.1.1 24-25 Month 1 Board Report


	Revised Expenditure Report: Off
	ER 1: Off
	ER 2: Off
	ER 3: Off
	ER 4: Off
	Yes BCR: Off
	No BCR: Off
	Program Type: [[Select Program Type]]
	Local Educational Agency: 
	CDE Fiscal Analyst: [[Select CDE Fiscal Analyst]]
	Program Coordinator Name: 
	Program Coordinator Email: 
	Date Signed 1_af_date: 
	Program Fiscal Contact Name: 
	Program Fiscal Contact Email: 
	Date Signed 2_af_date: 
	Local Educational Agency Applicant Name: Sacramento City Unified School District
	Program Office: 5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824
	Award Amount Requested: $27,600
	Student Enrollment Count placed: 131
	Student Enrollment Count served: 871
	Service Location Number: 094-04
	Authorized Agent Name and Title: Janea Marking/Chief Business and Operations Officer
	LEA Contact Name and Title: Brett Fontenot/Vocational Specialist
	LEA Contact Email: Brett-Fontenot@scusd.edu
	LEA Contact Telephone: 916-643-9159
	LEA Mailing Address: 5735 47th Avenue Box 750
	LEA City: Sacramento
	LEA Zip Code: 95824
	Name and Title of Authorized Agent: Janea Marking/Chief Business and Operations Officer
	Date Signed: 
	Signature of Authorized Agent: 
	Statutory Requirements: Yes
	Previous CDE Business: Yes
	Month Day: 
	2-Digit Year: 24
	Legal Title/Entity as it appears on Deed: political subdivision of the State of California
	14-Digit Parcel Number: 039-0133-011
	Address or Development as shown on Improvement Plan Set: Nicholas Elementary School, 6601 Steiner Drive, Sacramento CA, 95823, APN 039-0133-011
	SWQ treatment, LID, Trash Capture device (list all and if multi-purpose device): Two (2) Contech Stormfilters, Seven (7)  Bio-retention Basins, and Nine (9) Trash Screens.
	additional space for device list: 
	additional space for device list 2: 
	Owner Title/Name as it appears on Deed: Sacramento City Unified School District 
	Print Name: Janea Marking
	Authority to Execute: Chief Business and Operations Officer


